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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 09th April, 2021 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 26th March, 2021.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2021.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Note.–   	(i)	F iscal Management (Responsibility) (Amendment) Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of March 05, 2021.

	 (ii)	 Code of Criminal Procedure (Amendment) Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of March 05, 2021.

	 (iii)	 National Minimum Wage of Workers (Amendment) Bill was published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of March 05, 2021.
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Appointments &c., by the President
No. 280 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (224-227).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer 
to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve 

approved by His Excellency the President

Confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the confirmation 
of the undermentioned Senior Officer in the rank of Major 
General with effect from 24th September, 2019:

Temporary Major General Kaluwanage Jayanath 
Jayaweera RWP RSP USP rcds (O/60643);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 30th 
November, 2020:

Major General Kaluwanage Jayanath Jayaweera RWP 
RSP USP rcds (O/60643);

transfer to the sri lanka army 
regular (general) reserve

His Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army 
Regular (General) Reserve with effect from 30th November, 
2020:

Major General Kaluwanage Jayanath Jayaweera RWP 
RSP USP rcds (O/60643).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
06th October, 2020.

03-485/1

No. 281 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (224-227).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer 
to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve 

approved by His Excellency the President

Confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the confirmation 
of the undermentioned Senior Officer in the rank of Major 
General with effect from 27th November, 2019:

Temporary Major General Athuru Liyanage Prathap 
Senapathy Tillekerathna, RWP RSP USP psc (O/60731);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 10th 
November, 2020:

Major General Athuru Liyanage Prathap Senapathy 
Tillekerathna, RWP RSP USP psc (O/60731);

transfer to the sri lanka army 
regular (general) reserve

His Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army 
Regular (General) Reserve with effect from 10th November, 
2020:

Major General Athuru Liyanage Prathap Senapathy 
Tillekerathna, RWP RSP USP psc (O/60731).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
06th October, 2020.

03-485/2
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No. 282 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (224-227).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer 
to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve 

approved by His Excellency the President

Confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the confirmation 
of the undermentioned Senior Officer in the rank of Major 
General with effect from 27th November, 2019:

Temporary Major General Aluambe Gedara Dhammika 
Nishantha Jayasundera, RWP RSP (O/60742);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 04th 
November, 2020:

Major General Aluambe Gedara Dhammika Nishantha 
Jayasundera, RWP RSP (O/60742);

transfer to the sri lanka army 
regular (general) reserve

His Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army 
Regular (General) Reserve with effect from 04th November, 
2020:

Major General Aluambe Gedara Dhammika Nishantha 
Jayasundera, RWP RSP (O/60742).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
06th October, 2020.

03-485/3

No. 283 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (224-227).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer 
to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve 

approved by His Excellency the President

Confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of the undermentioned Senior Officer in the 
rank of Major General with effect from 26th January, 2020:

Temporary Major General Henarath Hetti Arachchige 
Subashana Priyantha Kumara Senaratne, RSP USP psc 
(O/60948);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 12th 
November, 2020:

Major General Henarath Hetti Arachchige Subashana 
Priyantha Kumara Senaratne, RSP USP psc (O/60948);

transfer to the sri lanka army 
regular (general) reserve

His Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army 
Regular (General) Reserve with effect from 12th November, 
2020:

Major General Henarath Hetti Arachchige Subashana 
Priyantha Kumara Senaratne, RSP USP psc (O/60948).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
06th October, 2020.

03-485/4
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No. 284 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (249).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer 
to the Sri Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve 

approved by His Excellency the President

Confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
confirmation of the undermentioned Senior Officer in the 
rank of Major General with effect from 03rd August, 2020:

Temporary Major General Akurana Appuhamilage 
Sudaththa Piyadarshi Thilakarathne, (O/61064);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 08th 
October, 2020:

Major General Akurana Appuhamilage Sudaththa 
Piyadarshi Thilakarathne, (O/61064);

transfer to the sri lanka army 
regular (general) reserve

His Excellency the President has approved the transfer 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army 
Regular (General) Reserve with effect from 08th October, 
2020:

Major General Akurana Appuhamilage Sudaththa 
Piyadarshi Thilakarathne, (O/61064).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
13th October, 2020.

03-485/5

No. 285 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (203-207).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer from the Regular 
Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 12th October, 
2020:

Brigadier Wanniarachchige Gamini Deepal 
Wanniarachchi, psc (O/60478).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/6

No. 286 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (203-207).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer from the Regular 
Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 20th October, 
2020:
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Brigadier Michael Richard Wanniarachchi, ato 
(O/60852).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/7

No. 287 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (290-294).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Senior Officer from the Regular 
Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 12th January, 
2021:

Brigadier Kodituwakku Arachchige Channa Hemantha 
Kodituwakku, IG (O/60581).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/8

No. 288 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (192-194).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by 
His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of the under mentioned Lady Officer in the 
rank of Major with effect from 23rd September, 2020:

Temporary Major Inoka Namali Weerasinghe, SLAGSC 
(O/66933);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Lady Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 24th 
September, 2020:

Major Inoka Namali Weerasinghe, SLAGSC (O/66933).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/9

No. 289 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (192-194).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by 
His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of the under mentioned Lady Officer in the 
rank of Major with effect from 23rd September, 2020:

Temporary Major Bamunu Arachchi Pathirannehelage 
Gayani Manjula Jayasekara, SLAGSC (O/66946);
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retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Lady Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 24th 
September, 2020:

Major Bamunu Arachchi Pathirannehelage Gayani 
Manjula Jayasekara, SLAGSC (O/66946).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/10

No. 290 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (192-194).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by 
His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of the under mentioned Lady Officer in the 
rank of Major with effect from 23rd September, 2020:

Temporary Major Weerakoon Walawwe Vindya 
Supeshala Kumarihami Weerakoon, SLAGSC (O/66960);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Lady Officer from the 
Regular Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 24th 
September, 2020:

Major Weerakoon Walawwe Vindya Supeshala 
Kumarihami Weerakoon, SLAGSC (O/66960).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/11

No. 291 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (203-207).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 01st November, 2020:

Major Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Pubudu Darshana 
Dissanayake, USP AATO SLAOC (O/64683).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/12

No. 292 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (295-299).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 09th April, 2021:

Major (Quartermaster) Don Sujeewa Pradeep Liyanage, 
USP SLE (O/66369).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/13
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No. 293 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (203-207).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 10th November, 2020:

Captain Kande Hewayalage Ajith Udaya Kumara 
Jayasinghe, SLE (O/66720).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/14

No. 294 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (290-294).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 31st January, 2021:

Captain Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Anurawansa 
Thennakoon, RWP RSP SLSR (O/67511).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/15

No. 295 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (290-294).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 22nd April, 2021:

Captain Wickramanayakage Thusitha Raj Kusumpriya 
Wickramanayaka, RWP SF (O/68416).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/16

No. 296 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (290-294).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 24th April, 2021:

Captain Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage Priyantha 
Ranasinghe, SLAMC (O/68333).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/17
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No. 297 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (290-294).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 21st May, 2021:

Captain Jayasundarage Sunil Rathnayaka Perera, VIR 
O/67693).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/18

No. 298 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (203-207).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 02nd November, 2020:

Captain (Quartermaster) Hannasgala Pitiyage Upali 
Abewickrama, USP SLEME (O/66394).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th August, 2020.

03-485/19

No. 299 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (295-299).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 01st January, 2021:

Captain (Quartermaster) Weerappulige Jayawardhana 
Rambanda USP SLE (O/69821).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/20

No. 300 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (295-299).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 15th February, 2021:

Captain (Quartermaster) Sunimal Ravi Jans Abesekara, 
GR (O/66225).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Rtd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/21
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No. 301 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (295-299).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 01st April, 2021:

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Ganegoda Vidanage Dilup 
Malinda Nuwan, MI (O/69788).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/22

No. 302 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/R/RET/20 (295-299).

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Regular Force of 
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 24th April, 2021:

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Malawara Arachchige Don 
Ajith Kumara Gunathilaka, RSP GW (O/66402).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/23

No. 303 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (169).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved 
by His Excellency the President

confirmation of rank

His Excellency the President has approved the 
Confirmation of Rank of the under mentioned Senior Officer 
in the rank of Colonel with effect from 29th January, 2021:

Temporary Colonel Senanayake Arachchige Leslie Ivan 
Perera (O/2914);

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the 
retirement of the undermentioned Senior Officer from 
the Sri Lanka Army Volunteer Force with effect from 30th 
January, 2021:

Colonel Senanayake Arachchige Leslie Ivan Perera, 
(O/2914).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/24

No. 304 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (164-168).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 29th March, 2021:
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Captain Prabhath Muthukumara Rathnage Upali 
Ranathunga, SLNG (O/8651).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/25

No. 305 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (164-168).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 01st April, 2021:

Captain Lansakara Mudiyanselage Sunil Gunathilake, 
SLE (O/6944).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/26

No. 306 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (164-168).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 01st April, 2021:

Captain Jayakodi Mohotti Appuhamillage Saman 
Kumara, SLNG (O/7017).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/27

No. 307 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (164-168).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 01st April, 2021:

Captain Hathurusingha Disanayakalage Nishshanka 
Weerathunga, SLLI (O/7469).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/28
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No. 308 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (164-168).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 01st April, 2021:

Captain Yapa Mudiyanselage Jayasena Bandara, GR 
(O/8594).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
12th August, 2020.

03-485/29

No. 309 of 2021

MOD/DEF/HRM/02/V/RET/20 (137).

Sri  Lanka  army—volunteer  force

Retirement approved by His Excellency the 
President

retirement

His Excellency the President has approved the retirement 
of the under mentioned Officer from the Sri Lanka Army 
Volunteer Force with effect from 17th January, 2021:

Captain (Quartermaster - General Duties) Gardiyewasam 
Loku Weligamage Ajantha Prasil, SLE (O/8493).

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kamal Gunaratne, 
	 WWV RWP RSP USP ndc psc,
	 Major General (Retd),
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th December, 2020.

03-485/30

Appointments &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers
No. 310 of 2021 

Appointment

It is hereby notified that, in terms of the Provisions of 
Article 55 (2) of the Constitution of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers has 
appointed Major General (Retd.) D. S. N. K. Senadeera, to 
the post of Director General of the Department of the Civil 
Security, on contract basis, for a period of two (02) years, 
with effect from 15th January, 2021.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

23rd February, 2021.

03-354/1

No. 311 of 2021 

Appointment

It is hereby notified that, in terms of the Provisions of 
Article 55 (2) of the Constitution of the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the Cabinet of Ministers 
has appointed Mr. A. H. M. L. Abeyrathna, Special Grade 
Officer of the Sri Lanka Administrative Service to the Post 
of Commissioner General of Agrarian Development, with 
effect from 01st February, 2021.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	 W. M. D. J. Fernando,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet of Ministers.

23rd February, 2021.

03-354/2
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No. 312 of 2021

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of Temporary Rank approved by the 
Commander of The Army

The undermentioned Officers to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain are approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

	 1.	T emporary Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Kasun Sankajaya Dissanayake SLE (O/70552) 25th 
December, 2017;

	 2.	T emporary Captain Waruna Ranmal Priyananda 
Weerasinghe Silva SLEME (O/70553) 25th 
December, 2017;

	 3.	T emporary Captain Wickramasinghelage Kasun 
Nimesha Gunarathna CES (O/70554) 25th December, 
2017;

	 4.	T emporary Captain Peduru Hewa Thishara Deshaan 
SLE (O/69589) 06th January, 2018;

	 5.	T emporary Captain Edirisinghe Mudiyanselage 
Nipuna Thejana Edirisinghe SLSC (O/69590) 06th 
January, 2018

	 6.	T emporary Captain	 Dambadeni Vidanalage Ayesh 
Dhanushka SLSR (O/69591)	06th January, 2018;

	 7.	T emporary Captain Warnakulasooriya Modara 
Kalupatabendige Devinda Rajitha Atapattu SLA 
(O/69592)	 06th January, 2018;

	 8.	T emporary Captain Wicramasinghe Alugolla 
Appuhamilage Ugeeshwara Subhashith 
Wicramasinghe SF (O/69595) 06th January, 2018;

	 9.	T emporary Captain	 Mohamed Imran Marikkar Ml 
(O/69596)	 06th January, 2018

	 10.	T emporary Captain Senavirathna Mudiyanselage 
Achintha Gimhana Senavirathna CR (O/69600) 06 
January, 2018;

	 11.	T emporary Captain	 Weerakonda Arachchige Ashen 
Kavinda SLAOC (O/69597) 06th January, 2018;

	 12.	T emporary Captain Arangalage Ruchira 
Madhushanka SLLI (O/69603) 06th January, 2018;

	 13.	T emporary Captain Goluwawatthe Gedara Supun 
Madhushanka CR (O/69604)	06th January, 2018

	 14.	T emporary Captain Mahathanthrilage Don Nuwan 
Chathuranga Wijerathna GR (O/69605) 06th 
January, 2018;

	 15.	T emporary Captain	 Katugampolage Aruna Ruwan 
Katugampola VIR (O/69606) 06th January, 2018;

	 16.	T emporary Captain Pallegama Thalawadam Gedara 
Jayalathge Irosh Asanka Vimukthi Munasighe 
SLCMP (O/69608) 06th January, 2018;

	 17.	 Temporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Thushitha 
Aravinda Herath VIR (O/69609) 06th January, 2018;

	 18.	T emporary Captain Panditha Hashan Samantha 
Chinthaka SLLI (O/69611) 06th January, 2018;

	 19.	T emporary Captain Walathara Arachchige 
Chathuranga Pradeep Madhusanka Perera GR 
(O/69612) 06th January, 2018;

	 20.	T emporary Captain	 Gayan Madhusanka Lakmal 
Kasthuriarachchi GW (O/69613) 06th January, 
2018;

	 21.	T emporary Captain	 Kandage Malaka Isurupriya 
Perera GW (O/69614) 06th January, 2018;

	 22.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Lakshitha 
Deshan Bandara SF (O/69615) 06th January, 2018;

	 23.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage 
Udagedara Iroshana Sachinthana Herath SLSR 
(O/69616) 06th January, 2018;

	 24.	T emporary Captain Dharmalankara Senavirathna 
Panditha Mohottalalage Yasodha Senavirathna 
GW (O/69617) 06th January, 2018;

	 25.	T emporary Captain	 Akaragalage Chathura Kasun 
Senarathne SLSR (O/69619) 06th January, 2018;

	 26.	T emporary Captain	 Jayalathge Ashen Shamenaka 
Amarasuriya SLLI (O/69620) 06th January, 2018;

	 27.	T emporary Captain	 Sanjaya Jayaba Bamunumulle 
Vithrana GR (O/69621) 06th January, 2018;

	 28.	T emporary Captain Warnakula Sooriyage Kosala 
Sanjeewa Warnakulasooriya MI (O/69705) 06th 
January, 2018

	 29.	T emporary Captain Balapu Waduge Namal Duminda 
Mendis SLAC (O/69588) 06th January, 2018;

	 30.	T emporary Captain Malkapuruge Tharindu 
Harshana Kuruppu SLA (O/69610) 06th January, 
2018

	 31.	T emporary Captain Senarath Kaluarachchilage 
Bimsara Lakmal Senarath SLE (O/70671) 06th 
January, 2018

	 32.	T emporary Captain	 Dehigahamula Kade Mahesh 
Prasanna Jayarathna SLAGSC (O/69601) 06th 
January, 2018;

	 33.	T emporary Captain Basnayaka Mudiyanselage 
Thusitha Bandara Basnayaka VIR (O/69618) 06th 
January, 2018; 

	 34.	T emporary Captain Warnakulasuriya Samith 
Methushka Fernando SLE (O/69446) 06th January, 
2018;

	 35.	T emporary Captain Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Anuradha Premalal SLEME (O/69593) 06th 
January, 2018;

	 36.	T emporary Captain Lelwala Hetti Sandun Perera 
SLSC (O/69738) 10th January, 2018;

Other Appointments &c.
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	 37.	T emporary Captain	 Kamalaweerage Dilan Salinda 
CES (O/69582) 21st February, 2018;

	 38.	T emporary Captain Loku Kankanamge Pasindu 
Dakshina Peris CES (O/69581) 23rd February, 2018;

	 39.	T emporary Captain Imihami Mudiyanselage Buddhika 
Chathuranga Ariyasinghe SLSC (O/70144) 26th 
February, 2018;

	 40.	T emporary Captain Nadeera Chathuranga Liyanage 
SLSC (O/70145) 26th February, 2018;

	 41.	T emporary Captain Welivita Vithanalage Don 
Saranga Welivita SLSC (O/70146) 26th February, 
2018;

	 42.	T emporary Captain Sinhala Pedige Ishara Udeni 
Dayarathna SLSC (O/69568) 27th February, 2018;

	 43.	T emporary Captain Kochchigoda Kankanamge Nisal 
Niwantha SLSR (O/69457) 12th March, 2018;

	 44.	T emporary Captain Thobawaka Gamage Dilshan 
Jayasanka SLEME (O/70779) 12th March, 2018;

	 45.	T emporary Captain Yangana Yasintha Kumara 
Meepagala MIR (O/69936) 12th March, 2018;

	 46.	T emporary Captain Buddhi Hameen Siriwardhana 
SLSR (O/69928) 12th March, 2018;

	 47.	T emporary Captain Singankutti Achchi 
Athukoralalage Abhitha Kanishka Athukorala 
SLEME (O/69952) 12th March, 2018;

	 48.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage 
Wedagedara Rasindhu Herath SLE (O/69960) 12th 
March, 2018

	 49.	T emporary Captain	 Viraj Sanka Kumara 
Samarawickrama SLAOC (O/69946) 12th March, 
2018;

	 50.	T emporary Captain Dumindu Sachinthana Panagoda 
SLSC (O/69919) 12th March, 2018;

	 51.	T emporary Captain Malwaththage Susanka 
Geethaka Peiris SLA (O/69933) 12th March, 2018;

	 52.	T emporary Captain Thelge Prabhath Anuradha 
Peiris CES (O/69917) 12th March, 2018;

	 53.	T emporary Captain Malnaida Marakkalage 
Chathuranga Mangala Kumara SLE (O/69932) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 54.	T emporary Captain	 Delgamuwa Mudiyansege 
Saliya Sandaruwan Delgamuwa SLSC (O/69920) 
12th March, 2018;

	 55.	T emporary Captain Eregamage Akila Kavinda 
Gamage SLSC (O/69895) 12th March, 2018;

	 56.	T emporary Captain Galkandha Arachchige Amalka 
Dilshan Galkandha SLLI (O/69911) 12th March, 
2018;

	 57.	T emporary Captain	 Udugamage Eranda Kushan 
Ranasinghe SLSR (O/69899)	12th March, 2018

	 58.	T emporary Captain	 Thilina Madushanka Lamahewa 
SLAGSC (O/69915)	12th March, 2018

	 59.	 Temporary Captain Don Pawulu Arachchige Sameera 
Lahiru Ranga Silva SLAGSC (O/69923) 12th March, 
2018;

	 60.	T emporary Captain	 Herath Mudiyanselage Amila 
Ruwan Kumara Herath GW (O/69958) 12th March, 
2018;

	 61.	T emporary Captain Waruna Viduranga 
Wickramasekara SLSR (O/69942) 12th March, 2018;

	 62.	T emporary Captain	 Herath Mudiyanselage Hashan 
Sanjeewa Herath GR (O/69961) 12th March, 2018;

	 63.	T emporary Captain Sasika Mayondi Iddagoda 
SLAGSC (O/69951)	12th March, 2018;

	 64.	T emporary Captain	 Herath Mudiyanselage Roshan 
Sandipa Herath SLE (O/69959) 12th March, 2018;

	 65.	T emporary Captain	 Konara Mudiyanselage Samudu 
Madhushanka Konara SLLI (O/69909) 12th March, 
2018;

	 66.	T emporary Captain	 Walikala Ralahamilage 
Menaka Bhasha Saranath Walikala VIR (O/69944)	
12th March, 2018;

	 67.	T emporary Captain Kathriarachchige Kushan 
Chanaka Ranga Kathriarachchi SLE (O/69902) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 68.	T emporary Captain	 Pitiye Gedara Hasitha Rumesh 
Dilhan Gunasinghe (O/69925) 12th March, 2018;

	 69.	T emporary Captain Manthrividanalage Hiran Iresh 
Silva VIR (O/69930) 12th March, 2018;

	 70.	T emporary Captain	 Meegahapolage Don Pankaja  
Iroshana Meegahapola SLA (O/69935) 12th March, 
2018;

	 71.	T emporary Captain	 Hasith Dilshan Ranasighe CES 
(O/69956) 12th March, 2018;

	 72.	T emporary Captain Lakshitha Madhushanka 
Suduwalikanda CR (O/69939) 12th March, 2018;

	 73.	T emporary Captain	 Widyarathna Mudiyanselage 
Aman Nayanajith Widyarathna SLEME (O/69945) 
12th March, 2018;

	 74.	T emporary Captain	 Kavindu Geenath Jayasinghe 
Karunarathna VIR (O/69905) 12th March, 2018;

	 75.	T emporary Captain Sajith Thusinidu Ilesinghe 
SLAGSC (O/69949)	12th March, 2018;

	 76.	T emporary Captain	 Ramanayaka Arachchige Don 
Menaka Dulanga Senavirathna SLE (O/69938) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 77.	T emporary Captain	 Ambagala Ralalage Janitha 
Prabhash Ambagala MI (O/69894) 12th March, 
2018;

	 78.	T emporary Captain Senanayake Haputhanthrige 
Kasun Dhanushka Senanayake SLAC (O/69955) 
12th March, 2018;

	 79.	T emporary Captain	 Podapelage Chameera Lakmal 
Subharathna GR (O/69927) 12th March, 2018;
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	 80.	T emporary Captain Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Nalinda Kosala Bandara Dissanayake SLAGSC 
(O/69901) 12th March, 2018;

	 81.	T emporary Captain Abeysekarage Sameera 
Madushan Abeysekara CES (O/69893) 12th March, 
2018;

	 82.	T emporary Captain Kodisinghe Arachchilage Nalin 
Dhananjaya Kodisinghe SLSR (O/69908) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 83.	T emporary Captain Kusal Giyantha Munasinghe 
MIR (O/69907) 12th March, 2018;

	 84.	T emporary Captain Puwakdandawe Charith Sameera 
Weerasinghe SLEME (O/69891) 12th March, 2018;

	 85.	T emporary Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Lahiru Prabath Dissanayake CES (O/69918) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 86.	T emporary Captain Weerasinghe Ruwan Chamara 
Weerasinghe SLAGSC (O/69947) 12th March, 2018;

	 87.	T emporary Captain	 Dodangodage Don Geeth 
Rasanjana Karunarathna SLSC (O/69921) 12th 
March, 2018;

	 88.	T emporary Captain Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Deshani Sriyanka Ekanayake SLCMP (O/69900) 
12th March, 2018;

	 89.	T emporary Captain Mohamad Thawfik Rinsy Roshan 
SLEME (O/70778) 12th March, 2018;

	 90.	T emporary Captain Lindamulage Himal Madhusanka 
Chandrasiri SLASC (O/69940) 12th March, 2018;

	 91.	T emporary Captain Hettithanthiri Patabandige Don 
Malith Dhanushka Gunasekara SLSC (O/69957) 
12th March, 2018

	 92.	T emporary Captain Pamith Sujan Rathnayake CES 
(O/69924) 12th March, 2018;

	 93.	T emporary Captain Gunarathna Adikari 
Mudiyanselage Nuwan Tharaka Adikari SLE 
(O/69912) 12th March, 2018;

	 94.	T emporary Captain Benthara Habakkalage Prabath 
Duminda Lilarathne CES (O/69929) 12th March, 
2018;

	 95.	T emporary Captain Gabbalage Tharaka 
Wickramasinghe SLEME (O/69910) 12th March, 
2018;

	 96.	T emporary Captain Chathura Punsara Kithulgoda 
CES (O/69913) 12th March, 2018;

	 97.	T emporary Captain Kalana Hakmana Wijesinghe 
SLEME (O/70074) 12th March, 2018;

	 98.	T emporary Captain Sipkadu Aathony Dulanja 
Dinushan Wimalasooriya GR (O/69953) 12th March, 
2018;

	 99.	T emporary Captain Jayapathma Herath 
Mudiyanselage Nisal Tharaka Jayapathma VIR 
(O/69914) 12th March, 2018;

	100.	T emporary Captain	 Udagama Muhandiramlage 
Wiraj Muditha Mahakumara GW (O/69898) 12th 
March, 2018;

	101.	T emporary Captain Hettiarachchige Ranga 
Madhujith CES (O/69622) 26th April, 2018;

	102.	T emporary Captain Jayaweera Mudiyanselage 
Gihan Eranga Pathma Kumara Jayaweera SLCMP 
(O/68926) 01st June, 2018;

	103.	T emporary Captain Walpola Dewage Eranda 
Dushan Prabhath Katupitiya SLLI (O/69943) 01st 
June, 2018;

	104.	T emporary Captain Ahangama Egodage Sameera 
Chathuranga GW(O/70439) 27th June, 2018;

	105.	T emporary Captain Alawaththe Devi Rusiru Bandara 
Silva SLEME (O/70555) 27th June, 2018;

	106.	T emporary Captain Hiripitiyalage Dananjaya 
Madusanka Hiripitiya CES (O/70557) 27th June, 
2018;

	107.	T emporary Captain	 Henage Don Gayan Priyankara 
VIR (O/70438) 27th June, 2018;

	108.	T emporary Captain Udawaththa Kankanamge 
Roshan Chaminda Udawatta CES (O/69648) 07th 
July, 2018;

	109.	T emporary Captain	 Ranasinghe Arachchige Kalpa 
Lakmal Ranasinghe SLAGSC (O/69937) 07th July, 
2018;

	110.	T emporary Captain	 Pala Mandadige Sumiyuru 
Yashan Fernando SF (O/70219) 07th July, 2018;

	111.	T emporary Captain	 Bamunu Arachchi Pathiranage 
Doneshiyan Abishek Bamunuarachchi SLLI 
(O/69649) 07th July, 2018;

	112.	T emporary Captain Mahadhura Sameera Madhushan 
Senarathne SLE (O/69650) 07th July, 2018;

	113.	T emporary Captain	 Pamunuwe Parambe Gedara 
Madhushan Priyankara Bandara Ranasinghe SLSC 
(O/69653) 07th July, 2018;

	114.	T emporary Captain	 Idam Gedara Kasun Chamara 
Bandara CR (O/69654) 07th July, 2018;

	115.	T emporary Captain Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Lakmal Madhusanka Bandara MIR (O/69656) 07th 
July, 2018;

	116.	T emporary Captain Lankadhikari Mudiyanselage 
Madusanka Damith Dayan Weerathunge SLEME 
(O/69657) 07th July, 2018;

	117.	T emporary Captain Singankutti Achchi 
Athukoralalage Don Tishan Pieiris SF (O/69659) 
07th July, 2018;

	118.	T emporary Captain	 Hettigamage Nuwan Indika 
Hettigamage GR (O/69661) 07th July, 2018;

	119.	T emporary Captain	 Pahala Kapuralalage Dileepa 
Madhushan Rupasinghe SLAC (O/69663) 07th July, 
2018;
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	120.	T emporary Captain Oshan Madushanka 
Thantiriwaththa GW (O/69668) 07th July, 2018;

	121.	T emporary Captain	 Kumarage Tharindhu Malaka 
Kumarage CR (O/69670) 07th July, 2018

	122.	T emporary Captain Gallage Eranga Priyashantha 
Gallage VIR (O/69671) 07th July, 2018;

	123.	T emporary Captain	 Peladage Kushan Tharanga 
Peladage SLLI (O/69672) 07th July, 2018;

	124.	T emporary Captain Adhikari Mudiyanselage Nalinda 
Jayalath Adhikari GR (O/69673) 07th July, 2018;

	125.	T emporary Captain	 Hewa Kankanamge Iresha 
Karunasekara GR (O/69675) 07th July, 2018;

	126.	T emporary Captain Wickramasinghe Senanayake 
Appuhamilage Rasika Harshana Senanayake MIR 
(O/69677) 07th July, 2018;

	127.	T emporary Captain Nadith Kasunjith Gamagedara 
VIR (O/69678) 07th July, 2018;

	128.	T emporary Captain Koggala Wijesinghe Arachchige 
Pubudhu Kosala Lankeshwara Wijesinghe SF 
(O/69680) 07th July, 2018;

	129.	T emporary Captain	 Hapuarachchige Udesh Sameera 
Hapuarachchi SLLI (O/69681) 07th July, 2018;

	130.	T emporary Captain	 Hewa Kolambage Udayanga 
Chathura Kolambage SLSR (O/69686) 07th July, 
2018;

	131.	T emporary Captain Senavirathna Wasala 
Mudiyanselage Pamoda Rusiru Udhalagama SLE 
(O/69687) 07th July, 2018;

	132.	T emporary Captain Weththasinghage Don 
Dhanushka Ruwan Kumara Dias VIR (O/69688) 07th 
July, 2018

	133.	T emporary Captain Ekanayake Mudiyanselage 
Darshana Ekanayake SLLI (O/69689)	 07th July, 
2018;

	134.	T emporary Captain Lokuliyana Vishwa 
Madhubhashana Kumara Lokuliyana MI (O/69692) 
07th July, 2018;

	135.	T emporary Captain	 Konara Mudiyanselage Supun 
Lakmal Bandara SLSR (O/69693) 07th July, 2018;

	136.	T emporary Captain Marasinghe Mudiyanselage 
Manori Kaushalya Marasinghe SLAWC (O/69418) 
07th July, 2018;

	137.	T emporary Captain Mathota Ralalage Dilani 
Purnika SLAWC (O/69419) 07th July, 2018;

	138.	T emporary Captain	 Gurugamage Ashani Chathurika 
Kithsiri SLAWC (O/69420) 07th July, 2018;

	139.	T emporary Captain	 Wicramasinghe Mudiyanselage 
Bhagya Subhashani Wickramasinghe SLAWC 
(O/69421) 07th July, 2018;

	140.	T emporary Captain Atuwegedara Ganhewage 
Dilshan Saranga Ganhewage SLAOC (O/69655) 
07th July, 2018;

	141.	T emporary Captain	 Wanninayaka Mudiyanselage 
Upul Chandrakantha Bandara SLCMP (O/69662) 
07th July, 2018;

	142.	T emporary Captain	 Jayaneththi Koralage Yohan 
Sumedha Jayaneththi GR (O/69682) 07th July, 2018;

	143.	T emporary Captain	 Wasuru Gihantha Senarathna 
GW (O/69691) 07th July, 2018;

	144.	T emporary Captain Gamameda Liyana Appuhamilage 
Nishantha Pushpakumara SLSR (0/69660) 07th July, 
2018;

	145.	T emporary Captain	 Kumara Gunapalage Janitha 
Dilum Deniyal SLA (O/69665) 07th July, 2018;

	146.	T emporary Captain	 Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Asanga Priyasad Ranasinghe SLLI (0/69666) 07th 
July, 2018;

	147.	T emporary Captain	 Yatinuwara Gedara Deepa Sri 
Wickkramanwitha SLSR (O/69669) 07th July, 2018;

	148.	T emporary Captain Hewa Walimunige Gayan 
Sanjeewa Walimunige GW (O/69674) 07th July, 
2018;

	149.	T emporary Captain	 Bibile Mulle Gedara Rangana 
Chathura Bandara VIR (O/69679) 07th July, 2018;

	150.	T emporary Captain	 Herath Mudiyanselage Prasad 
Kithsiri Nuwan Herath GR (O/69684) 07th July, 
2018;

	151.	T emporary Captain Anthonidura Tharindu 
Maduranga Silva VIR (O/69690) 07th July, 2018;

	152.	T emporary Captain Disanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Sajith Sampath Karunanayake GR (O/69696)  07th 
July, 2018;

	153.	T emporary Captain Thilini Rangika Wickramarachchi 
SLAWC (O/69422) 07th July, 2018;

	154.	T emporary Captain Kithulgodage Sadesh Asiri 
Kithulgoda VIR (O/69694) 07th July, 2018;

	155.	T emporary Captain Weerakoon Mudiyanselage 
Lakmie Prabhanganie Weerakoon CES (O/69701) 
11th July, 2018;

	156.	T emporary Captain Vidana Herath Gedara Nimesh 
Rangana Janasinghe CES (O/69702) 11th July, 2018;

	157.	T emporary Captain Sudirikku Hennadige Kithvin 
Senal CES (O/69699) 11th July, 2018;

	158.	T emporary Captain Kaluweda Doorayalage Ushan 
Chamara Aravinda VIR (O/68601) 12th July, 2018;

	159.	T emporary Captain Ilanga Weerage Lakshitha 
Ruwan Karunathilake SF (O/68602) 12th July, 2018;

	160.	T emporary Captain Koralegama Gedara Pathirage 
Kosala Sampath SLEME (O/69584) 12th July, 2018;

	161.	T emporary Captain Magedara Vithanage Kasun 
Eranga GW (0/68052) 12th July, 2018;

	162.	T emporary Captain Bindu Hewage Dayal Anjana 
SLAGSC (O/69579) 12th July, 2018;

	163.	T emporary Captain Abeysinghe Mudiyanselage 
Lasantha Kulathilake SLE (O/68629) 12th July, 
2018;
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	164.	T emporary Captain Herath Rajakaruna Athapaththu 
Wasala Mudiyanselage Ishara Akalanka Niyangoda 
MI (O/66143) 12th July, 2018;

	165.	T emporary Captain Ponarasa Arachchige Amila 
Indrajith Arachchige SLAOC (O/69926) 17th July, 
2018

	166.	T emporary Captain Wedin Pullige Thasith Harinda 
Pathirana SLSC (O/69737) 01st September, 2018;

	167.	T emporary Captain Sandun Harsha Kumara 
Weerasinghe CES (O/69950)	12th September, 2018;

	168.	T emporary Captain Abeysuriya Patabandige Lahiru 
Madushanka SLSC (O/70239) 31st December,	2018;

	169.	T emporary Captain Thalduwa Lekamlage Lahiru 
Samadi SLSC (O/70240) 31st December, 2018;

	170.	T emporary Captain Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Chanaka Upendra Lankanath Dissanayake CES 
(O/70393) 02nd January, 2019;

	171.	T emporary Captain Karunakalage Pramodya Sajith 
Hemachandra de Silva SLAC (O/70220) 10th 
January, 2019;

172. Temporary Captain Salpadoru Mannage Nuwan 
Maduranga Mannage MIR (O/70398) 10th January, 
2019;

	173.	T emporary Captain Kanagarathnam Anojan CES 
(O/69744) 10th January, 2019;

	174.	T emporary Captain Don Kalindhu Pramod 
Wicramasinghe Jayasekara CR (O/69746) 10th 
January, 2019;

	175.	T emporary Captain  Kondasinghe Abharanalage 
Samudra Nilupul Kondasinghe SLASC (O/69749) 
10th January, 2019;

	176.	T emporary Captain Aththanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Pradeep Madhuranga Abeysinghe SLAGSC 
(O/69753) 10th January, 2019;

	177.	T emporary Captain Thuiya Gamhewa Nithin Kirula 
de Silva SLSR (O/69754) 10th January, 2019;

	178.	T emporary Captain Imihami Mudiyanselage Piyum 
Madhusanka Mudiyanse SLLI (O/69755) 10th 
January, 2019;

	179.	T emporary Captain Ekenayake Rajapaksha Wasala 
Mudiyanselage Rajitha Bandara Ekenayake SLSR 
(O/69756) 10th January, 2019;

	180.	T emporary Captain Herath Mudiyanselage Sumedha 
Kumara Premarathna GR (O/69759) 10th January, 
2019;

	181.	T emporary Captain Gajanayake Mudiyanselage 
Aruna Indika Bandara Gajanayake SLCMP 
(O/69761) 10th January, 2019;

	182.	T emporary Captain Kalinga Madhura Kushan de 
Silva SLLI (O/69763) 10th January, 2019;

	183.	T emporary Captain Charith Randika Samarasinghe 
GW (O/69764) 10th January, 2019

	184.	T emporary Captain Galbada Payagalage Ruchira 
Saminda Amarajeewa GW (0/69767) 10th January, 
2019;

	185.	T emporary Captain Hapuarachchige Lakshitha Ishan 
Karunarathna SLLI (O/69768) 10th January, 2019;

	186.	T emporary Captain Tennakoon Mudiyanselage 
Malvila Padmakumara Bandara Tennakoon VIR 
(0/69770) 10th January, 2019;

	187.	T emporary Captain Singappuly Arachchilage Saumya 
Pivithuru Rathnayaka MI (O/69745) 10th January, 
2019;

	188.	T emporary Captain Chamith Devinda Meemeduma 
MIR (O/69748) 10th January, 2019;

	189.	T emporary Captain Kelum Arakkalage Pulasthi 
Edward Thejan Fernando SLSR (O/69762) 10th 
January, 2019;

	190.	T emporary Captain Budhgamuwa Mudiyanselage 
Tharuksha Dasun Ridmika Perera SLE (O/69750) 
10th January, 2019;

	191.	T emporary Captain Maha Arachchilage Sudesh 
Thilanka Abeyrathne VIR (0/69757) 10th January, 
2019;

	192.	T emporary Captain Pathirage Tharaka Priyadarshana 
Sampath Perera GR (O/69758) 10th January, 2019;

	193.	T emporary Captain	 Pannala Gedara Gihan Prasad 
Lakmal Piyasena Pannala VIR (O/69760) 10th 
January, 2019;

	194.	T emporary Captain Adheesha Kaushan Handunmulla 
SLAC (O/69766) 10th January, 2019.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
02nd December, 2020.

03-469/1

No. 313 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers promotion to the 
rank of Captain are approved with effect from 06th April, 
2020:
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	 1.	 Lieutenant Kekulandala Liyanage Sathira Lakmal 
Kekulandala SLAMC (O/70740);

	 2.	 Lieutenant Pilana Gamage Aparajitha Kaushalya 
SLAMC (O/70729);

	 3.	 Lieutenant Sudhara Eranda Yaggaha Ruhunage 
SLAMC (O/70744);

	 4.	 Lieutenant Udubokke Rarhnayakage Supun Chaminda 
Rathnayake SLAMC (O/70737);

	 5.	 Lieutenant Jayamaha Hitihamilage Prasad Sanjeewa 
Dharmarathna SLAMC (O/70753);

	 6.	 Lieutenant Wedige Ranitha Peshana Fernando 
SLAMC (O/70739);

	 7.	 Lieutenant Jayakodige Don Pramod Madushan 
Jayakody SLAMC (O/70750);

	 8.	 Lieutenant Jayawardhanage Thisara Muthunuwan 
SLAMC (O/70730);

	 9.	 Lieutenant Habarakadage Don Sajitha Gihan Perera 
SLAMC (O/70757);

	 10.	 Lieutenant Senarath Bandaralage Jayali Yasodhara 
Udulabandara SLAMC (O/70741);

	 11.	 Lieutenant Suduwa Dewage Dinuka Nuwan 
Maduranga Sampath Dewage SLAMC (O/70733);

	 12.	 Lieutenant Hettiarachchige Don Chamika Sahan 
Hettiarachchi SLAMC (O/70747);

	 13.	 Lieutenant Chandradhipathiyalage Dulaj Heshan 
Premathilaka SLAMC (O/70743);

	 14.	 Lieutenant Daham Gehan Manoj Denipitiya SLAMC 
(O/68980);

	 15.	 Lieutenant Navaratnam Ariyaratnam Harigajan 
SLAMC (O/68987);

	 16.	 Lieutenant Sachith Abeywickrama SLAMC 
(O/70386).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/2

	

No. 314 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers promotion to the 
rank of Captain is approved with effect from 16th September, 
2020:

	 1.	 Lieutenant Uthum Mandira Colambage SLAMC 
(O/71052);

	 2.	 Lieutenant	 Mannamarakkalage Lashane Malintha 
Cooray SLAMC (O/71030);

	 3.	 Lieutenant	 Kolonnage Don Dinuka Geethanjana 
Gunawansa SLAMC (O/71031);

	 4.	 Lieutenant	 Godakanda Kankanamge Poornajith 
Madushanka Godakanda SLAMC (O/71045);

	 5.	 Lieutenant	 Ilankoan Mudiyanselage Gayanthika 
Piumalee Wickramasinhe SLAMC (O/71057);

	 6.	 Lieutenant	 Liyadipitiya Rathnayake Mudiyanselage 
Tharindu Lakshan Liyadipitiya SLAMC (O/71049);

	 7.	 Lieutenant	 Malinda Gihan Handunge SLAMC 
(O/71035);

	 8.	 Lieutenant Ekanayake Weerasekara Wasala 
Mudiyanselage Shakila Bandara Gangoda SLAMC 
(O/71040);

	 9.	 Lieutenant Waruna Iddamalgoda SLAMC (0/71042)
	 10.	L ieutenant	Chanda Kushlan Ekanayake SLAMC 

(O/71048);
	 11.	 Lieutenant Ekanayaka Arachchige Sushan Ekanayake 

SLAMC (O/71050);
	 12.	 Lieutenant Vindaya Kumari Wijewickrama SLAMC 

(O/71053);
	 13.	 Lieutenant Ponsuge Udan Kaushalya Tissera SLAMC 

(O/71044);
	 14.	 Lieutenant Pathirajage Tharuka Deemantha 

Harischanadra SLAMC (O/71032);
	 15.	 Lieutenant	 Wijayalath Pathiranage Supun Chamara 

Pathirathna SLAMC (O/71043);
	 16.	 Lieutenant	 Malsha Nirmani Ariyarathna SLAMC 

(O/71055);
	 17.	 Lieutenant Wanigasooriya Arachchige Piyalka 

Sanusha Perera SLAMC (O/71054);
	 18.	 Lieutenant Satharasinhage Namal Satharasinghe 

SLAMC (O/71041);
	 19.	 Lieutenant Widanage kavindu Dilshan Madusanka 

Widange SLAMC (O/71046);
	 20.	 Lieutenant Nipuna Chathuranga Malliyawadu 

SLAMC (O/71039);
	 21.	 Lieutenant Thebuwana Acharige Don Harith Heshan 

Eranga Thebuwana SLAMC (O/71037).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
31st January, 2021.

03-469/3
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No. 315 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary Ranks approved by 
the Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect from the 
dates stated against their names;

	 1.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Galkanda 
Kankanamalage Devapriya Nishshanka Wijerathne 
CR (O/66207) 29th October, 2013;

	 2.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Sarath Appuge 
Senarathne SLE (0/66388) 29th October, 2013;

	 3.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Kedangamuwe 
Gedara Sisira Kumara Nandasiri USP SLE 
(O/67037)	 09th September, 2014;

	 4.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Karunarathnage 
Chandra Siril Premarathne SLSR (O/67039) 09th 
September,	2014;

	 5.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Galabada 
Payagalage Upali SLSR (O/67054) 09th September, 
2014

	 6.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Muhandiramlage 
Pathma Kumara Chandarasiri SLAC (O/67555) 
22nd June, 2015;

	 7.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Vithanage 
Aruna Pawansiri GR (0/67561) 22nd June, 2015;

	 8.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Ranasinghe 
Arachchilage Kamilan Rejinold Ranasinghe SLSR 
(O/67573) 22nd June, 2015;

	 9.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Ethugalage 
Jackson Kumarasinghe SLA (O/67575) 22nd June, 
2015;

	 10.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Weragama 
Imiyalage Chandana Sukith Ariyarathna USP GW 
(O/67581) 22nd June, 2015;

	 11.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Samara 
Manannalage Sarath Ananda Samaranayake RWP 
RSP GW (O/67584) 22nd June, 2015;

	 12.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Sri Narayana 
Dharmakeerthi Abekoon Wasala Mudiyanselage 
Monty Senevirathne SLSC (O/67592) 22nd June,  
2015; 

	 13.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Balaya Dewage 
Lianal Thissa Wijewardhana GR (O/67601) 22nd 
June, 2015;

	 14.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Menerypitinaradalage 
Nihal Chandrapala VIR (O/67621) 22nd June, 2015;

	 15.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Rathnayaka 
Mudiyanselage Mangala Rathnayaka GW (O/67596) 
22nd June, 2015;

	 16.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Lewwendage 
Sarath Kumara USP VIR (O/68066) 08th May, 2016;

	 17.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Mada Gedara 
Nandesiri GR (O/68075) 08th May, 2016;

	 18.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Don Gamini 
Weerakoon USP VIR (O/68083) 08th May, 2016;

	 19.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Atukorala 
Archchilaga Gamini SLSR (O/68085) 08th May, 
2016;

	 20.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Rajapakshage 
Senevirathne SLSR (O/68088) 08th May, 2016;

	 21.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Karunawantha 
Mudiyanselage Jayathilake GR (O/67608) 01st June, 
2016.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
02nd December, 2020.

03-469/4

No. 316 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Confirmation of Temporary Ranks approved by 
the Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers to be confirmed in the rank 
of Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect from the 
dates stated against their names:

	 1.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Koggala 
Liyanage Aruna Shantha De Silva SLE (O/68728) 
20th May, 2017;

	 2.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Ganvidanelage 
Don Priyantha CR (O/68729) 20th May, 2017;

	 3.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Bothalayalage 
Upali Ananda USP SLAOC (O/68730) 20th May, 
2017;

	 4.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Muthubandage 
Sisira Anuruddha VIR (O/68731) 20th May, 2017;

	 5.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Nalinda Supun 
Kumara Waladeniya SLASC (O/68735) 20th May, 
2017;
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	 6.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Kumarawadu 
Anil Jayalath VIR (O/68736) 20th May, 2017;

	 7.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Jayasundara 
Mudiyanselage Egoda Palle Gedara Jayasundara 
USP SLA (O/68739) 20th May, 2017;

	 8.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Wijekoon Herath 
Mudiyanselage Thilakarathne Banda CES (O/68740) 
20th May, 2017;

	 9.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Bandula Premachandra Ranasinghe 
SLAGSC (O/68741) 20th May, 2017;

	 10.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Vithanage Don 
Saman Chaaminda SLA (O/68744) 20th May, 2017;

	 11.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Hiyandala 
Gorok Garawe Bandara USP SLSR (O/68745) 20th 
May, 2017;

	 12.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Ilukkumbura 
Mudiyanselage Senarath Bandara USP SLEME 
(O/68746) 20th May, 2017;

	 13.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Napana 
Ganithage Kularathne GW (O/68747) 20th May, 
2017;

	 14.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Wickramasinghe 
Mudiyanselage Susantha Wickramasinghe MIR 
(O/68749) 20th May, 2017;

	 15.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Kande Gedara 
Premasiri SLLI (O/68752) 20th May, 2017

	 16.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Nath Dilantha 
Ambepitiya USP SLAMC (O/69157) 19th May, 2018;

	 17.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Halneththi Lai 
Nishantha Perera SLAMC (O/69158) 19th May, 
2018;

	 18.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Sanjeewa Anil 
Kumara Lokuhetti SLAMC (O/69159) 19th May, 
2018;

	 19.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Rajapaksha 
Pedige Neel Rajapaksha USP SLAMC (O/69160) 
19th May, 2018;

	 20.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Dassanayaka 
Mudiyanselage Sarath Bandaranayake USP 
SLAMC (O/69161) 19th May, 2018;

	 21.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Lal Priyantha 
Heenetigala USP SLAMC (O/69163) 19th May, 
2018;

	 22.	T emporary Captain  (Quartermaster) Hewa Jayalathge 
Jackson Jayalath USP SLAOC (O/69205) 19th May, 
2018;

	 23.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Yapa Mudiyanselage 
Pahala Walawwe Mugalan Asela Bandara 
Madawela CR (O/69207) 19th May, 2018;

	 24.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Abedeera 
Gunarathna Patabendige Anil Kumara SLCMP 
(O/69208) 19th May, 2018;

	 25.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Herath 
Mudiyanselage Nalin Prasanna SLEME (O/69209) 
19th May, 2018;

	 26.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Angammana 
Rathnapanditha Kumarasiri Diwakara Lokugamage 
Priya Sumal Niroshan de Silva SLEME (O/69212) 
19th May, 2018;

	 27.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Mahagoda 
Gamage Ranjith Lal GR (O/68755) 19th May, 2018;

	 28.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Waththege Ajith 
Priyankara GW (O/69219) 19th May, 2018;

	 29.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Mampitiya 
Arachchige Anil Ranjith USP SLAMC (O/69222) 
19th May, 2018;

	 30.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Gatenewatte 
Gedara Arambe Gedara Jayarathne RSP USP VIR 
(O/69223) 19th May, 2018;

	 31.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster  Muthuwadurayalage 
Amarasinghe MIR (O/69218) 19th May, 2018;

	 32.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Karolis 
Appuhamige Nilmini Chandrasekara USP SLAMC 
(O/69227)	 19th May, 2018;

	 33.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Weerasinhage 
Thilakarathna SLAMC (O/69547) 19th May, 2018;

	 34.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Thota Hewage 
Ranjith USP SLA (O/69232)	19th May, 2018;

	 35.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Kehelkadu 
Witharna Arachchilage Sampath Deshappriya 
Jayawardhana USP SLAOC (O/69237) 19th May, 
2018;

	 36.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster)	 Sudu Hakuru 
Dewayalage Ariyasiri SLSC (O/69241) 19th May, 
2018;

	 37.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Rajapaksha 
Walimuni Mudiyanselage Ajantha RSP SF (O/66229) 
20th May, 2018;

	 38.	T emporary Captain (Quartermaster) Udarata 
Ralalage Jayasundara USP GW (O/67049) 20th 
May, 2018.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
07th December, 2020.

03-469/5
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No. 317 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of the undermentioned Officers’ to the rank 
of Temporary Captain is approved with effect from the dates 
stated against their names:

	 1.	 Lieutenant	 Pakkiyaraja Wijeram CES (O/70771) 
30th August, 2020;

	 2.	 Lieutenant	 Hidella Arachchige Raminda Lakshan 
Hidellaarchchi SLE (O/70399) 11th September, 
2020;

	 3.	 Lieutenant	 Mellawa Thanthreege Nadeera Koshila 
Perera SLLI (O/70400) 11th September, 2020;

	 4.	 Lieutenant	 Wijerathna Mudiyanselage Vishwa 
Prakash Buddika Wijerathne SLA (O/70401) 11th 
September, 2020;

	 5.	 Lieutenant	 Palanage Kavinda Gayum Baddrajith 
Palanage SLSR (O/70402) 11th September, 2020;

	 6.	 Lieutenant	 Kalogaha Thenne Gedara Sajith 
Pushpa Kumara Jayathilaka SLAC (O/70403) 11th 
September, 2020;

	 7.	 Lieutenant	 Maragngna Eranga Lakshan 
Gunawardhana SLA (O/70404) 11th September, 
2020;

	 8.	 Lieutenant	 Wellawatta Mudiyanselage Upali 
Eranda Wellawatta VIR (O/70405) 11th September, 
2020;

	 9.	 Lieutenant	 Kothalawalage Ramesh Maduranga 
Kothalawala MI (O/70407) 11th September, 2020;

	 10.	 Lieutenant	 Pussalamankada Mudiyanselage 
Buddika Manoj Dhanawansha SLCMP (O/70408) 
11th September, 2020;

	 11.	 Lieutenant Theththuwagedara Haputhanthrige 
Lahiru Rangajeewa Haputhanthri SLSR (0/70413) 
11th September, 2020;

	 12.	 Lieutenant	 Kankanige Don Duranga Madushan 
Kankanige VIR (O/70414) 11th September, 2020;

	 13.	 Lieutenant	 Lesthurage Mewan Ariyarathna SLLI 
(O/70415)	 11th September, 2020;

	 14.	 Lieutenant	 Yatagama Gamage Buddika Sudharshana 
Gamage CR (O/70416) 11th September, 2020;

	 15.	 Lieutenant	 Pathiraja Dewage Rivindu Udayantha 
Pathiraja SLLI (O/70419) 11th September, 2020;

	 16.	 Lieutenant	 Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Duminda 
Sampath Bandara Ekanayake GR (O/70420) 11th 
September, 2020;

	 17.	 Lieutenant Dapana Durage Kasun Buddika 
Weerasinghe GW (O/70421) 11th September, 2020;

	 18.	 Lieutenant Palihawadana Arachchige Ranith 
Dulanjana Perera SLSC (O/70422) 11th September, 
2020;

	 19.	 Lieutenant Pula Yaddessalage Lahiru Kelum Yapa 
VIR (O/70423) 11th September, 2020;

	 20.	 Lieutenant Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Gamagedara 
Prasanna Bandara Weerakoon SLLI (O/70431)

	 21.	 Lieutenant Tharindu Lakshan Manawadu GR 
(O/70433) 11th September, 2020;

	 22.	 Lieutenant Madurapperumage Sumuduni Hansika 
Perera SLAWC (O/70066) 11th September, 2020;

	 23.	 Lieutenant Waduge Damith Sakuntha Ranasinghe 
SLSC (O/70269) 11th September, 2020.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
01st September, 2020.

03-469/6

No. 318 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of undermentioned Officers to the rank 
of Temporary Captain is approved with effect from 11th 
September, 2020:

	 1.	 Lieutenant Basnayake Mudiyanselage Dulanga 
Pulasthi Basnayake VIR (O/70628);

	 2.	 Lieutenant Yakdehi Kandage Chathuranga 
Kaushalya Costa GR (O/70629);

	 3.	 Lieutenant Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Gayan Amila 
Thennakoon GR (O/70639);

	 4.	 Lieutenant Balasooriya Arachchilage Madhuranga 
Balasooriya CR (O/70648);

	 5.	 Lieutenant Kulappu Thantirige Malith Chathuranga 
Gunasinhe GW (O/70650);



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.03.2021 489

	 6.	 Lieutenant Thilina Prageeth Kumara Bopitiya SLSR 
(O/70851).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
12th September, 2020.

03-469/7 

No. 319 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of undermentioned Officer to the rank 
of Temporary Captain is approved with effect from 01st 
October, 2020:	

Lieutenant Hettiarachchige Chanaka Maduranga 
SLSC (O/70246).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/8

No. 320 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of the undermentioned Officers to the rank 
of Temporary Captain is approved with effect from the  dates 
stated against their names: 

	 1.	 Lieutenant Kuda Kotunnage Rohan Tharanga 
Dissanayaka CES (O/70791) 03rd January, 2021;

	 2.	 Lieutenant Weragoda Gamage Dona Nadeesha 
Sanduni Weragoda MI (0/70052) 13th February, 
2021;

	 3.	 Lieutenant Rajasingha Mudiyanselage Ajithge 
Shanika Pushpakumari Rajasinghe SLCMP (O/70053) 
13th February 2021.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/9

No. 321 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of the undermentioned Officers to the rank 
of Temporary Captain is approved with effect from 13th 
February, 2021:

	 1.	 Lieutenant Serasinghe Wijesekara Pathiranage 
Kasun Sameera Serasinghe GW (O/70411);

	 2.	 Lieutenant Athauda Arachchige Charith Dewanmini 
Athauda SF (O/70412).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc MPhil,
	 General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
18th February, 2021.

03-469/10



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.03.2021
490

No. 322 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers promotion to the rank of 
Temporary Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect 
from the dates stated against their names:

	 1.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Senarath Gunasekara 
Vidana Ralalage Don Shantha Viraj Gunasekara 
SLEME (O/68742) 20th May, 2017;

	 2.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Rajapaksha Gedara 
Aruna Desappriya Rajapaksha MI (O/67619) 20th 
May, 2017;

	 3.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Wickrama Arachchige 
Sumith Manathunga Wickramaarachchi USP SLA 
(O/69378) 15th February, 2019;

	 4.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Amarasinghe Thushara 
Hemantha Amarasinghe SLSC (O/69238) 
15th February, 2019;

	 5.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Garumuni Neel Soyza 
SLAGSC (O/69394) 15th February, 2019.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
30th September, 2020.

03-469/11

No. 323 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of the undermentioned Officer to the rank 
of Temporary Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with 
effect from 30th August, 2020:

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Dissanayaka Arachchilage 
Lalith Gunarathna SLLI (O/69832).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/12

No. 324 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The undermentioned Officers’ promotion to the rank of 
Temporary Captain (Quartermaster) is approved with effect 
from the dates stated against their names:

	 1.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Jayasundhara 
Mudiyanselage Sri Lal Jayasundhara CES (O/70030) 
30th August, 2020;

	 2.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Kokmaduwa Vithana 
Arachchillage Nishantha Herbert Gunasekara CES  
(O/70032) 30th August, 2020;

	 3.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Kuruppu Mudiyanselage 
Dimantha Nalin Kuruppu CES (O/70033) 30th 
August, 2020;

	 4.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Liyanage Sujith 
Shirantha CES (O/70034) 30th August, 2020;

	 5.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Hetti Mudiyanselage 
Nuwan Sisila Kumara Premachandra CES (O/70036) 
30th August, 2020;

	 6.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Pallegedara Sarath 
Premasiri Bandara CES (O/70037) 30th August, 
2020;

	 7.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Rajapaksha 
Karunasundhara Dewayalage Lalith Premarathne 
CES (O/70038 ) 30th August, 2020;

	 8.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Malagammana Dunuge 
Pothegedara Raveendra Samara Preyankara CES  
(O/70039) 30th August, 2020;

	 9.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Benthara Henage Piyal 
Samantha Kumara CES (O/70029) 30th August, 
2020;
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	 10.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Galle Pathiranage 
Sanath Indunil Kumara SLAMC (O/69771) 26th 
September, 2020;

	 11.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Batapola Arachchige 
Don Saman Dewappriya SLAMC (O/69774) 26th 
September, 2020;

	 12.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Polwaththage Don 
Godfrey Sandya Kumara MI (O/69775) 26th 
September, 2020;

	 13.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Mudalihami 
Mudiyanselage Gamini Vijitha Kumara Dunuwila 
MI (O/69778) 26th September, 2020;

	 14.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Ekanayaka 
Mudiyanselage Ravindra Rathnayake MI (O69779) 
26th September, 2020;

	 15.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Janaka Priyalal 
Wickramasekara CES (O/70045) 26th September, 
2020;

	 16.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Jagamuni Susantha de 
Zoysa SLAMC (O/69780) 26th September, 2020;

	 17.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Amarawansha 
Ramanayake Mudiyanselage Chammika Bandara 
Ramanayake USP SLASC (O/69781) 26th September, 
2020;

	 18.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Thenuwara 
Kumarawansage Samarasinghe SLSC (O/69782) 
26th September, 2020;

	 19.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Edirisinghege 
Mudiyanselage Rohana Somarathna Edirisinghe 
SLAMC (O/69785) 26th September, 2020;

	 20.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Wickrama Arachchilage 
Sumeera Nuwanmini Wickramaarachchi SLAGSC  
(O/69842) 26th September, 2020;

	 21.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Weerakkodi 
Appuhamilage Ruwan Prasanna Weerakkodi 
SLAGSC (O/69843) 26th September, 2020;

	 22.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Kahanda Kanaththage 
Rohana Samansiri SLA (O/69789) 26th September, 
2020;

	 23.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Weerasingha Durayalage 
Gamini Abeysinghe RWP RSP USP GW (O/69845) 
26th September, 2020;

	 24.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Hewa Pathiranalage 
Gamini Kularathne SLAGSC (O/69784) 26th 
September, 2020;

	 25.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Jayanath Samaranayake 
USP SLAOC (O/69975) 26th September, 2020;

	 26.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Wijemanna Arachchige 
Don Sarath Wijemanna RSP USP GW (O/69847) 
26th September, 2020;

	 27.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Pinnaduwa Hewa Tiral 
Kapila USP SLSC (O/69856) 26th September, 2020;

	 28.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Lidamulage Prasanna 
Sanjeewa Silva RWP RSP USP SF (O/69858) 26th 
September, 2020;

	 29.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Malawi Arachchige 
Darmasiri GR (O/69860) 26th September, 2020;

	 30.	 Lieutenant (Quartermaster) Herath Mudiyanselage 
Ranjith Samaraweera SF (O/69871) 26th September, 
2020.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
11th September, 2020.

03-469/13

No. 325 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion of Officers approved by the 
Commander of the Army

The promotion of the undermentioned Officers to the rank 
of Lieutenant is approved with effect from the dates stated 
against their names:

	 1.	 Second Lieutenant Kanchana Gamhewa SLSC 
(O/71199) 16th March, 2018;

	 2.	 Second Lieutenant Jayakodi Mudiyanselage Ruchira 
Udana Jayakodi SLSC (O/70949) 05th July, 2018;

	 3.	 Second Lieutenant Kulawardhana Ralahamilage 
Gothami Lumalka Kulawardhana CES (O/70966) 
05th August, 2018;

	 4.	 Second Lieutenant Munasinghe Kasuni Chamudika 
De Silva CES (O/70973) 05th August, 2018;

	 5.	 Second Lieutenant Don Frensisco Mathagaweera 
Arachchige Nethma Udayashani Frensisco SLAWC 
(O/70784) 12th August, 2020.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
30th September, 2020.

03-469/14  
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No. 326 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers’ promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant are approved with effect from 01 March 
2019:

	 a.	 Second Lieutenant Manamarakkaralage Lashen 
Malintha Cooray SLAMC (O/71030);

	 b.	 Second Lieutenant Kolonnage Don Dinuka 
Geethanjana Gunawansha SLAMC (O/71031);

	 c.	 Second Lieutenant Pathirajage Tharuka Deemantha 
Harischandra SLAMC (O/71032);

	 d.	 Second Lieutenant Thebuwana Acharige Don Harith 
Heshan Eranga Thebuwana SLAMC (O/71037);

	 e.	 Second Lieutenant Ekanayake Weerasekara Wasala 
Mudiyanselage Shakila Bandara Gangoda SLAMC 
(O/71040);

	 f.	 Second Lieutenant Waruna Iddamalgoda SLAMC 
(O/71042);

	 g.	 Second Lieutenant Wijeyalath Pathiranage Supun 
Chamara Pathirathna SLAMC (O/71043);

	 h.	 Second Lieutenant Ponsuge Udan Kaushalya Tissera 
SLAMC (O/71044);

	 i.	 Second Lieutenant Widanage Kavindu Dilshan 
Madushanka Widanage SLAMC (O/71046);

	 j.	 Second Lieutenant Chanda Kushlan Ekanayake 
SLAMC (O/71048);

	 k.	 Second Lieutenant Liyadipitiya Rathnayake 
Mudiyanselage Tharindu Lakshan Liyadipitiya 
SLAMC (O/71049);

	 l.	 Second Lieutenant Uthum Mandira Colambage 
SLAMC (O/71052);

	 m.	 Second Lieutenant Vindhya Kumari Wijewikrama 
SLAMC (O/71053);

	 n.	 Second Lieutenant Wanigasooriya Arachchige 
Piyalka Sanusha Perera SLAMC (O/71054);

	 o.	 Second Lieutenant Ilankoon Mudiyanselage 
Gayanthika Piyumalee Wickramasinghe SLAMC 
(O/71057).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/15 

No. 327 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officer’s promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant is approved with effect from 01st March, 
2019:

Second Lieutenant Nipuna Chathuranga Malliyawadu 
SLAMC (O/71039).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
20th October, 2020.

03-469/16  

No. 328 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers’ promotion to 
the rank of Lieutenant are approved with effect from 01st 
November, 2019:

	 a.	 Second Lieutenant Ekanayakage Jayath Chamoda 
Ekanayake SLAMC (O/71029);

	 b.	 Second Lieutenant Karunanayake Pathirannahalage 
Don Chaminda Jayanath Karunanayake SLAMC 
(O/71033);

	 c.	 Second Lieutenant Anupa Yasasvin Kahawevitharana 
SLAMC (O/71038);

	 d.	 Second Lieutenant Kekalalle Gamachchige Rajith 
Nayoman Munasinghe SLAMC (O/71047);

	 e.	 Second Lieutenant Gampalage Ranga Lakshan 
Fonseka SLAMC (O/71051).

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayewardenepura,
Colombo,
19th September, 2020.

03-469/17  
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No. 329 of 2021

Sri  Lanka  army—regular  force

Promotion approved by the Commander of the 
Army

The undermentioned Medical Officers promotion to the 
rank of Lieutenant are approved with effect from the dates 
stated against their names:

	 1.	 Second Lieutenant Dahanayaka Athukoralage 
Chathurika Dulanjalee SLAMC (O/70385) 10th 
December, 2019; 

	 2.	 Second Lieutenant Hettige Shaimi Rashmila Perera 
SLAMC (O/70388) 01st February, 2020;

	 3.	 Second Lieutenant Gihani Chamudika Senarath 
Rathnayake, SLAMC (O/70670) 20th June, 2020.

	 L H S C Silva, 
	 WWV RWP RSP VSV USP ndc psc,
	 Lieutenant General, 
	 Commander of the Army.

Army Headquarters, 
Sri Jayawardenepura,
Colombo,
30th September, 2020.

03-469/18

No. 330 of 2021

nOTIFICATION

HON. Foreign Minister of the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka is pleased to recognize Mr. Krishan Balendra as 
the Honorary Consul General of the Republic of Poland in 
Colombo with effect from 05th February, 2021. 

	 Admiral Prof. Jayanath Colombage, 
	 Secretary, 
	F oreign Ministry.

Foreign Ministry,
Republic Building,
Colombo 01,
12th March, 2021.

03-776

Government Notifications

Notice under Section 25 & 26 of the Debt Conciliation Ordinance  
No. 39 of 1941

The Debt Conciliation Board wishes to make an attempt to bring about a Settlement between the Creditor and the Debtor 
indicated against the application number in the Schedule hereto under the Debt Conciliation Ordinance Act, No. 39 of 1941, 
No. 5 of 1959, No. 24 of 1964, No. 41 of 1973 and No. 19 of 1978.

Therefore in terms of Section 25 (1) and 26 (1) of the Ordinance the relevant Creditors are hereby required to furnish to 
the Board before the date they are required to appear before it the particulars of debt due to them from the under mentioned 
debtors.

	S ubhasini Dayananda,
	 Secretary,
	 Department of Debt Conciliation Board.

Department of Debt Conciliation Board,
No. 35A, Dr. N. M. Perera Mawatha,
Colombo 08,
03rd March, 2021.

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.

	 (01)	 Mrs. Marappulige Nalika Wasana Kumari	 Mrs. Ladhu Hettige Inoka Dilshani,
	 45475		  120/1, Siripura, Hunupitiya, Wattala.		  190, New Road, Hunupitiya, Wattala.
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	 (02)	 Mr. Malala Aloka Bandaralage Jayantha	 Mrs. Ganegama Ganithage Anurada
	 45479		  Kumara Bandara,		  Pushpa Kumari,
			   127, Wasiwewa, Balalla, Nikaweratiya.		  161/1, Gurunnehelagama, Balalla,
					     Maho.

	 (03)	 Mrs. Pothupitiyage Samanthika Sanjeewani,	 Mr. Kadhana Arachchige Asanka 		
	 45483		  22/2, Biyagama Pahala,		  Srimantha Perera,
			   Biyagama.		  182/4, Gonawala, Bollegama.

	 (04)	 Mr. Gallana Gamage Nuwan Prasad,	 Mr. Bandula Disanayake,
	 45487		  Didula, Kalukadhahena,		  Angunnagoda,
			   Balakawala.		  Godapitiya, Akuressa.

	 (05)	 Mr. Asitha Indika Wijayanayaka,	 Mr. Loku Yaddehige Dayarathne,
	 45490		  Mapalagama,		  12C, Warapitiya,
			   St. Visenthi Mawatha,		  Dharga Town.
			   Diyalagoda, Maggona.

	 (06)	 Mr. Kaluarachchilage Lakshan Jayathissa,	 D. G. G. Enterprises Private Limited,
	 45491		  D 43/1, Ganepalla,		  No. D 220, Batakitta,
			T   heligama.		  Kithulgala.

	 (07)	 Mr. Wanasinghe Mudiyanselage Dayananda,	 Mr. Wanasinghe Mudiyanselage Dilanka
	 45450		  33, Weeryapura,		  Sandhakel Wanasinghe,
			   Badulla.		  48/4, Kalaliyadda,
					     Badhulupitiya.

	 (08)	 Mrs. Paththini Dewa Disna Kumuduni,	 Mrs. Ilandari Dewa Gunawathi,
	 45503		  No. 23, Old Batapola Road,		  Girigoris Mawatha,
			   Kurundhugaha Hethakma,		I  galanaidegewala.
			   Elpitiya.

	 (09)	 Mr. Kariyawasam Ampegama Gamage	 Mr. Kalangsooriya Arachchi Bandula,
	 45511		  Podimahattaya,		  Delgaha Junction,
			   320/A, 1, Gajeruge Watta,		  Ampegama.
			   Gurusinghegoda, Ampegama.

	 (10)	 Mrs. Hadhunnetti Ranjani Ariyawathi,	 Mr. Waduthanthri Buddika Sirimewan,
	 45518		  Korttagoda, Kalupe,		  Korttagoda, Kalupe,
			H   ikkaduwa.		H  ikkaduwa.

	 (11)	 Mr. Maduwage Kamal Jayantha De Silva,	 Mr. Ruwan Kumara Deshapriya
	 45526		  448, Galle Road,		  Waduthanthrige, 127/1, Hinatiyana,
			   Patabedhimulla,		  Balapitiya.
			   Ambalangoda.

	 (12)	 Mr. Rajakarunalage Sampath Sri Rajakaruna,	 Mr. Subasinghe Mudiyanselage Roshan 	
	 45530		  Maligathanna Watta,		  Senavirathna,
			H   alwella, Narammala.		  199/41, Mirihathugoda,
					     Narammala.

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.
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	 (13)	 Mr. Konara Mudiyanselage Danushka Sanjeewa 	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Rathnasiri
	 45546		  Bandara,		  Obeysekara,
			   No. 280, Siyambalagasruppa,		  No. 452/4, Molakapu Pathana,
			   Dummalasooriya.		T  hissamaharamaya.

	 (14)	 Mr. Mapalagama Acharige Susil Gamini	 Mr. Kandemulla Waduge Renuka Anura
	 45547		  Mapalagama,		  Shantha,
			   75/12, 1st Lane,		  520, Udumulla, Maha Induruwa.
			   Katubedda, Moratuwa.

	 (15)	 Mrs. Gonaduwage Nimali Anuruddika	 Mr. Mananayaka Arachchilage Gnanendra
	 45544		H  imali Manike,		  Jagath Mananayaka,
			   “Nisansala”, Puththalam Para,		  Pellanseniya, Maspotha.
			   Kadennewa, Aulegama.

	 (16)	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage	 Mrs. Thalpe Guruge Chandrika 		
	 45556		  Udayantha Dilhani Rathnayaka,		  Pradinandis,
			   Sandagala Road, Piduruwella,		  1st Lane, Gama mada Para,
			   Uhumeeya.		  Malkaduwawa.

	 (17)	 Mr. Ambagahage Hendry Joshap	 Mrs. Akalahandige Nirosha Kumuduni
	 45571		F  ernando,		  Silva,
			I   hala Karambe, Weerapokuna.		  Kosagama, Weerapokuna.

	 (18)	 Mrs. Sakalawalli Acharige Harshani	 Mrs. Edirimuni Nirosha Priyangani
	 45572		  Kumari,		  Silva,
			   878/D/2, Priyankara Mawatha,		T  /27, Stas Road,
			   Obawaththa, Heiyanthuduwa.		  Colombo 14.

	 (19)	 Mrs. Nadeesha Dilrukshi Fernando,	 Mr. Habaragamu Ralalage Kapila
	 45573		  23/9, Udyana Road,		  Chandana Peris,
			   Rathmalana.		  65/A, 1st Cross Road,
					     Parakum Mawatha, Aththidiya,
					     Dehiwala.

	 (20)	 Rev. Srilal Reymond Wickramanayaka	 Mrs. Dona Jayasekara Kulasinghe
	 45576		  Karunarathna,		  Ranjani,
			   “Dewasiri”, 100/3 B, Jayathunga		  88, Jonson Lake, Kaludewala,
			   Mawatha, Walana, Panadura.		  Panadura.

	 (21)	 Mr. Mirihana Kankanamage Pushpika	 Jayantha Trust Investment (Pvt) Ltd., 
	 45574		I  ndeewara, 227, Kalugala,		  Company,
			   Gurulubedda.		  30, Baduraliya Road, Agalawaththa.

	 (22)	 Mrs. Gardi Mudiyanselage Amitha Padmasili,	 Mr. Diyunugal Hemayalage Surendra
	 45540		  A/15/C2/10, Shopping Complex,		  Roshan,
			   Ranpokunugama.		  AN/13, Navikawaththa,
					     Ranpokunugama, Nittambuwa.

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.
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	 (23)	 Mr. Mathale Ralalage Lalith Anurudda	 Koshiba Credit (Pvt) Company,
	 45423		  Bandara, No. 200, Udarata Sadella,		  No. 376, 26 Mile Post,
			   Gurudeniya, Haragama.		  Kandy Road, Nittambuwa.

	 (24)	 Mr. Lokuralalage Mahindalal,	 Vijith Financial & Property (Pvt) Ltd.,
	 45630		  Jayasekara,		  Meegahathenna.
			   Galmulla, Meegahathenna.

	 (25)	 Mrs. Gamaethige Somalatha,	 Mr. kathriarachchige Kantha Siriwardana,
	 45453		I  ddagoda, Mathugama.		  14/1, Narangahawaththa, Owitigala,
					     Mathugama.
		  Mr. Gamaethige Don Deetin,
			I   ddagoda, Mathugama.

		  Mr. Gamaethige Don Dilan Ranjan,
			I   ddagoda, Mathugama.

	 (26)	 Mr. Shameen Dasun Jayathilaka,	 Mr. Kariyawasam Horagampita Gamage
	 45669		  Sri Sangananda Mawatha,		  Jayasiri Premarathna,
			   Raigama, Bandaragama.		  87, Thimbirigasyaya Road,
					     Colombo 05.

	 (27)	 Mr. Lokuliyanage Buwaneka Upali Kabral,	 Mr. Sampath Palitha De Seram,
	 45531		  67/E, Kandy Road, Kiribathgoda.		  Sampath Ranbima Pawning & 
					I     nvestment Company,
					     60/1, Sampath Mahal,
					     Kandy Road, Kiribathgoda.

				    Mr. Jayalathge Don Thilak Mahinda
					     Perera,
					     397, Galthota Pedesa,
					     Waragoda Road, Kelaniya.

				    Siyane Property & Alied Service Ltd.,
					     31/A, Kirindiwala Road,
					Y     akkala.

	 (28)	 Mr. Manangodage Jayantha,	 Sri Sampath Investment & Property
	 45678		  948/1, Pannipitiya Road,		  Developers (Pvt) Ltd.,
			   Nagarasaba Waththa Road,		  34, Temple Road, Gallegama,
			   Baththaramulla.		I  ngiriya.

	 (29)	 Mr. Medagedara Subarathna,	 D. S. P. Kariyapperuma Depala 		
	 45691		  89/B, Thalahena, Malambe.		  Ayathanaya,
					     666/10, New Kandy Road,
					Y     atihena,
					     Waduwegama, Malwana.

				    Mr. Withana Pathirannehelage Kapila
					     Pushpa Kumara,
					     199, Biyagama.

	 (30)	 Mr. Ekanayakage Kapila,	 Kanwin Holding Pvt Ltd.,
	 45701		  12/11A, Halmillagolla Waththa,		  582/B, Kandy Road, Nambadaluwa,
			T   hihariya, Kalagedihena.		  Nittambuwa.

	 (31)	 Mr. Raigamage Manjula Sarath Kumara,	 Mr. Samarage Janaka Nuwan Kumara,
	 45675		  37, Kesbewa Road, Bandaragama.		  47/G, Thalgahawaththa,
					     Bandaragama.

03-461

	 Application	 Name & Address of Debtor	 Name & Address of Creditor
	 No.
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	 Registration B 96
	 (E 2) 2/64.

certificate  of  registry  of  building  for  the  solemnization  of  marriages

Certificate Number : 1523

IN pursuance to the application and declaration made is under Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance, (Chapter 
112) I, Weerasekara Mudiyanselage Madduma Bandara Weerasekara, Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby certify that 
the under mentioned building is used as a place of Public Christian Worship, described below, has been duly registered for 
the solemnization of marriages.

	 Situation

	 Description	 Village or	 Pattu. Korale	 District	 Proprietors	 Religious
		  street and 	 or other		  of Trustees	 Denomination
		  Division of	 Division of			   on whose
		  town	 the District			   behalf of the
						      building in 
						      Registered

	 St. Anthony’s	 Dayagama	T halawakelle	 Nuwara Eliya	F r. Jayanath	 Roman
	 Church		  Agarapatana		  Perera	 Catholic
						    
Witness my hand at Battaramulla, this 01st day of March, 2021.

	 W. M. M. B. Weerasekara,
	 Registrar General,

02-550/1
	
	 Registration B 97
	 (F 2) 2/64.

registrar general’s department

Registration of Place of Worship for Solemnization of Marriages
IN pursuance to the provisions under Section 10 of the Marriage Registration Ordinance (Chapter 112) I, Weerasekara 
Mudiyanselage Madduma Bandara Weerasekara, Registrar General of Sri Lanka, do hereby inform Notify that the under 
mentioned building used as a place of Public Christian Worship, has been duly registered for the solemnization of marriage 
therein.

	 Number	 Date of	 Description	 Situation	 Minister of	 Religious
		  Registration			   Proprietor or	 Denomination
					     Trustee	 on whose
						      behalf of the
						      building in 
						      Registered

	 1523	 24.12.2020	 St. Anthony’s	 Dayagama	F r. Jayanath	 Roman
			   Church		  Perera	 Catholic

	 W. M. M. B. Weerasekara,
	 Registrar General,

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3, Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
01st March, 2021.

02-550/2
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SWAMI VIPULANANDA INSTITUTE OF AESTHETIC STUDIES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31st DECEMBER, 2019
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
 Restated 

ASSETS  Rs.  Rs. 
NON-CURRENT ASSET
Property, Plant & Equipment 08     620,856,331     628,704,486 
Intangible Asset 09        4,281,339        7,961,129 
Capital Work in Progress 10             81,326       11,048,154 

    625,218,996     647,713,769 
CURRENT ASSET
Inventories 11        2,097,045        1,682,156 

Deposit, Loan & Advances 12       11,185,725       16,886,078 

Sundry Debtors & Receivables 13        2,347,609        4,177,927 

Cash and cash equivalents 14       14,588,618       24,435,759 
      30,218,997       47,181,920 

TOTAL ASSETS     655,437,993     694,895,689 

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Capital Reserve 15     229,831,303     241,739,139 
Revaluation Reserve        7,626,613        9,540,986 
Other Grant        2,500,000        2,500,000 
Donations 16     398,819,600     417,816,714 
Retained Earnings     (35,685,152)     (12,340,667)

    603,092,364     659,256,172 

LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Retirement Benefit Obligation 17       32,715,149       13,003,725 

      32,715,149       13,003,725 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 18        2,645,765       10,717,099 
Deposits & Refundable 19        1,310,522        2,626,871 
Mahapola/Bursary Payable 20        2,992,190        1,328,590 
Extramural Courses Payable/ (Receivables) 21           251,350          (102,400)
Accrued Expenses 22       12,430,653        8,065,632 

      19,630,480       22,635,792 
      52,345,629       35,639,517 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 655,437,993 694,895,689

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
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The accounting policies and notes on pages 05 to 17 from an integral part of these Financial Statements. These 
Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in compliances  with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(SLPSAS) and Sri Lanka accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements 
which were approved by the Board of Management and signed for and on behalf of the Board of Management.

	 Prof. A. Murugathas,	 T. Vijeyakumar,	 A. M. C. Mihirani,
	Acting Director/Accounting Officer.	 Deputy Registrar.	 Assistant Bursar.

SWAMI VIPULANANDA INSTITUTE OF AESTHETIC STUDIES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER, 2019
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

Note 2019 2018    
Restated

INCOME Rs. Rs.
Recurrent Grant      237,275,000     194,780,000 

Registration Fees (Undergraduates)             935,300            931,600 
Examination Fee  (Undergraduate )             127,250            546,350 
Financial Assistant to Student        14,348,200       30,245,300 
Interest from Loans & Advance             340,081            292,236 
Hostel fees             432,800            450,625 
Fines             123,540              15,123 
Rent from Properties             157,398            157,500 
Medical Fees             392,200            123,800 
Sales of Old Stock               33,700              21,970 
Ancillary Activities               45,000            426,375 
Library Fine                 1,013                2,380 
Interest From Investment             412,148              21,105 
Non Refundable Deposits               54,000            134,800 
Miscellaneous Income                 4,200         3,915,904 
Written back of prior year overprovided expenses                       -                48,985 
Amortization of Government Grants & Donation        47,819,323       42,865,216 
Unamortized Government Grant of Disposed Assets                       -              752,479 

Total Income      302,501,153     275,731,748 

EXPENSES
Personal Emoluments
Salaries & Wages        69,737,044       56,932,766 
U.P.F        10,229,490         8,089,111 
Pension          9,572,582         6,326,966 
E.T.F          3,960,416         2,883,217 
Acting Pay             176,800            154,911 
Cost of Living Allowance        11,605,656       10,810,375 
Academic Allowance        43,515,587       25,664,789 
Research Allowance        12,122,168         7,443,308 
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Overtime          2,043,578         2,309,747 
Holiday pay             127,709            140,549 
Other Allowance             263,981            174,025 
Visiting Lecture Fees             492,811            865,679 
Additional Monthly Allowance        11,830,272         7,362,176 
Adjustment Allowance             641,800         3,016,662 
Monthly Compensatory Allowance        11,722,119         7,458,903 
Photocopy Allowance               38,675              37,450 
Entertainment Allowance             376,711            290,743 
Gratuity        19,711,424         3,263,866 
Loss on Disposal of Asset                       -              722,969 
Financial Assistant to Student        14,348,200       30,245,300 
Travelling 03             362,198            577,968 
Supplies and Consumable used 04          3,651,762         3,758,631 
Maintenance Expenditure 05          2,133,277         1,757,473 
Contractual Services 06        37,610,207       37,869,459 
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses        47,819,323       42,865,216 
Other Operating Expenses 07        11,751,848       13,197,575 

Total  Expenses      325,845,638     274,219,834 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the Period (23,344,485)         1,511,914 

	 Note	 2019	 2018
			   Restated
		  Rs. 	 Rs.	

SWAMI VIPULANANDA INSTITUTE OF AESTHETIC STUDIES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2019
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

 Deferred   
Capital Grant 

Restated 

 Unspent   
Capital Grant  

 Revaluation 
Reserve 

 General 
Reserve   
Restated 

 Total         
Restated 

 Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs.  Rs. 

Balance at 01st January, 2018        195,923,339         20,018,599                     -   (13,852,581)        202,089,357 

Transfers /Net Movements         25,482,926             301,774         9,540,986                      -           35,325,686 

Surplus/(deficit) for the period                       -                        -                       -   1,511,914           1,511,914 

Balance at 31st December, 2018        221,418,765         20,320,373         9,540,986 (12,340,667)        238,926,957 
Transfers /Net Movements           2,540,383       (14,448,218) (1,914,373)                      -          (13,822,208)

Surplus/(deficit) for the period                       -                        -                       -   (23,344,485)        (23,344,485)

Balance at 31st December, 2019        223,959,148          5,872,155         7,626,613 (35,685,152)        201,760,264 
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SWAMI VIPULANANDA INSTITUTE OF AESTHETIC STUDIES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2019
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)

2019 2018        
Restated 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  Rs.  Rs. 

Surplus/(deficit) from ordinary activities (23,344,485) 1,511,914 

Adjustment
Depreciation & Amortization            47,819,323 42,865,216 
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset                           -   722,969 
Provision for Gratuity            19,711,424 3,263,866 
Amortization of Government Grants & Donations (47,819,323) (42,865,216)
Unamortized Government Grant of Disposed Assets                           -   (752,479)

Net cash flow from operating activities before working 
capital changes

            
(3,633,061)

             
4,746,270 

Changes in Items of Working Capital

(Increase)/decrease in Inventories (414,889) (303,024)

(Increase)/decrease in Deposit, Loan & Advances              5,700,353 (1,419,180)

(Increase)/decrease in Sundry Debtors & Receivables              1,830,318 (4,164,927)

Increase/(decrease ) Accounts Payable (8,071,334) 8,721,864 

Increase/(decrease) in Deposits & Refundable (1,316,349) 129,262 

Increase/(decrease) in Extramural Courses Payable/ 
(Receivables)

                353,750 (102,400)

Increase/(decrease) in Mahapola/Bursary payable              1,663,600 (3,358,600)

Increase/(decrease) in Accrued Expenses              4,365,021 869,517 

             4,110,470 372,512 
Net cash flow from operating activities after working 
capital changes

                477,409 5,118,782 

Gratuity Payment                           -                             -   
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities                 477,409 5,118,782 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (36,291,377) (56,343,247)

Sale Proceed on Sale of Fixed Asset                           -   29,510 
Capital Work in Progress            10,966,828 2,710,879 
Intangible Assets                           -   (4,915,644)
Net Cash Flow Used in Investing Activities (25,324,549) (58,518,502)
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CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government Grant -Capital            15,000,000 50,220,000 
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities            15,000,000 50,220,000 
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (9,847,141) (3,179,720)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year            24,435,759 27,615,479 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year            14,588,618 24,435,759 

	 2019	 2018
		  Restated
	 Rs.	 Rs.

Director.  
Swami Vipulananda Institute of Aesthetic Studies. 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Swami Vipulananda Institute of Aesthetic Studies 
for the year ended 31st December, 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

1. Financial Statements

	 1.1	 Qualified Opinion

		T  he audit of the Financial Statements of the Swami Vipulananda Institute of Aesthetic Studies (“Institute”) for the year 
ended 31st December, 2019 comprising the statement of linancial position as at 31st December, 2019 and the statement 
of financial performance statement or changes in net assets and cash flow statement lor the year then ended and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies was carried out under my direction 
in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) or the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
read in conjunction with Sub-section 107(5) and Section 108 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and provisions 
of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 My comments and observations which I consider should be published with 
the Annual Report of the University in terms or Section 108 (1) of the Universities Act appear in this report. My 
report to Parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course. 
 
In my opinion, except lor the effects of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report, 
the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Institute as at 31st 
December, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

	 1.2	 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

	 (a)	 Even though 11 asset items shown under property, plant and equipment as at 31st December, of the year under 
review cost at Rs. 14,076,266 were totally depreciated. However those assets are still being used, actions had not 
been taken to revalue and adjust to accounts in terms of Paragraph 42 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 
Standards - 07.

	 (b)	 Other grant amounting to Rs. 2,500,000 had been received and utilized for the recurrent purpose had not been 
amortized and shown under other grant in the financial statements as at 31st December, 2019.

		I   conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilities, under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of my report. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my qualified opinion.
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	 1.3	 Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

		  Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statement that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

		I  n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Institute ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Institute or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

		T  hose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Institute financial reporting process.

		  As per Section 16 (1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, the Institute is required to maintain proper books 
and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to 
be prepared of the Institute.

	 1.4	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

		  My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assuarance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

		  As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. I exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional septicism throughout the audit. I also.

	 •	 ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
tor one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or 
the override or internal control.

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness or the lnstitute’s internal 
control.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Institute ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainly exists. I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to cease to continue as 
a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.
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I communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that identify during my audit.

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	      National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 includes specific provisions for following requirements.

	 •	 Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, I have obtained all the 
information and explanation that required for the audit and as far as appears from my examination, proper accounting 
records have been kept by the Institute as per the requirement of Section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 
2018.

	 •	T he financial staetments presented is consistent with the preceeding year as per the requirement of Section 6 (1) (d) 
(iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

	 •	T he financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in the previous year as per the 
requirement of Section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

		  Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained were limited to matters that are material, nothing has come 
to my attention:

	 •	 to state that any member of the governing body of the Institute has any direct or indirect interest in any contract entered 
into by the Institute which are out of the normal cause of business as per the requirement of Section 12 (d) of the 
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

	 •	 to state that the Institute has complied with any applicable written law, general and special directions issued by the 
governing body of the Insitute as per the requirement of Section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 except 
for:

	 Reference to law/Direction	 Description

	 (a)	 Establishments Code of the University 
		  Grants Commission and the Higher 
		  Educational Institutions

	 (i)	 Section 3 (1) of Chapter	 Although, each and every employee of the Higher
		  XX and Circular Letters of the	 Education Institution had to record the arrival and 
		  University Grants	 departure time. However, without being confirmed
		  Commission No. 10/2017	 the attendance and leave of the academic staff, a 
		  dated 10th July, 2017.	 sum of Rs. 125,374,799 had been paid as salaries
			   and allowances during the year under review.
	 (b)	 Examination Manual and
		  Procedures of the Universities,
		  Sections 2, 4 and 5 of Chapter XV	 Examination of answer scripts of all departments 	

	 of Institute revealed that marks had been entered 	
	 on the answer scripts. Marks of the first and 		
	 second examiners were same and there was no 	
	 deviation of marks observed. Therefore there is no 	
	 confidentiality in the marking system.

	 (c)	 Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/12 
		  of 02nd June, 2003, Section 6.5.1	 A copy of the Draft Annual Report for the year 	

	 under review had not been presented to the 		
	 Auditor General.
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	 (d)	T reasury circular No. 842 dated 	 Register of fixed assets had not been maintained
		  19th December, 1978	 for fixed assets amounting to Rs. 666,355,916. 	

	 Board of survey report and detailed Schedule had 	
	 not been submitted for audit.

	 (e)	 Public Administration Circular No. 18/2016	 All the officers including the officers of the Staff
		  dated 10th August, 2016.	 Grade of the State Corporations should get their 	

	 leave approved by the Hon. Minister at the time 	
	 of their proceeding abroad. Nevertheless, 

			   three officers had not taken steps accordingly.

	 •	 to state that the Institute has performed according to its powers, functions and duties as per the requirement of 
Section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

	 •	 to state that the resources of the Institute has procured and utilized economically, efficiently and effectively within 
the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws as per the requirement of Section 12 (h) of the National 
Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

3. Other Audit Observations

	 (a)	 Even though 15 years had elapsed from the commencement of the Institution, external degree or diploma courses 
had not been initiated by the Institute as self-financing source of income.

	 (b)	T he Capital grant of Rs. 15,000,000 had been received fro capital expenditure during the year under review and 
out of this amount Rs. 5,872,155 had remained unspent which represent 39 percent has not been utilized for the 
intended purposes which included in the master procurement plan and annual budget of 2019.

	 (c)	 According to the action plan 2019 introduction of four new Degree Programs and specialization. Establishments 
of new departments or units should be established. Nevertheless, it had not been established up to the date of this 
report.

	 (d)	 According to the information made available to Audit. 11 vacancies in the post of the Academic Staff including the 
post of Director of the Institute and 36 vacancies of Non Academic Staff of the Institute as at 31st December for the 
year under review had not been filled up to the date of this report.

	 (e)	 According to the Establishment Circular No. 15/2015 dated 17th November, 2015 of the University Grants 
Commission, the results of the examinations conducted for the internal students should be released within 03 
months. However, the results for the final examinations conducted for the academic year 2017/2018 of the Institute 
had been released with the delay period ranging from 04 to 06 months. This practice had affected the student’s 
employment opportunities after passing out.

	 (f)	 Progress Report of the Annual Action Plan for the year 2018 and 2019 had not been prepared and furnished to audit. 
In the absence of the progress report, it is not possible to ascertain whether the goals and objective of Annual Action 
Plan had been achieved by the Institute. Therefore, utilization of Annual Action plan to achieve the effectiveness 
and efficiencies of the Institution could not have been measured and quantified in audit.

	 (g)	I n terms of the Letter No. NP/SP/SDG/17 of 14th August, 2017 on Sustainable Development issued by the Secretary 
to the Ministry of National Policies and Economic Affairs and the “2030 Agenda” for Sustainable Development 
of the United Nations, the University was aware of the manner in implementing the functions that come under its 
scope. However, action has not been taken to identify the sustainable develpment goals, targets relating to those 
functions and focal points to reach those targets and indices for measuring the achivement of targets.

		  W. P. C. Wickramaratne,
		  Auditor General.

03-348

	 Reference to law/Direction	 Description
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University of Jaffna

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2019

	 Note	 31st December, 2019	 31st December, 2018
		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs. 	 Rs.
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents	 04	  33,581,341.48		  54,239,280.99 		
Trade & Other Receivables	 05	    768,758,333.66 		  774,999,772.59	    
Inventories/Stocks	 06	 33,673,859.95		  36,607,914.45		
Investments (Short Term) 	 07	 728,227,458,20	 1,564,240,993.29	 679,748,936.11	 1,545,595,904.14
					   
Non Current Assets
Investments (Long Term)	 08	 409,176,869.08		  391,916,670.24 	
Property, Plant & Equipment	 09	 10,564,890,478.67		  8,391,139,446.29	
Captial Work in Progress	 10	 900,085,503,53	 11,874,152,851.28	 2,164,390,316.34	 10,947,446,432.87 
Total Assets			   13,438,393,844.57 		  12,493,042,337.01

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables	 11	 195,991,155.76		  221,161,615.78
Accrued Expenses	 12	 72,236,140.33		  43,026,771.04 	
Self financing courses	 13	      276,548,821,07	 544,776,117.16	 216,517,053.96	 480,705,440.78 

Non Current Liabilities
Payables	 14	     9,829,038.25		  7,845,539.52 	
Provisions for Gratuity	       	 876,103,012.57		  378,233,946.78 	
Restricted Fund	 15	 853,442,099.38	 1,739,374,150.20	 657,518,182.05	 1,043,597,668.35
Total Liabilities		     	 2,284,150,267.36		  1,524,303,109.13
	
Total Net Assets			      11,154,243,577.21		  10,968,739,227.88

Net Assets/Equity
Accumulated Fund (Capital Grant)	 16	    12,558,529,625.27		  11,040,611,334.49 	  
Accumulated Surplus/Deficit	 16A	 (2,415,699,954.96)	 10,142,829,670.61	(1,128,762,635.23)	 9,911,848,699.26
(Income & Expenditure)

Reserve
General Reserve	 17	 (1,222,879,980.78)		 (1,199,074,655.05)	
Bond Obligation Reserve	 18	   199,384,875.06		  198,136,959.85 	
Net Revaluation - Reserve	 18A	    2,034,851,152.32		  2,057,770,363.82
Capital Reserve		   57,860,00	 1,011,413,906.60	 57,860.00	 1,056,890,528.62 
Total Net Assets/Equity			    11,154,243,577.21 		  10,968,739,227.88
 

Accounting policies and notes are on page 06 to 15 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

These Financial statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with the University Act, No. 16 of 
1978, applicable Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS), and other rules and regulations prevailing in the 
University System.

	 Bursar	 Registrar

	 Prof. K. Kandasamy,	 Council Member,	 Council Member,
	 Accounting Officer,	 Signed for on behalf,	 Signed for on behalf,
	 Competent Authority,	 of the Council.	 of the Council.
	 (in lieu of Vice Chancellor).

29th February, 2020.
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Particulars Note Year ended
31 st Dec. 2019

Year ended 
31 st Dec. 2018

Operating Revenue Rs. Rs.

Recurrent Grant 19 3,363,488,000.00 2,574,235,000.00

Net Income / (Loss) from other Activities (Restricted 
Fund)

20 50,815,285.84 23.034,937.43

Other Income 21 51,086,489.78 36,097,572.58

Fund from University Development Fund 81,000,000.00 90,000,000.00

Total Operating Revenue 3,546,389,775.62 2,723,367,510.01

Operating Expenses 23

Personnel Emoluments 2,887,788,656.81 2,202,140,836.11

Travelling 10,209,393.29 9,139,914.91

Supplies and Consumable Used 89,069,898.18 109,202,844.36

Maintenance 48,302,549.52 45,824,294.08

Contractual Services 345,449,492.09 296,564,413.59

Other Operating Expenses 128,201,936.55 99,544,316.45

Total Operating Expenses 3,509,021,926.44 2,762,416,619.50

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operating Activities before 
Provision for Depreciation and Gratuity

37,367,849.18 (39,049,109.49)

Depreciation 775,669,505.28 628,615,682.41

Provision for Gratuity 497,869,065.79 50,088,374.28

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operating Activities
after Provision for Depreciation and Gratuity

(1,236,170,721.89) (717,753,166.18)

Financial Assistance Received to Students 22 172,091,800.00 242,691,150.00
Financial Assistance to Students 24 (172,091,800.00) (242,691,150.00)

Surplus (Deficit) from Total Activities (1,236,170,721.89) (717,753,166.18)

Unusual Items 25 (48,688.00) 34,892.00

Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the period
Transferred to Accumulated Surplus / (Deficit)

(1,236,122,033.89) (717,788,058.18)

Accounting policies and notes are on page 06 to 15 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

University of Jaffna

Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31st December, 2019
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University of Jaffna

Cash Flow Statment for the year ended 31st December, 2019

Particulars Note 2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus/(Deficit) from ordinary activities (1,236,170,722) (717,753,166)
Non-Cash movements
Depreciation 9 775,669,505 628,615.682
Provision for Gratuity 497,869,066 50,088,374
Prior Period Item 17 (23,805,326) (38,243,609)
Unusual Item 25 48,688 (34,892)
Transfer to Restricted Fund 20 (50,815,286) (23,034,937)
lncrease/(Decrease) in Stock 06 2,934,055 12,580,017
lncrease/(Decrease) in Receivables 05 6,241,439 223,912,989
lncrease/(Decrease) in Payables 11,12 4,038,908 31,152,784
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (23,989,673) 167,283,242
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to the Plant and Equipment 09 (376,516,814) (2,801,095,010)
lncrease/(Decrease) Capital work in progress 10 (536,159,577) (648,450,923)
Investments 07, 08 (65,738,721) (53,716,515)
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (978,415,112) (3,503,262,447)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Grant 16 852,364,816 3,219,153,588
Restricted Funds 15 66,118,846 48,421,267
Self Financing 13 60,031,768 24,909,683
Non Current Liabilities 14 1,983,499
Bond Obligation 18 1,247,916 7,528,941
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 981,746,845 3,300,013,479
lncrease/(Decrease) in cash and cash Equivalent (20,657,940) (35,965,725)
Cash land Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4 54,239,281 90,205,006
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4 33,581,341 54,239,281

Accounting policies and notes are on page 06 to 15 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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University of Jaffna

Accounting Policies and Other Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2019

1. Corporate Information

	 1.1	 Domicile and Legal Form

		T  he University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka is a statutory body incorporated under the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and 
it is located at Thirunelvely, Jaffna.

	 1.2	 Principal activities and nature of operations

		T  he principal activities of the University of Jaffna are promotion of teaching, learning and research activities in 
keeping with the National Policy by providing higher learning facilities for students.

	 1.3	V avuniya Campus

		T  he Northern Province Affiliated University College was amalgamated with University of Jaffna with effect from 
01.04.1997 by Gazette notification number 968/6 of 26.03.1997 as a Campus of this University. The Financial 
Management of the Vavuniya Campus is under the purview of the University of Jaffna. Monthly imprest is released 
for Recurrent and Capital Expenditure by the University of Jaffna. Reasonable extent of Financial Powers has 
been delegated to the Vavuniya Campus. Which is managed by Campus Board headed by Rector. The financial 
transactions of the Vavuniya Campus are incorporated in the accounts of the University of Jaffna.

2. Accounting Policies

	 2.1	B asis of Preparations

		T  he Financial Statements of the University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka are prepared in conformity with the Sri Lanka 
Public Sector Accounting Standards and are applied consistently on a historical cost basis. Subject to the fixed 
assets being bought into books on revaluation with computerizing fixed assets register. The Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st December, 2019 are presented in the formats that were introduced by the Department 
of Public Enterprises, General Treasury by Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/19 of 19.12.2003 adopted by 
the University Grants Commission by Finance Circular No. 2/2004 of 23.01.2004, Public Enterprises Circular 
No. PED/54 dated 19.01.2010 adopted by UGC Financial Circular No. 3/2011 dated 1st March, 2011 and Public 
Enterprises Circular No. 03/2013 dated 02.10.2013 adopted by the University Grants Commission by its Finance 
Circular letter No. 03/2014 with suitable modifications where necessary in complying with Sri Lankan Public 
Sector Accounting Standard.

	 2.2	 Accounting for Student Fees

		T  he Student Registration Fees, Tuition Fees and Medical Fees are accounted on cash basis and other Incomes are 
on accrual basis and this is the practice adopted by the University from the inception.

	
	 2.3	 Grant for Bursary and Mahapola

		T  he Grant for Bursary is shown as income under the Recurrent Grant and the payment of Bursary is shown as 
Expenditure of the Welfare Services as directed by the University Grants Commission by its letter No. UGC/F/
BUR/87 dated 14.10.1987 and classified as a separate item as Financial Assistance to students in the statement 
of Financial Performance. The Grant for Mahapola (Treasury Component and Trust Component) is shown 
under Recurrent Grant and the payment is under Financial Assistance to students in the statement of Financial 
Performance.
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	 2.4	 Provision for Gratuity

		  Provision for Gratuity is made in terms of payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983. The Provision for Gratuity 
is not represented by the investment since the Treasury does not provide financial allocation to make investment 
externally.

	 2.5	 Depreciation and Provision for Gratuity

		T  he net deficit for the year 2019 is Rs. 1,236,122,034 this includes the non-cash item of Depreciation and Gratuity 
amounting of Rs. l,273,538,571 Therefore the actual cash surplus is 37,319,161.

	 2.6	 Inventories

		I  nventories are valued at cost based on FIFO basis and the value of stock held by the Academic/Administrative 
Departments has been excluded from the Expenditure.

	 2.7	 Expenditure of Capital Nature
		
		  Expenditure incurred for the purpose of extending or improving assets of the permanent nature of this University is 

treated as Capital Expenditure.

	 2.8	 Recovery for Losses

		T  he following losses were recovered with the approval of the Council in the year 2018 and reflected in the accounts.

Details

Lost of Lap Top	 41,688.00
Cloak	 7,000.00
	 48,688.00

	 2.9	F und from University Development Fund

		  Additional Fund of Rs.81 Million for recurrent expenditure met out of University Development Fund.

	 2.10	 Income and Expenditure from other activities

		T  he Income and Expenditure of Self Financing courses have been shown on cash basis. The net Income from 
other activities has been shown in the statement of Financial Performance and the balances have been added to the 
opening balance of the respective activities and shown under current liabilities as self financing courses.

	 2.11	 Excess of Expenditure over Income

		T  he Excess of Expenditure over Income is Rs. 1,236,122,034 occurred due to the inclusion of the following non 
cash items.

	 1)	  Depreciation for Non-Current Assets	 775,669,505
	 2)	 Provision for Gratuity	 497,869,066
			   1,273,538,571

	 2.12	 Receivables

		  Receivables are stated at the amount estimated to realise.
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	 2.13	 Liabilities and Provisions
  
		  All known liabilities as at the reporting date are included in the Financial Statements and adequate provisions are 

made for liabilities which are known to exist other than the amount of which can be determined accurately.

	 2.14	 Assets and basis of their valuation

		  As per the approval of the Council all assets categories other than Books & Periodical, depreciation and provision 
for depreciation as at 31.12.2019 had been adjusted based on verification and revaluation on assets made by 
M/S Carter De Costa Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd who was assigned with preparation of Fixed Assets Register. 
Verification and revaluation of the Assets at 31.12.2014 and additions during the year 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 
had been taken into accounts.

	 2.15	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation is provided at the following rates as per the University Grants Commission Circular No. 649 of 
05/10/95. No depreciation is charged for land.

Buildings	 5%
Office Furniture	 10%
Office Equipment	 20%
Books and Periodicals	 20%
Vehicles	 20%
Cloaks	 20%
Telephone	 20%
Plant and Machinery	 10%

3 Events after the Reporting date

    There are no material events subsequent to the financial year which require additional disclosure in the Financial Statements.

	 3.1	 Assets Donation in 2019

		  Assets donated from different donors in 2019 has been properly accounted. Details of donors and amount are shown 
bellow.

Donors Amount
Rs.

Assets Donated from Accelerating Higher Expansion and 
Development (AHEAD)

118,776,071

Indian Government Grant 665,553,475

UNSW Sydeny 10,246,000

Mr.Rubasingam
Vairavapuliangulam, Vavuniya.

95,000

Ms.Sherina Thiriloganathan
President, Miracle Family Care

688,000

Total 795,358,546



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.03.2021 513

Notes to the Financial Position 2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Note 04 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balance - Restricted Fund
Bank Balance-Treasury Fund
Imprest Kilinochchi, Franking Machine and Stamps in hand

32,371,060.47
1,153,949.61

56.331.40

52,675,243.35
1,517,322.56

46,715.08

33,581.341.48 54,239,280.99

Note 05 Trade and Other Receivable
Bond Obligation - Receivable
Sundry Debtors
Loans and Advances / Staff
Advance to Supplies and Services
Advance to Buildings
Imports Advance
Others

62,777,924.12
480,033.42

155,043,412.01
227,037,341.16
187,553,385.45

1,661,795.00
134.204.442.50
768,758,333.66

75,178,044.75
480,033.42

143,589,689.50
197,645,798.36
228,936.005.22

1.614,821.72
127,555,379.62
774,999,772.59

Note 06 Inventories / Stocks
Inventories Main Stores
Inventories in Department

16,278,347.67
17,395,512.28

17,830,710.10
18,777,204.35

33,673,859.95 36,607,914.45

Note 07 Investments (Short Term)
Special Deposit for Library Books
Fixed Deposit Bio Chemistry Extension Course
Faculty of Science Research Development
Vingnanam Journal Investment
Medical Faculty Development Fund Investment
Investment A/C - Restricted Fund
Vice Chancellor's Welfare Fund Savings A/C
Science Fac. Equipment Fund - Investment

217,693.23
1.431,089.93
1.469,417.13

91,900.26
908,262.45

720,000,000.00
430,379.25

3,678,715.95

217,693.23
1,431,089.93
1,469,417.13

91,900.26
908,262.45

670,000,000.00
1,951,857.16
3,678,715.95

728.227.458.20 679,748,936.11

Note 08 Investments (Long Term)
Endowment Fund Investment
Security Deposit
Sundry Investment
Vice Chancellor’s Welfare Fund

307,772,428.55
624,769.09

96,029,671.44
4.750.000.00

295,682.155.65
559,951.40

90,979,356.91
4,695,206.28

409,176,869.08 391,916,670.24
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Note 10 Capital Work in Progress

2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Opening Balance 2, 164,390,316.34 1,515,939,393.61
Additions during the year 536,159,576.87 648.450,922.73
Transfer during the year (Building) (1,800,464,389. 68)

 900,085,503.53 2,164,390,316.34

Note 11 Payables
Sundry Creditors 86,232,401.27 143,469,536.93
Outstanding  Wages-Unpaid Salary 103,745.20 260,712 .64
Others 109,655,009.29 77,431,366.21

195,991,155.76 221,161,615.78
Note 12 Accrued Expenses

Accrued Expenses 70,887,720.33 43,026,771.04
Provision for Accruals 1,348, 420.00

 	 72,236,140.33 43,026,771.04

Note 13 Self Financing Courses
Diploma in Physical Education 93,443.95 235,781.55
Bio Chemistry Extension course Fund (Msc in Bio-Chemistry) 1,431,089.53 1,431,089.53
Master of Education 43,505,585.86 36,377,041.87
Certificate Course in English Lang. Teaching for Non Eng. Teache 2,078,858.20 2,078,858.20
Dip. In English for Officers 905,769.40 905,769.40
Computer Education for Staff Officers 220,000.00 220,000.00
Income from External Exam Unspent 38,481,733.89 41,148,816.96
Post Graduate Dip.in Education - Part time 2,757,672 .30 3,323,904.90
Diploma in Journalism 1,471,900.92 1,472,540.92
M.A in Tamil 4,210,719.77 5,131,173.68
M.A in Saiva Siddhanta 1,836,229.61 819,174.11
BBM Online Degree Programme 53,114,059.00 46,415,204.47
BBM Online Degree Programme B-IX 3,922.125.72
MSc in Environmental Management 2,138,096.90 2,601 ,473.66
MSc in Health Management 1,564,247.10 1,508,547.10
M.A in.Cultural Studies 1,890,745.14 2,844,818.97
Dip. In Community Dev. & Management 112,217.09 112,217.09
Post Grad. Dip.In English as Second Language 438,759.44 538,977.92
Ext. Programme in English V/C 465,348.78 464,848.78
G.I.S Trainning 22,230.00 22,230.00
Post graduate Dip. In Library Information Science 1,068,715.00 456,997.50
Diploma in Human Resourses 710,644.80 710,644.80
Diploma in Management & Marketing 1,027,027.95 1,025,527.95
Diploma in Micro Finance 1,325,444.35 1,547,948.35
Diploma Couse in MS office V/C 70,092.00 99,760.00
Master of Business Administration Bach I 50,291,969.31 43,727,284.54
Bachelor of Commerce (External) 20,434,695.00 9,310,938.70
B.A External 27,042,387.50 8,276,105.45
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ICDA 1,855,975.06 1,700,264.38
ICCM 1,521,856.75
Intergrated Farm & Training Centre F/Agriculture
JUICE 2016
Certificate Course in Molecular Biology

8,373,008.57
253,790.18
81,059.00

253,790.18
164,000.00

Certificate Programme of Farm Machinery Management 240,000.00

Recorp Fish Project University of Amsterdam 1,591,323.00 1,591,323.00
276.,548,821.07 216,517,053.96

2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Note 14 Payable
Deposit-Refundable
Security Deposit Payable 767,800.17 655,163.44
Science Deposit Post Graduate 450.500 .00 678,500.00
Hall Deposit 1,354,950.00 872,150.00
Cloak Deposit 185,000.00 118,000.00
Tender Deposit 774,006.04 975.625.00
Library Deposit 2,548 ,250.00 2,477 ,250.00
Library Hall Deposit 86,500.00 86,500.00
Science Deposit Under Graduate 393,800.00 23,800.00
Science Deposit Under Graduate V.C. 1,106,600.00 877,600.00
Rental Deposit 30,500.00 30,500.00
Security Deposit - V.C 217,516.52 154,235.56
Performance Bond U/J 1,607,115.52 596,115.52
BID Security Diposit V/C 33,600.00
Library Deposit Dip. In Commn. Dev. Mgt. B I 47,000.00 47,000.00
Library Deposit Dip. In Commn. Dev. Mgt. B III 82,500.00 82,500.00
Library Deposit Ext. Prog. Community Dev.ll 37,000.00 37,000.00
Canteen Deposit V/C 140,000.00 100,000.00

9,829,038.25 7,845,539.52

Note 15 Restricted Fund and Specific Reserve
2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Endowment Fund 397,186,732.74 371,719,907.78
Memorial Lectures 1,078,935.97 1,055,667.35
Development Fund 47,951,646.87 36,263,414.04
Special Grant 450,563.65 450,563.65
Research Grant 3,154, 192.94 3,230,396.75
Gifts and Donations 173,914,476.68 49,397,352.81
JICA Fund (Ministry) 1,587,073.44
Tsunami Fund (Ministry) 30,473,357.58
Vice Chancellor's Welfare Fund 8,031,534.38 8,004,857.93
Rector's Welfare Fund 264, 183.37 244,866.50
Computer Development Reserve 110,028.41 110,028.41
English Language Teaching Centre Unspent 3,008,589.65 3,008,589.65
Grant for Management Faculty Development Fund 50,975.00 50,975.00
Sivasiththantha Arthmapala fund 50,000.00 50,000.00

	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Student Deposit Investment Fund 1,779,471.78 1,779,471.78
Balance from restricted fund Spent 21,528,417.86 21,528.417.86
Balance from restricted fund 17,967,200.03 17,967,200.03
Panchadcharam Awarde (3,187.50) (3,187.50)
University Development Fund V/C 761,848.34 2,808,648.34
University Development Fund 19,474.059.64 8,366,804.64
University Development Fund Spent 35,289,653.39 35,289,653.39
Induction Programme SDC 22,000.00 22,000.00
Lee Ko·ng Chain Endowment 3,899,000.00 3,999,000.00
Interest from Swept A/C 575,746.86 296,081.30
Interest from Restricted Fund-Spent A/C 54,317,538.67
Interest from Restricted Fund	  	                     30,518,059.63	 91,877.472.34 
                                                                                                                            853,442,099.38	   657,518,182.05

Note 16 Accumulated Fund(Capital Grant)
Capital Grant Spent 8,256,727,792.79 7,631,182,777.90
Unspent Capital Grant 12,548, 170.03 8,093.184.92
Contribution to Capital Outlay 137,951,576.18 137,951,576.18
Contri. to Assets taken from other Institutions

UJ
VC

        16,843,764.54
   25,740 ,440 .81 42,584,205.35               42,584,205.35

Computer Development Reserve Spent                          398,960.00	 398,960.00
Capital Receipts 4, 108,318,921.22           3,220,400,630.14

12,558,529,625.57 11,040,611,334 .49

16A Accumulated Surplus /( Deficit) (Income & Expenditure)
Opening Balance ( 1,128,762,635.23) (386,204,493.84)
Current Year Balance (1,236.122,033.89) (717,788,058.18)
Prior year Provision for Depreciation adjustment (1,735, 145.78)
Transferred to Restricted Fund	 (50,815,285.84)

(2,415,699,954.96)
(23,034,937.43)

(1,128,762,635.23)

Note 17 General Reserve
Opening Balance (1,199,074,655.05) (1,160,831,046.16)
Prior year adjustments (23,805,325.73) (38,243,608.89)
Closing Balance (1,222,879,980.78) (1,199,074,655.05)

Note 18 Bond Obligation - Reserve
Received 83,929,480.30 78,245,681.49
Receivable 62,777,924.12 75,178,044.75
Interest Received 52,677,470 .64 44,713,233.61

199,384,875.06 198,136,959.85
Note 18A Revaluation - Reserve
Revaluation Surplus Opening 2,057,770,363.82 2,794,431,974.13
Revaluation net deficit (22,919,211 .50) (736,661,610.31)

2,034,851, 152.32 2,057,770,363.82
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Notes to the Statement of Financial Performance

Note 19 - Recurrent Grant

2019
Rs.

2018
Rs.

Grant from Treasury	 	   3,363,488,000 .00	  2 ,574,235,000 .00	
  3,363,488,000 .00	 2,574,235,000.00

Note 20 - Net lncome/(Loss) from other Activities

Diploma in Physical Education (295,241 .64) (206,639.70)
Diploma in MS office (29,668.00) 22,250.00
Master of Education 7,128,543.99 6,395,133.21
External Exam (2,667,083.07) 9, 160,690.10
Post Graduate Dip.in Education(Part time) (566,232.60) 2,984,253.15
Post Graduate Diploma in Library Information Studies 611,717 .50 (65, 150.00)
Diploma in Journalism (640.00) 10,350.00
Master of Business Administration 6,564,634 .77 (6,787, 126.00)
M.A in Tamil (920,453.91) (1,332,396 .64)
M.A in Saiva Siddhanta 1,017,055.50 (531, 156.44)
BBM Online Degree Programme 10,620,980.25 6,773,270.12
Dip in Marketing & Management 1,500.00 (1,360.00)
M.Sc in  Environmental Management (463,376.76) 1,546,820.72
M.Sc in Health Management 55,700.00 (48,575.00)
Diploma in Micro Finance (285,004.00} 103,086.00
PGD in teaching English as Second language (100,218.48) (493,250 .51)
Bachelor of Commerce  (External) 11,123,756.30 4,323,593.50
Bachelor of Arts (External) 18,766,282 .05 (1,601,866 .55)
Integrated Farm & Training Centre 1,207,107.77 –

 MA in Cultural Studies (954,073.83)
50,815,285.84

2,783,011.47
23,034,937.43

	 	  Note 21- Other Income
Interest from Investment 5,721 .87 1,285,035.40
Interest from Loan 5,974,284.45 5,219,463.27
Rent from Property 5,791,961 .61 2,296 ,956.29
Sale of Unserviceable Article 60,184.00
Sale of old Stores 25,758.00 160,873.00
Sale of produce 1,384,843.03 1,116,473.27
Sale of Publication 6,525.00
 Misc.Receipts 12,928,974.28 6,630,862.35
Registration Fees - Undergraduate 1.412,750.00 1,349,290 .00
Registration Fees - Postgraduate 948,600.00 337,175.00
Tuition Fees - Postgraduate 3,734,500 .00 1,689,000.00
Examination Fees - Undergraduate 4,725,540 .00 3,839,070.00
Examination Fees - Postgraduate 830,300.00 640,650.00
Library Fine 11,989.00 28,326.00
Medical Fees 1,201,450.00 1,033,390.00
Discount Received 324,881.14 447,897 .09
Income from other Activities 1,704,406.44 321,163.09
Liquidity Damages 700,814.96 50,878.82
Rent Hostel 9,379,715.00 9,584,360.00

51,086,489.78 36,097,572.58
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Note 22 Grant for  Financial Assistance  to Students
   Bursary 22.1 78,381,200.00 85,317,400.00
   Mahapola Treasury Component 22.2 45,915,350.00 75,121,900.00
   Mahapola Trust Component 22.3 47,795,250 .00 82,251 ,850.00   

172,091 ,800.00 242,691,150.00

22.1  Bursary
Jaffna 63,360,300.00	 77,289,700.00

Vavuniya  	 15,020,900.00	 8,027,700.00 
78,381,200.00	 85,317,400.00

22.2 Mahapola Treasury Component
Jaffna 42,661 ,750.00	 69,325,200.00
Vavuniya  	 3,253,600.00	 5,796,700.00 

45,915,350.00	 75,121,900.00

22.3 Mahapola Trust  Component
Jaffna 44,408,650.00 76,218,350.00
Vavuniya 3,386,600.00 6,033,500.00

47,795,250.00 82,251,850.00

Note  23 Operating Expenses (Details Shown in 23A)
Personnel Emoluments 2,887,788,656.81 2,202,140,836.11
Travelling 10,209,393.29 9,139,914.91
Supplies 89,069,898.18 109,202,844.36
Maintenance 48,302,549.52 45,824,294.08
Contractual Services 345,449,492.09 296,564,413.59
Depreciation 775,669,505.28 628,615,682.41
Provision for Gratuity 497,869,065.79 50,088,374.28
Other Operating Expenses 128,201,936.55 99,544,316.45

4,782,560,497.51 3,441 ,120,676.19

Note  24 Payment of Financial Assistance to Students
Bursary 78,381,200.00 85,317,400.00
Mahapola  Treasury Component 45,915,350.00 75,121 ,900.00
Mahapola  Trust Component 47,795,250.00 82,251,850.00

172,091,800.00 242,691.150.00

Note 26 Surplus/(Deficit)
Surplus/(Deficit) (1,236,122,033.89)	 (717,788,058.18)
Transfer to Restricted Fund  	 (50,815,285.84)	 (23,034,937.43)

(1,286,937,319 .73)	 (740,822,995.61)

Note 25 Unusual Items 
Vavuniya Campus write off 		  60,184.00
Losses & write off		  37,240.00
Loss recovery for Cloak	 (7,000.00)
Lost of Laptop	 (41,688.00)	 (62,532.00)
	 (48,688.00)	 34,892.00
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Object Code Object Title
Actual Expenditure 

2019
01 Personal Emoluments 2,887,788,656.81

1101-1
1101-2

Salaries	
Pension	

1,073,009,354.59
123,318,800.37

1101-3 U.P.F. 178,663,801.91

1101-4 E.T.F 60,259,193.37
1101-5 Gratuities 42,861,215.85
1102 Overtime & Holiday Pay 33,814,768.90
1106 Visiting Lecture Fees Including Travelling & Subsistence to Visiting Lecturers 17,239,937.40
1108 Monthly Compensative Allowance (MCA) 171,767,681.96
1109-1 Other Allowance (Dean's Allow. Heads of Dept, etc.) 3,291,504.07
1109-2 Entertaintment Allowance 6,255,036.45
1109-3 Acting Allowance 555,590.33
1111 Language Allowance –
1112-1 Cost of Living Allowance 165,264,424.25
1112-2 Income Tax _
1115 Academic Allowance 670,688,250.28
1116 Equalisation Allowance 3,355.13
1117 Research Allowance 148,916,487.72
1122 Special Allowance 553,237.59
1123 20% Additional Allowance 170,096,853.14
1125 Interiam Allowance 40,000.00
1128 Transport Allowance 7,192,360.00
1129 Fuel Allowance 2,200,562.00
1130 Adjusted Allowance 11,796,241.50

 –
02TRAVELLING EXPENSES 10,209,393.29

1201 Travelling Expenses (Local) 5,915,572.08
1202 Travelling Expenses (Foreign) 4,293,821.21

–
03SUPPLIES 89,069,898.18

1301 Stationery & Office requisites 35,070,177.81
1302 Fuel & Lubricants 9,992,417.54
1303 Uniforms including tailoring charges 4,021,472.91
1304-1 Mechanical & Electrical goods. 945,343.25
1304-2 Chemical & Glassware 22,056,482.69
1305 Medical Supplies 2,788,305.06
1309 Other Supplies 14,195,698.92

_
04MINOR REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 48,302,549.52

1401-1 Vehicles 8,086,075.19
1401-2 Plant & Machinery 11,367,685.84
1402-1 Buildings & Structure 24,353,106.27
1402-2 Furniture 340,182.00
1402-3 Other Services 4,155,500.22

University of Jaffna – Sri Lanka
Actual Expenditure by Objects - 2019
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05 CONTRACTUAL  SERVICES 345,449,492.09
1501    Transport 438,2 13.33

Communications 25,304.25
1502- 1   Telecommunication 42, 174,235.07
1502-2   

1503-1   

Postage
Utilities
Electricity

3,091,693.04
–

78,461,979.50
1503-2    Water 355,031.87

Rental & Hire Charges  -
1504-1    Rent 8,440,860.00
1504-2    Hiring Charges 16,838,157.60
1505       Rates, Taxes and Insurance 1,998,010.93

Printing & Advertisement –
1506-1    Printing 7,408,085.90
1506-2    Advertisement 7,840,906.30

Other Contractual Services –
1507-1    Security Services 67,668,327.20
1507-2    Cleaning Services 69,420,762.04
1507-3    Other Services 41,287,925.06

Other recurrent expenses 128,201,936.55
1601 Subscriptions, Contributions and Membership Fees - Local 369,356.00
1602 Subscriptions, Contributions and Membership Fees - Foreign 1,208.130.01
1607 Academic Research & Publication -
1608 Work Shop Seminar 2,199,689.97
1609 Grant to Other Organisation 286,130.60
1610 Awards & Indemnities 250,000.00
1611 Loses and write-offs 16,500.00
1612 Holiday Warrants, Season Tickets 2.832,580.00

Special Services -
1613-1 Audit Fees 1,624,000.00
1613-2 Council Members' Fees etc. 2,415,150.00
1614 Convocation 4,811.321.50
1615 Entertainment Expenses 4,878.616.02
1616-1 Other Recurrent Expenses 21,427,759.94
1616-2 Bank Charges 520.00
1617 Examination Expenses 70.812.436.23
1618 Post Graduate Research & Schlorships –
1619 Course Materials for Students &Learning Quality improvements 232,000.00
1620 Industry intemship.practicals&carer guidance 476.612.00
1621 Training for teachers,Administrators&Other Employees 1.253,787.23
1622 Students Development initiatives&community 86.330.00
1623 Universities Sports activities 2,131,331.92
1624 Students Welfare,Employee Welfare,Student Council & Social harmony –
1625 Corporative planing,govemance&outreach –
1626 Interest subsidy on property loan 10,889.685.13

-
Total Operating Expenses 3,509,021,926.44

-
07  FINANCIAL  ASSISTANCE TO STUDENTS -

Endowed Scholarship
1704-1 Treasury Component
1704-2 Donors Component
1705 Bursaries

Mahapola
1706-1 Treasury Component
1706-2 Mahapola Trust Component

08 Depreciation of Fixed Assets 775,669,505.28
09 Provision for Gratuity 497,869,065.79

4,782,560,497.51
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Vice Chancellor,
University of Jaffna.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements  and  Other Legal  and Regulatory Requirements of 
the University of Jaffna for the year ended 31st  December,  2019 in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act,  
No. 19 of  2018
	
1. Financial Statements  

	 1.1	 Opinion  

		T  he audit of the financial statements of the University  of Jaffna (“University”)  for the year ended 31st December, 2019 
comprising the statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2019 and the statement of financial performance, 
statement of  changes  in  equity  and  cash  flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements,  including a summary of significant accounting  policies,  was  carried   out  under  my  direction   in   
pursuance  of  provisions  in Article 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka  read  
in  conjunction with  provisions of the National  Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and  Section  107(5) of the  Universities Act, 
No. 16 of 1978. My comments  and  observations  which  I  consider  should  be  published  with the Annual Report of  
the  University in   terms  or Sub-section 108(I)  of  the Universities Act appear in this report. My report to Parliament 
in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(6) of the Constitution  will be tabled in due course.

		I  n my opinion, the accompanying financial  statements  give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
University as at 31st December, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended  in  
accordance  with  Sri  Lanka  Public Sector Accounting Standards.

	 1.2	B asis for Opinion  

		I    conducted  my  audit  in  accordance  with  Sri  Lanka  Auditing   Standards (SLAuSs).  My responsibilities, under  
those  standards  are  further  described  in  the  Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of my report. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.

	 1.3	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

		  Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

		I  n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the University’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

		T  hose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University’s financial reporting process.

		  As per Section 16 (1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, the University is required to maintain proper books 
and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to 
be prepared of the University.

	 1.4	 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

		  My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assuarance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka 
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Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

		  As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also, 

	 •	I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the University’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, I am required to draw attention in my report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

		I   communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I Identify during my audit.

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

		  National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 includes specific provisions for following requirements.

	 •	I  have obtained all the information and explanation that required for the audit and as far as appears from my 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the University as per the requirement of Section 12 (a) 
of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

	 •	T he Financial Statements presented is consistant with the preceding year as per the requirement of section 6 (1)  
(d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.  

	 •	T he financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in the previous year as per the 
requirement of section 6(l)(d)(iv) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

		  Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained were limited to matters that are material nothing has come 
to my attention;

	 •	 to state that any member of the governing  body  of the University has any direct or indirect interest in any contract 
entered  into by the University which are out of the normal  cause of business as per the requirement of  section  
12(d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

	 •	 to state that University has not complied with any applicable written law, general and special directions issued by 
the governing body of the University as per the requirement of section 12(f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 
2018 except for the observations given below.
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	 Reference to Laws, Rules/ Directions	 Description
 ;

	 (a)	F inancial Regulation of the Democratic 
		  Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

	 (i)	F inancial Regulation 139	 Paid vouchers, relating to the recurrent expenditure of 
Kilinochchi premises amounting to Rs. 1,658,443 paid in 
January 2019, had not been initialled by the Paying officer.

	 (ii)	F inancial Regulation 267	 A sum of Rs. 7,096,677 had been paid as salaries to employees 
in 68 instances of Vavuniya Campus in November 2019 without 
obtaining receipts from them.

	 (iii)	F inancial Regulation · 371(2)(b)	 Advances amounting to Rs. 2,016,120 paid in 23 instances to 
employees in the Kilinochchi Faculty, had not been settled on 
due dates, and thus, the period of delays in settlement had been 
in the range from 1 month to 7 months.

	 (iv)	F inancial Regulation 835	 Valuation reports had not been taken from the Valuation 
Department to determine the rent of Bank of Ceylon (BOC) 
University Branch .and rent of People’s Bank ATMs for signing 
the tenancy agreements established at the University premises. 
Further, action had not been taken to renew the existing 
agreement with the People’s Bank Branch in the University 
premises. As a result, a considerable amount of rent income 
could not be obtained for more than 16 years period. 

	
	 (b)	U niversity Grants Commission Circulars  

	 (i)	 Establishments Circular No. 04/2013	T he Boards of Survey had not been completed during the year
		  of 10th April, 2013. 	 under review.

	 (ii)	 Establishments Circular No. 13/2017 of 	T he services of a dance lecturer had been terminated by the  
		  06 September, 2017. 	 University with effect from 04th April, 2016 as she had 

not acquired the necessary postgraduate qualification for 
confirmation of service. Further,  she had been appointed to the 
post of temporary lecturer in dance with effect from 01st April, 
2016. Even though, in accordance with the Establishment 
Circular Letter No. 13/2017 dated 06th September, 2017 of the 
University Grants Commission that the  postgraduate degree 
obtained through online learning mode could not be considered 
as acceptable qualification for confirmation and promotion of 
academic staff  members, she had been confirmed in the post of 
lecturer with effect from 01st April, 2008, and also promoted 
to the post of Senior Lecture Grade II in dance with effect from  
30th December, 2016 by the University Council at its 425th 
meeting held on 30th December, 2017.

	 •	 to state that the University has not performed according to its powers, functions and duties as per the requirement 
of section 12(g) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

 	 •	 to state that the resources of the University not been procured and utilized economically, efficiently and effectively 
within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws as per the requirement of section l 2(h) of the 
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 except for the following observations.
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3. Other Audit Observations

	 (a)	 Appropriate actions had not been taken by the University to recover the distress loan balances of retired staff 
amounting to Rs. 132,110 outstanding for over 8 years and two years, loan balance amounting to Rs. 7,875 
outstanding for over 21 years, shown as receivables in the financial statement for the year under review.

	 (b)	T hree (3) refundable deposits, received from students, aggregated amount  of Rs. 166,500 had been remained 
unsettled in General Deposit Account without being taken proper actions for over eight (8) years.

	 (c)	 Aggregated amount of advances of Rs. 2,052,946 provided for various purposes to several institutions had not 
been settled for a period ranging from 5 to 8 years. Further Travelling  Advance  amounted  to Rs. 310,575 paid  
to  the  officers  of the  University in the year under review had not been settled up to 15th June, 2020. 

 
	 (d)	 Outstanding balances of four items amounted to Rs. 1,990,474 had been shown in the financial statements as 

“Restricted Fund and Specific Reserve” under the non-current liabilities for more than 9 years without being taken 
proper actions to utilize them for intended purposes.

	 (e)	 Sixty nine (69) academic staff and twenty one (21) non-academic staff of the University, who had been granted 
scholarships, had not reported for duty or left  from the service of the University after completion of the 
scholarships. However, the University had not taken prompt actions to recover the bonds aggregated amount of 
Rs. 62,777,924 for the period from the year 1987 to 2019 in terms of agreements.

	 (f)	 According  to  the  University  Grants  Commission  (UGC)  Circular  No.  636  of  14 July 1995, examination 
results  should be released within three months-after the exarnination but there were delay periods ranging from 
04 months to  17 months  by the four faculties of the University  during the year 2019. Therefore, the students had  
been  deprived to get their employment opportunities in time. Even  though  this matter was pointed  out in  my 
previous  years  audit  reports,  meaningful  actions  had  not  been  taken  by  the  relevant authorities to release 
the result within three month after the examination. 

 	
 	 (g)	 Advances aggregating Rs. 510,147 paid during the period from 2016 to 2018 for supplies of books and periodicals 

had not been received even up to the date of this report.

	 (h)	 Out of 1,588 hours of total allocated hours for theoretical lectures, 354 hours· had not been completed by the 
academic lecturers of the Faculty of Agriculture and Engineering in the year under review.

	 (i)	T he University had incurred a sum of Rs. 11,555,865 for 61 researchers in the year under review and previous 
two years. Even though the projected period of the researches had ended at the end of years 2017 to 2019, 
approximately more than 70 percent of the research cost had been paid, the progress of researches and final reports 
of them had not been submitted to the University by researches since 2017.

	 (j)	I dle and unusable items amounting to Rs. 857,145 and Rs. 803,728 respectively had not been used for any function 
and, remained idle in stores of the University for a period ranging from 05 to 21 years.

	 (k)	 A sum  of  Rs.  61,242,337 had  been  paid  to various  contractors  during  the  year  2019 which the constructions 
works should have been completed before the end of the year under review. However, it was observed that those 
works had not been completed within the stipulated period and, completion reports or details about extensions 
period and reasons of extensions were not made available for audit. 

	 (1)	T otal estimated cost of the construction of the proposed Faculty of Applied Science (Stage III Phase III) in 
Vavuniya Campus of University of Jaffna was amounting to Rs. 99,439,978 and; out of which a sum of  
Rs. 55,000,000 had been paid to the Provincial Department of Building as an advance with the target of completion 
of constructions on or before 01 January 2018 and, subsequently, the target date for completion had been extended 
up to 01 November 2018. However, only a sum of Rs. 39,547,180 or 72 per cent had been utilized by the Provincial 
Department of Building even up to the end of the year under review. Accordingly, it was observed that no proper 
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mechanism had been designed and implemented by the University for monitoring and supervising of construction 
of contracts.

	 (m)	 Appropriate actions had not been taken by the management of the University to fill vacancies timely. As a result, 
181 vacancies in key academic posts, 25 academic support staff vacancies in seven faculties and 40 academic staff 
vacancies in Vavuniya Campus were observed.

	 (n)	 Even  though   uniform   materials costed for Rs.  4,021,472   had  been  provided  for employees  of the University  
in the year 2019, they had  used  to wear  informal  suits in their duty time.  Accordingly , it was observed  that a 
proper  internal  control  system to ensure that  wearing of uniforms in duty  times  had  not  been  implemented 
by the management.

	 (o)	 Vehicle allowance amounting to Rs. 1,740,000 and Fuel allowance amounting to Rs. 710,360 had been paid to 
an Acting Bursar of the University for his acting service period from the year 2015 to 2018 in contrary with the 
Establishment Circulars of No. 13/2015 of 18th September, 2015 and No. 13/2015(i) of 09th January, 2016.

	 (p)	 According to the Establishments Circular No. 10/2017 of 10th July, 2017, salaries amounting to Rs. 1,403,804,856 
had been paid to academic staff of the University during the year under review without being confirmed their 
arrival and departure through finger scanner. This matter was noted in Audit Reports since 2012.

	 (q)	 Annual Report for the year 2018 had not been tabled in Parliament even up to 15th May, 2020 in compliance with 
the Section 6.5.3 of the Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/12 of 02nd June, 2003.

W. P. C. Wickramaratne,
Auditor General.

Response to the Report of Auditor General on the Financial Statements and other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
of the University of Jaffna, for the year ended 31st December, 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, 
No.19 of 2018

At the outset we wish to report that the issues raised in the report had been seriously discussed at the Audit Committee, 
Finance Committee and at the Council and follow up actions taken on a regular basis. Most of these issues highlighted in 
this report has already been rectified and tight control system has been implemented to prevent recurrence. Remaining issues 
too are taken very seriously and actions taken to correct these issues promptly.

We have been conducting regular Audit committee meeting and monthly Finance Committee meeting to address all 
the financial and non-financial issues very seriously and obtain Council directions and closely monitored. The Council of the 
University is very particular in preserving the image of the University through good governance practices.

We have promptly responded to all the observations made in the draft report by our letter dated on 15.06.2020, 
however we have noticed that some of the observation, although explained satisfactorily, are allowed to continue in the final 
report.We now give our detail response to those issues highlighted in the final report explaining further action taken and the 
current status of those matters while assuring all possible actions will be taken to prevent recurrent in the future. 

Detail Response on the issues highlighted in the report

2. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
		
	 (a)	F inancial Regulation of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka	

	 (i)	 Paying officer for 1st and 2nd Signatures properly signed in the paid vouchers. All paid vouchers included paid 
date and completion mark. Instructions have been given to Shroff to place their signature in the payment vouchers 
in the future.
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	 (ii)	 Currently the salary slips are sent to all departments and get the signatures monthly without any delay. All 
employees are now signing the receipt for their salary payment on monthly basis without any default. 

	 (iii)	 We have taken strict action to settle advances as soon as the event is completed. Close monitoring mechanism 
has been implemented to monitor unsettled advances and action has been taken to recover them from respective 
persons when there is any default.

	 (iv)	 Action has already been taken to get the report from the Valuation Department to fix the rent for Bank of Ceylon 
(BOC)University Branch, Bank of Ceylon ATM and Peoples Bank ATM at the University premises. As soon as 
the report is received we will fix the rent for the Bank of Ceylon (BOC) University Branch, Bank of Ceylon ATM 
and Peoples Bank ATM in the University premises and sign tenancy agreement.

	 (b)	U niversity Grant Commission Circulars

	 (i)	 Board of Survey for 2019 had been already completed in the month of August 2020. The delay has been mainly 
due to the crisis situation arising from the COVID 19. Timely Completion will be made in the future.

	 (ii)	 Particular Lecturer was appointed as Lecturer (Probationary) in Dance with effect from 01.04.2008. She 
has completed her M.F.A (Bharathanatiyam)  off-Campus degree programme with two years duration at the 
Bharathidasan University, India without availing study leave in 2009.

		  Council at its 408th meeting held on 01.04.2016 decided to terminate the service of Particular Lecturer with 
effect from 01.04.2016 since she has not acquired the necessary postgraduate qualification for her confirmation 
of services within eight years of probationary period and decided to appoint her as temporary lecturer w.e.f 
01.04.2016.

		  As per the UGC Establishments Circular letter No. 13/2017 dated 06.09.2017 Post graduate degrees obtained 
through online learning mode cannot be considered as acceptable qualifications for the recruitment, confirmation 
and promotion of academic staff members and the decision came into effect from 15.09.2017.

		T  he University Council at its 424th meeting held on 09.12.2017 having considered the above UGC circular 
decided that off campus degree programme would be considered for the purpose of confirmation of services for 
the Post of Lecturer for the academic staff members who obtained the off –campus degree programme before 
the effective date of 15.09.2017 and the Selection Committee was summoned for confirmation of services of the 
above staff accordingly. 

		T  he Selection Committee considered the application of Particular Lecturer, postgraduate qualification obtained, 
the services from her appointment and the decision taken at the Council at its 424th meeting held on 09.12.2017 
with regard to the off-campus degree programme based on the UGC Establishments Circular letter No. 13/2017 
of 06.09.2017 and recommended that Particular Lecturer to be confirmed in the post of Lecturer with effect from 
01.04.2008.

		F  urther, considering her Doctor of philosophy in Bharathanatiyam which is required for promotion, she was 
promoted to the post of Senior Lecturer Grade-II with effect from 30.12.2016, the date on which she had obtained 
Doctor of philosophy.  

3. Other Audit Observations

	 (a)	 Loans recovery exceeded more than 6 years due to no pay leave, vacation of post, termination of service, 
retirement from the service etc. The unrecovered loan outstanding staffs not yet claimed their UPF fund. We have 
a clear control and procedure to recover it from their UPF balance when releasing the UPF fund. 

	 (b)	T hree (3) refundable deposits had been already recognized as misc. income   in the month of June 2020.
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	 (c)	 Currently total aggregated amount of advance has been bought down from Rs. 2,052,946.75 to Rs.1,176,066.75 
(Reduction of Rs. 876,880). Following action has been taken to recover the unsettled advances immediately. 
Moreover, we have already strengthened our internal control system to closely monitor unsettled outside advances 
and which are currently under control.

Details Amount
Rs.

Action

Advances - Nallur
Pradeshiya Sabha

405,698.06 Expenses for building approval was paid as an advance for submitting applications 
to Nallur Pradeshiya Sabha for 4 construction projects. Approval was not granted 
so far due to non-submission of some documents required by Nallur Pradeshiya 
Sabha. Action taken to submit those documents to Nallur Pradeshiya Sabha. Once 
the approvals are obtained, the said advances will be settled.

Advances - Water 
Supply – NWS & 
DB 

 895,645.31 Rs. 866,880 was settled. Action has been taken to settle balance advances without 
any delay.

Advances -
Sri Lanka National 
Arbitration Centre

10,000.00 Fully settled on 06.07.2020. Receipt No. A19243

UGC Research 
Grant Advance

101,028.38 Advance was given for research study purpose and the studies has not been completed 
yet. After the completion of studies settlement of advance will be made.

Advance to
Research 
for National
Development

616,080.00 Action has been taken to settle the advance without any further delay. If the particular 
staff fails to settle the advance, recovery will be made from the salary immediately.

Advance to 
National Water 
supply V/C

24,495.00 Action has been taken to settle the advance without any further delay. If the particular 
staff fails to settle the advance recovery will be made from the salary immediately.

Total 2,052,946.75

	 (d)	T he University of Jaffna is receiving funds for various purposes from different well-wishers. When we receive the 
amounts those were credited to the respective ledger accounts and such funds are kept in Fixed Deposits on short 
term investment basis. The interest earned from the respective investment is taken into account and utilized for 
the particular purposes indicated by the donors when such event occurs. Science faculty Development fund of Rs. 
1,990,474 has still not used for any specific purpose since the donor is yet to indicated the payment for any special 
tasks. As soon as we receive the direction from the Endowment Fund committee, we will take action to use the 
fund.

	 (e)	 On the direction of the Council various measures have been introduced to improve the bond obligation through 
the Committee on obligations of Bond and Agreements. Currently total outstanding amounts of bond obligation 
amount to Rs. 62.77 million. The meeting of the Committee on obligations of Bond and Agreements had been 
continuously reviewing them and a policy paper in this regard had been prepared codifying all the procedures to 
scrutinize the legal requirements and which has been approved by the University Council at its 426th meeting held 
on 24.02.2018. University Grants Commission has published all the names of the defaulters of all the Universities 
in the Newspaper in 2018. Assistant Registrar Legal & documentation has been appointed and will explore legal 
action in this regard.
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	 (f)	 Monthly Reports regarding release of examination results with the details of examinations, date of examinations 
held, details of subjects for which results have not been released and period of delay are submitted to the Senate 
regularly. In addition Internal Circular has been issued by the Competent Authority on 04.03.2020 and reported to 
Council indicating the procedures, guidelines and rules to expedite the process of releasing results. Accordingly it 
is the responsibility of the Deans of the Faculties and Heads of the Department to release the examination results 
at the Faculty board level within two months from the last date of the examination for a particular examination. 
Currently Faculty of Engineering is releasing the results according to the UGC circular.Similarly other faculties 
are also taking action to release the results according to the UGC Circular.

	 (g)	 Control mechanism has already been accelerated to monitor subsequent journal payments. Currently advances 
have been reduced from Rs. 872,069 to Rs. 510,147.  Action already taken to deduct the journal value from the 
subsequent journal payment if the supplier fails to supply the periodicals within the two years’ period. 

	 (h)	F ollowing are the main reasons for the unused hours. However, it was ensured that unused hours did not affect the 
university student’s education and standards of the course. 

	 1.	 Faculty of Agriculture 

		T  he attendance was not taken when conducting study visit to fulfill the practical   components of the course units. Also, 
while conducting Quiz, Mid Exam and tutorial classes for some courses the attendance was not taken. Some lectures 
were not covered due to the situation in relation on holidays. Action has already been taken to maintain attendance 
properly in future.

	 2.	 Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering 

		T  he attendance was not taken for the first two weeks of the lecture due to the non finalization of the attendance sheet. 
Students’ attendance is checked for exam registration at the end of 13th week. Since the students’ attendance during 
the 14th and 15th week are not counted for their exam registration some lecturers do not take attendance during the last 
two weeks of the course. Also details given for the Audit checking does not include some of the teacher’s attendance.  
Action has been taken to maintain attendance properly in the future.

	 3.	 Department of Computer Engineering

		  Students’ attendance is checked for exam registration at the end of 13th week. Since the students’ attendance during 
the 14th and 15th week are not counted for their exam registration some lecturers did not take attendance during the 
last two weeks of the course. Action has been taken to maintain attendance properly in the future.

	 4.	 Department of Civil Engineering

		  Students’ attendance is checked for exam registration at the end of 13th week. Since the students’ attendance during 
the 14th and 15th week are not counted for their exam registration some lecturers do not take attendance during the last 
two weeks of the course. Also details given for the Audit checking did not include some of the teacher’s attendance.  
Action has been taken to maintain attendance properly in future.

	 (i)	 All payments related to Research and Developments were made with the recommendation of the University 
Research Committee (URC) based on the justification given by the grantee. When URC approving new grants 
and payments for prior grants, the present position of the prior grants and the unutilized amount of the particular 
grantee for the previous year are considered and requested him/her to complete the prior research within the 
stipulated grant period. In addition to the above, URC has also decided to request grantees, to submit the progress 
report and final reports of the previous grants, before awarding the new grant. Reminders for requesting progress 
reports and final reports are promptly sent. Following table shows the current position of progress reports and final 
reports received up to now.
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Year No. of 
Researches

Amount
Rs.

Current Position

2017 11 3,763,397
All researchers except 3 have now submitted their final reports and 
those are available in the relevant research files. Further, URC has 
recommended extension for the above 3 researchers, based on the 
reasons submitted by the researchers. (Delay in getting permission 
from the Director General of Archaeology, for exploration and 
excavation in the research area)

2018 21 7,244,047 13 researchers have submitted their final reports, and 08 nos.  of 
researchers requested extensions due various reasons and the 
URC recommended the extension based on the progress reports 
submitted by them.

2019 29 548,421 The fund allocation for Research Grant for the year 2019 was 
received by the University from Vote on Account for January to 
April 2019 and remaining amount by national budget after April 
2019. Due to this University Research Committee could not 
process the research applications within the time frame. After 
processing the research proposals in the year 2019 research grants.
(letter of Award) were awarded to the grantees on 31.05.2019 and 
the above researches should be completed on or before 01.04.2020. 
However, Due to COVID-19 lockdown, most of the researchers 
could not complete their researches on time and requested to 
extend the research period. However, 2 researchers have submitted 
their final reports, and 08 researchers have requested extensions

	 (j)	 We have taken action to reduce the idle, unusable and slow moving items. Directions have been made to verify the 
unusable and idle items and issue them to the departments which have the future need for these items. In addition, 
we have formed a committee to identify unusable and idle item in the stores and planning to conduct auction for 
those items after obtaining council approval.

	 (k)	 Seven contracts for rehabilitation & improvement works (not for construction works) for total sum of  
Rs. 61,242,337.00 were awarded to separate contractors in 2019 and the full amount has not been paid yet 
since some contracts are still ongoing. The payments were made to the contractors only for work done by them. 

	 1.	K ondavil Canteen – Scheduled date of completion is 02.11.2019

		  Several warning letters were issued to the contractor due to the slow progress and he was allowed to proceed the 
work with the target of works based on revised programme. The contractor is allowed to complete the work within 
another 200 days from the actual completion date subject to deduction of LD (0.05% of contract sum maximum of 
10%). Completion certificate will be issued on completion of the work and submission of final bill.

	 2.	 RAFA mini auditorium - Scheduled date of completion is 22.06.2019 

		T  he actual date of commencement was revised as 17.05.2019 with the completion date of 17.07.2019 and the work 
was completed within the revised completion date. Therefore extension of validity of performance guarantee is not 
required. The completion report has been issued and the final bill has been processed.
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	 3.	 ELTC Toilet – Scheduled date of completion is 11.11.2019 extension granted until 11.01.2020 

		  Warning letters were issued to the contractor due to the slow progress and the contractor is allowed to complete the 
work within another 200 days from the actual completion date subject to deduction of LD (0.05% of contract sum 
maximum of 10%). Completion certificate will be issued on completion of the work and submission of final bill.

	 4.	 Exam hall AC – Scheduled date of completion is 02.09.2019

		  Works were substantially completed within the contract period and further completion report was not provided until 
the final bill amount is finalized. Now the contractor has submitted final bill and the completion report will be issued 
on completion of work and final bill is submitted.

	 5.	 Security Hut and Drivers rest room – Scheduled date of completion is 28.10.2019

		T  he site was handed over to the work only on 01.11.2019 due to Non-academic staff strike during 10.09.2019 
to 14.10.2019 and the construction of another construction work interrupted this work site during 15.10.2019 to 
30.10.2019. Therefore, revised scheduled date of completion is 30.12.2019. 75% of work has already been completed 
and the contractor is now allowed to complete the work within another 200 days from the actual completion date and 
deduction of LD (0.05% of contract sum maximum of 10%). Completion certificate will be issued on completion of 
the work and submission of final bill.

	 6.	 Canteen to the  Management Faculty – Scheduled date of completion is 20.09.2019 and extension granted up 
to 31.12.2019

		
		T  he Work was completed within the extended contract period. Final payment request was submitted by the contractor 

on 03.06.2020. The completion report has been issued and the final payment amount has already been finalized. 

	 7.	 Library toilet block – 25.07.2019 to 06.12.2019

		  Warning letters were issued to the contractor due to the slow progress and the contractor is allowed to complete the 
work within another 200 days from the actual completion date subject to deduction of LD (0.05% of contract sum 
maximum of 10%). Completion certificate will be issued on completion of the work and submission of final bill.

	 (l)	 Rs. 55.0 million was released to Department of Buildings (Northern Province) for the Construction and Completion 
of Proposed Faculty of Applied Science (Stage III Phase III) in Vavuniya Campus. Department of Buildings sub-
contracted the said work to M/S. V. V. Ramanathan & Co (PVT) Ltd for 69,230,292.50. Although the scheduled 
date of completion of the said work was 01.01.2018, the contract was further extended up to 01.11.2018 and 
terminated by the Chief Secretary/ North Province with effect from 15.02.2019 due some contractual disputes. 
The disputes were under Arbitration and finally both parties (Sub-Contractor and the Department of Buildings) 
came for an amicable settlement and the balance work of the building was expected to be completed by the sub-
contractor by 30th June, 2020.

		T  he expenditure made by Department of Buildings up to December 2019 was Rs. 39,547,180.00 and  
Rs. 6,585,977.90 was transferred from Rs. 55.0 million to another project implemented by Department of Buildings 
in Vavuniya Campus. The balance of Rs. 8,886,842.10 (Rs. 55,000,000.00 - 6,585,977.90 - 39,547,180.00) 
available with Department of Buildings to be utilized for the payments for disputed items and the balance work 
of Stage III Phase III.
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	 (m)	 University has taken all efforts to fill the existing cadre vacancies promptly. The University was unable to fill 
some key academic positions such as Professor, Associate Professor, Senior Lecturer/ Lecturer etc. Which are still 
in process as there was no application received with required qualifications despite of repeated advertisements. In 
such circumstances the University filled these vacant positions by Temporary Lectures, Temporary Instructors or 
by Temporary Demonstrators in order to carry out the academic programs without interruption.

	 (n)	 We have issued instruction to wear the Uniform for the staff who is entitled to receive the uniform materials. 
Internal circular has been issued by Competent Authority on 13.01.2020 to instruct the staff to wear the uniform. 
Close monitoring have been implemented by all heads of department to confirm their staff is wearing the uniform 
during office hours.

	 (o)	 Acting Bursar has served during the period from 21.12.2013to 31.12.2018 in addition his normal duties as senior 
assistant bursar/Deputy Bursar. He had not been paid transport allowance or fuel allowance for his assigned 
post. However Acting Bursar is eligible for the above payment as per the establishment circular no. 13/2015.    
 
During this period only 2 Senior Assistant Bursar / Deputy Bursar and 3 Assistant Bursar were serving in Finance 
Department. During this period there were Bursar, 1 Senior Assistant Bursar and 4 Assistant Bursar unfilled 
vacancies in the Finance Department.  Although the University advertised for the post of bursar several times 
it could not find suitable candidates. The Senior Assistant Bursar was appointed as acting bursar from 2013. 
He requested University to pay the fuel and transport allowance from 2015 onwards interms of the Circular 
No. 13/2015 dated 18th September 2015. Considering his satisfactory and dedicated work as an Acting Bursar 
in addition to his normal duties as Senior Assistant Bursar/Deputy Bursar, the council approved transport and 
fuel allowance for Acting Bursar to  facilitate  him to do his services after office hours, Saturdays, Sundays and 
holidays to perform the duties of the Bursar.

		  As per the UGC Circular No. 911 dated 14th May, 2009, provision of the Government Establishment Code should 
be made applicable to matters for which specific provision had not been made in the Establishments Code of the 
University Grants Commission and Higher Educational Institutions. According to para 119 of Chapter IX as per 
the Procedure Rule Volume-1  Extraordinary Gazette Notification No 1589/30 dated 20.02.2009 any allowance, 
privilege attached to a particular post may be enjoyed by the acting officer or officer attending to the duties. 
According to this provision transport and fuel allowances could be paid to the Acting Bursar. Which was also 
included in the Cover page of Government E-Code published as on 08th July 2013.

	 (p)	 Academic staff arrival & Departure through finger scanner came up at the previous COPE meeting held on 
11.11.2017 and the COPE agreed with the explanation given at the meeting. Academic staff in the Sri Lankan 
university systems do not generally sign in the Attendance Register. However, this matter was brought to the 
notice of the council at its 372th meeting of held on 29.09.2012 and it was noted that in academic staffs (most of 
the Universities in Sri Lanka) are exempted to sign in the attendance register. 

	 (q)	 We have already submitted the Annual Report and Accounts for the year 2018 to the Ministry of Higher Education, 
Technology and Innovations on 24.01.2020 and re submitted the same with the Future Projection report based 
on sustainable development (Section 17(d) of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018) on 20.05.2020, whichwas 
submitted for the cabinet approval on 26.05.2020 and awaiting to be tabled in Parliament.

03-548
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices 
PV 60870.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Kelani Valley Tea Factories (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Kelani 
Valley Tea Factories (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“02.08.2007” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Kelani Valley 
Tea Factories (Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-441

PV 103020.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Lootah College (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Lootah College (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“24.12.2014” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Lootah College 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.
03-440

PV 116249.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Ye Yan Restaurant (Pvt) Ltd”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ye 
Yan Restaurant (Pvt) Ltd” a Company incorporated on 
“06.09.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Ye Yan Restaurant 
(Pvt) Ltd” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-439

PV 127330.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the 
name of “Rangiri Property Development and 

Management (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Rangiri Property Development and Management (Private) 
Limited” a Company incorporated on “16.11.2017” under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Rangiri 
Property Development and Management (Private) Limited” 
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-438
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PV 126004.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Optimize Green Tech (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Optimize Green Tech (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “02.10.2017” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Optimize Green 
Tech (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-437

PV 128518.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Ceylon Eco Gallery (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ceylon 
Eco Gallery (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“29.12.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Ceylon Eco 
Gallery (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-436

PV 127694.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Bundlhub (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Bundlhub (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“29.11.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Bundlhub 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-435

PV 124665.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Star Unity Holdings (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Star 
Unity Holdings (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “14.08.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Star Unity 
Holdings (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-434
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PV 118535.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Clientskey Innovations (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Clientskey Innovations (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “06.12.2016” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Clientskey 
Innovations (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-433

PV 122697.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Imasha Cabs (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Imasha Cabs (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “30.05.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Imasha Cabs 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-432

PV 124535.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Cozzy Bubble (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Cozzy 
Bubble (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“08.08.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Cozzy Bubble 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-431

PV 115862.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Chakrish Consultancy and Entertainment 

(Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Chakrish Consultancy and Entertainment (Private) 
Limited” a Company incorporated on “19.08.2016” under 
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on 
business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Chakrish 
Consultancy and Entertainment (Private) Limited” will 
unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the 
Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company 
will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
25th February, 2021.

03-430
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PV 118207.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Doner 11 (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Doner 11 (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“22.11.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Doner 11 (Private) 
Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-429

PV 123044.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Ranbima Holding International (Private) 

Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Ranbima Holding International (Private) Limited” 
a Company incorporated on “13.06.2017” under the 
Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business 
or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of 
three months from this date the name of “Ranbima Holding 
International (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown 
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept 
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.
03-428

PV 117696.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Suntree (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Suntree (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“01.11.2016” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Suntree (Private) 
Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be 
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and 
the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-427

PV 121202.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Recruitme (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Recruitme (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“29.03.2017” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Recruitme 
(Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the contrary, 
be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office 
and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-426
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PV 130328.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Madurasiri Enterprises (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Madurasiri Enterprises (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “02.03.2018” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Madurasiri 
Enterprises (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-425

PV 104836.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Global Handloom (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Global 
Handloom (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated on 
“30.03.2015” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is 
not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Global 
Handloom (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to 
the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in 
this office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-424

PV 131540.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Carlcare Service Lanka (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that 
“Carlcare Service Lanka (Private) Limited” a Company 
incorporated on “06.04.2018” under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Carlcare Service 
Lanka (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
01st March, 2021.

03-423

PV 75482.

Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to strike off the name 
of “Ceylon Legend Travels (Private) Limited”

whereas there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ceylon 
Legend Travels (Private) Limited” a Company incorporated 
on “15.11.2010” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 
is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Arandara Kankanamalage Don 
Dimal Dasanga Arandara, Registrar General of Companies, 
acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act,  
No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration 
of three months from this date the name of “Ceylon Legend 
Travels (Private) Limited” will unless cause is shown to the 
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this 
office and the Company will be dissolved.

	 A. K. D. D. Dasanga Arandara,
	 Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10,
24th February, 2021.

03-422
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sampath  bank  plc
(Formerly known as Sampath Bnak Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Thilep Civil Construction.
A/C No. : 0096 1000 1855.

At a meeting held on 27th January, 2021 by the Board of 
Directors of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially 
and unanimously:

Whereas Rasiah Ketheeswaranathan being the Sole 
Proprietor of the business carried on in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under the name and 
style of “Thilep Civil Construction” as the Obligor has 
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted aginst the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond Nos. 3446 dated 
03rd May, 2019 and 3670 dated 21st and 22nd August, 
2019 both attested by A. W. P. M. Vithanage, Notary 
Public of Gampaha in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and having its 
Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, 
Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bond bearing Nos. 3446 and 3670 to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as at 15th December, 2020 a sum of Rupees 
Forty-two Million Two Hundred Sixty-eight Thousand 
Nine Hundred Forty-four and cents Forty-one only  
(Rs. 42,268,944.41) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being 
the total amount outstanding together with interest on 
the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedules hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing 
Nos. 3446 and 3670 to be sold in Public Auction by  
P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty-two Million 
Two Hundred Sixty-eight Thousand Nine Hundred 
Forty-four and cents Forty-one only (Rs. 42,268,944.41) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Thirty-
four Million Nine Hundred and Twenty-six Thousand 
only (Rs. 34,926,000) at the rate of Sixteen decimal Five 
centum (16.5%) per annum from 16th December, 2020 
to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said 

Bond bearing Nos. 3446 and 3670 together with costs of 
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

THE first SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 8519 dated 15th November, 2018 
made by Hugh R. Samarasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Nedungahakumbura” (now highland) bearing 
Assessment No. 90/07- Ela Ivura Road together with the 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Alwis Town within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of 172, Hendala South Divisional Secretariat Division 
and Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Wattala in Ragam Pattu 
in Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by 
Drain, on the East by Land belonging to Rotax (Pvt) Ltd., 
on the South by Road (Lot Z in Plan No. 12873) and Lot 2, 
on the West by Lots 2 and 3 and containing in extent One 
Rood and Six decimal Naught Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 
6.08P.) according to the said Plan No. 8519 and registered in 
Volume/Folio L 418/40 in Gampaha Land Registry.

Together with the right of way and other connected rights 
in, over, under and along Lot 2 depicted in aforesaid Plan 
No. 8519 and Lot 4B in Plan No. 1085 made by Hugh R. 
Samarasinghe, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

03-374

the dfcc bank  plc

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank 
PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

in terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unaniomously passed on 
the 17th February, 2021 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas as Anil Asoka Ranathunga alias Anil Ashoka 
Ranathunga (hereinafter referred to as ‘the borrower’) of 
Ingiriya has made default in payments due on Mortgage 
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Bond No. 1095 dated 02.07.2015 and mortgage Bond  
No. 1247 dated 11.01.2016 both attested by R M H S 
Rathnayake, Notary Public in favour of the DFCC Bank 
PLC. (Successor to DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC).

And Whereas there is as at 31st December, 2020 due 
and owing from the said Anil Asoka Ranathunga alias 
Anil Ashoka Ranathunga to the DFCC Bank PLC on the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 1095 and 1247 a sum of 
Rupees Thirteen Million Ninety Thousand Seventeen and 
cents Seventy-eight (Rs. 13,090,017.78) together with 
interest thereon from 01st January, 2021 to the date of sale 
on a sum of Rupees Seven Million Seven Hundred and 
Twenty-eight Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-one 
and cents Thirty-nine (Rs. 7,728,331.39) at the interest 
rate of Five per centum (5%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (Variable Spot AWPR), the 
dates of revision being the first business day in the months 
of January, April, July, and October each year (subject to a 
floor rate of Twelve Per Centum (12%) Per Annum) and on 
a sum of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred and Seventeen 
Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty-three and cents 
Nineteen (Rs. 2,617,423.19) at the interest rate of Five per 
centum (5%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime 
Lending Rate (Variable Spot AWPR), the dates of revision 
being the first business day in the months of January, April, 
July and October each year.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the properties described below 
mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 1095 and 1247 by Anil Asoka Ranathunga alias 
Anil Ashoka Ranathunga be sold by Public Auction by  
I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery of 
the said sum of Rupees Thirteen Million Ninety Thousand 
Seventeen and cents Seventy-eight (Rs. 13,090,017.78) 
together with interest thereon from 01st January, 2021 to 
the date of sale on a sum of Rupees Seven Million Seven 
Hundred and Twenty-eight Thousand Three Hundred and 
Thirty-one and cents Thirty-nine (Rs. 7,728,331.39) at the 
interest rate of Five per centum (5%) per annum above 
the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (Variable Spot 
AWPR), the dates of revision being the first business day 
in the months of January, April, July and October each year 
(subject to a floor rate of Twelve Per Centum (12%) Per 
Annum) and on a sum of Rupees Two Million Six Hundred 
and Seventeen Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty-three 
and cents Nineteen (Rs. 2,617,423.19) at the interest rate 
of Five per centum (5%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (Variable Spot AWPR), the 
dates of revision being the first business day in the months 
of January, April, July and October each year or any portion 

thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with 
the costs and other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC 
in accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

description of the Property mortgaged by 
mortgage bond no. 1095

All that divided and defined allotment of land called Lot 
02 B in Plan No. 5319 dated 21.12.2012 made by Senaka 
Vitharange, Licensed Surveyor (being a re-survey and sub-
division of Lot 02 in Plan No. 1458 dated 27.12.1926 made by 
J. Weeraratne, LS) of the aforesaid land called “Puwakwatta” 
situated at Urugala within the Grama Niladhari Divsiion No. 
620, Ingiriya East, in the Divisional Secretariat of presently 
in Ingiriya Urban area and Pradeshiya Sabha limits of 
Horana, in Udugaha Paththu of Raigam Korale, District of 
Kaluthara, Western Province and bounded as follows, North 
by Lot 28 in Plan No. 3065 (presently Rosairo Watta road), 
Lot D1 of Puwakwatta (Plan No. 1779) and Gedarawatta 
claimed by Dayananda Gallage and others, East by Lot D1 
and Lot D of Puwakwatta (Plan No. 1779), Gedara Watta 
claimed by Dayananda Gallage and others, and Puwakwatta 
claimed by Dewage Ranathunga and others, South by 
Puwakwatta claimed by Dewage Ranathunga and others 
and West by Lot 2A hereof and Lot 28 (Plan No. 3065) 
(presently Rosairo Watta road) and containing in extent One 
Acre Three Roods and Thirty-six Perches (01A., 03R., 36P.) 
or 0.7992 Hectares.

The aforesaid Lot 2B in Plan No. 5319 is a resurvey and 
Sub Division of the following Land:

All that divided and defined allotment of land called 
Lot 02 in Plan No. 1458 dated 27.12.1926 made by  
J. Weeraratne, Licensed Surveyor of the aforesaid land 
called “Puwakwatta” situated at Urugala within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Horana, in Udugaha Paththu of 
Raigam Korale, District of Kaluthara, Western Province and 
bounded on the North by building bearing No. 395-C and 
395-D, East by Puwakwatta, South by road and West by Lot 
1 hereof and containing in extent Two Acres One Rood and 
Seven decimal Five Perches (2A., 1R., 7.5P.) and registered 
at the Land Registry of Horana.

description of the Property mortgaged by 
mortgage bond no. 1247

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 1683 dated 13.08.2012 made 
by J. Somasiri, Licensed Surveyor (being a re-survey and 
amalgamation of Lot 01 and 02 depicted in Plan No. 7585 
dated 20.11.1999 made by A. Rathnam, Licensed Surveyor) 
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of the Land called Puwakwatte situated at Urugala Village 
(Now Ingiriya) within the Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 620 Ingiriya East, Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Horana 
and Divisional Secretariat of Ingiriya in Udugaha Pattu of 
Raigam Korale in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa 
Province and bounded on North by Maladola, on East by 
Maladola and Dola, on South by Maladola and Puwakwatte 
claimed by C. L. Ranjani and other and on West by 
Puwakwatte claimed by P. K. Siriwardhana and other and 
containing in extent One Acre and Thirty-eight decimal One 
Perches (1A., 0R., 38P.) or 0.5023 Hectares. More correctly 
One Acre Zero Rood and Thirty-eight decimal Six (1A., 0R., 
38.6P.) 0.5023 Hectares and registered at the land registry of 
Horana.

The aforesaid Land re-surveyed and amalgamation of the 
following Land to wit:

01. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 7585 dated 20.11.1999 made 
by A. Rathnam, Licensed Surveyor of the Land called 
Puwakwatte situated at Urugala village (Now Ingiriya) as 
aforesaid and bounded on North by Puwakwatte claimed by 
Gankandage Ranasinghe, Siriwardha alias P. K. Sirisena, 
K. K.Sumanawathie alias K. D. Hemawathi and Maladola, 
on East by Maladola and Lot 2 hereof, on South by Lot 
2 hereof and Puwakwatte and on West by Lot 02 hereof, 
Puwakwatte, Gankandage Ranasinghe P. K. Siriwardha alias 
P. K. Sirisena, K. K. Sumanawathie alias K. D. Hemawathi 
and containing in extent One Acre and Nine decimal One 
Perches (1A., 0R., 9.1P.) and registered at the Land Registry 
of Horana. 

02. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 7585 dated 20.11.1999 made 
by A. Rathnam, Licensed Surveyor of the Land Called 
Puwakwatte situated at Urugala Village (Now Ingiriya) 
as aforesaid and bounded on North- by Lot 01 hereof, on 
East by Maladola and Dola, on South by Dola, Agala and 
Puwakwatte and on West by Agala and Puwakwatte and 
containing in extent Thirty-two Perches (0A., 0R., 32P.), 
and registered at the Land Registry of Horana.

Together with Right of Way:

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5B depicted in Plan No. 4823/6 dated 22.08.2009 made 
by Siril Wickramage, Licensed Surveyor of the Land Call 
Hapugaha Godella alias Hapugahawatte situated at Urugala 
village (Now Ingiriya) as aforesaid and bounded on North  
by Lot 03 in Plan No. 4823 and Lot 6 hereof (Road), on 
East by Lot 5A in Plan no. 4823/05, on South by Lot 5A 
in Plan no. 4823/5 and Ela and on West by Lot 03 in Plan  
no. 4823 and Ela and containing in extent One Decimal 
Two Five Perches (0A., 0R., 1.25P.), and registered at the 
Land Registry of Horana.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 06 depicted in Plan No. 4823/6 dated 22.08.2009 made 
by Siril Wickramage, Licensed Surveyor of the Land called 
Hapugaha Godella alias Hapugahawatte situated at Urugala 
village (Now Ingiriya) as aforesaid and bounded on North  
by Road and Lot 03 and 02, on East by Lot B hereof and 
Lots 4A and 4B, on South by Lots 4A, 4B and 03 in Plan  
no. 4823, Lot 5B in plan 4823/5 and on West by Lot 03 
in Plan no. 4823, part of Lot 16 in plan no. 3168 and 
containing in extent Seventeen Decimal Three Perches  
(0A., 0R., 17.3P.), and registered at the Land Registry of 
Horana.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary,
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

03-445

the  DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Dfcc Bank 
Plc under Section 4 of  The Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 17th February, 2021 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Sound of Anthurium (Private) Limited and 
Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika Wilathgamuwa alias 
Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika carrying on business 
under the name style and firm of “Mahima Plant Nursery” 
of Andiambalama have made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 12026, 12028, 12030, 12031 all dated 
25th July, 2017 attested by Chandani Dayarathna (NP), 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 2720 dated 30th August, 2018, 2897 
and 2899 both dated 31st May, 2019 and 3209 dated 06th 
January, 2021 all attested by Pradeepa P Wickramatilake 
(NP) in favour of DFCC Bank PLC (Successor to DFCC 
Vardhana Bank PLC).

And whereas there is as at 31st December 2020, due and 
owing from the said Sound of Anthurium (Private) Limited 
and Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika Wilathgamuwa 
alias Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika carrying on 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.03.2021 541

business under the name style and firm of “Mahima Plant 
Nursery” to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 12026, 12028, 12030, 12031, 2720, 2897, 2899, 
and 3209 a sum of Rupees Three Hundred and Thirty 
Million Nine Hundred and Three Thousand Nine Hundred 
and Eighty-three and Cents Sixty-four (Rs. 330,903,983.64) 
together with interest thereon from 01st January, 2021 to 
the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees Forty-four Million Six 
Hundred and Seven Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-
four and Cents Seventy-two (Rs. 44,607,974.72) at a fixed 
interest rate of Eight Decimal Seven Five Per Centum 
(8.75%) per annum and on a sum of Rupees Eighteen 
Million Eight Hundred and Eleven Thousand Forty-two and 
Cents Eighty-nine (Rs. 18,811,042.89) at a fixed interest rate 
of Two Percent (2%) Per Annum, and on a sum of Rupees 
One Hundred and Ninety-seven Million One Hundred 
and Eight Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-eight and 
Cents Ninety-seven (Rs. 197,108,628.97) at an interest 
rate of Four Decimal Five Per Centum (4.5%) per annum 
above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) 
rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5%, which will be revised 
monthly on the first business day of every month, and on a 
sum of Rupees Thirteen Million Six Hundred and Sixty-six 
Thousand and Six Hundred and Sixty-four (Rs. 13,666,664) 
at an interest rate of Four decimal Five Per Centum (4.5%) 
per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR-SPOT), which will be revised monthly on the first 
business day of every month and on a sum of Rupees Forty-
four Million Eight Hundred and Seventy-three Thousand 
Six Hundred and Eighty-seven and Cents Thirty-two (Rs. 
44,873,687.32) at an interest rate of Five Per Centum (5%) 
per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR -SPOT), which will be revised monthly on the first 
business day of every month and on a sum of Rupees One 
Million Six Hundred and Three Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Ninety- five and Cents Ninety (Rs. 1,603,795.90) at an 
interest rate of Twenty-four per centum (24%) per annum.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land and Building Machinery 
and stocks described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank 
PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 12026, 12028, 
12030, 12031, 2897, 2899 and 3209 by Sound of Anthurium 
(Private) Limited And Mortgage Bond No. 2720 by 
Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika Wilathgamuwa alias 
Wilathgamuwage Brenda Jude Yamika be sold by Public 
Auction by Thusith Karunaratne Licensed Auctioneer for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Three Hundred 
and Thirty Million Nine Hundred and Three Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Eighty- three and Cents Sixty-four  
(Rs. 330,903,983.64) together with interest thereon from 
01st January, 2021 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees 

Forty-four Million Six Hundred and Seven Thousand 
Nine Hundred and Seventy-four and Cents Seventy-two  
(Rs. 44,607,974.72) at a fixed interest rate of Eight 
Decimal Seven Five Per Centum (8.75%) per annum 
and on a sum of Rupees Eighteen Million Eight Hundred 
and Eleven Thousand Forty-two and Cents Eighty-nine  
(Rs. 18,811,042.89) at a fixed interest rate of Two Percent 
(2%) Per Annum, and on a sum of Rupees One Hundred 
and Ninety-seven Million One Hundred and Eight Thousand 
Six Hundred and Twenty-eight and Cents Ninety-seven 
(Rs. 197,108,628.97) at an interest rate of Four Decimal 
Five Per Centum (4.5%) per annum above the Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards 
to the nearest 0.5%, which will be revised monthly on the 
first business day of every month, and on a sum of Rupees 
Thirteen Million Six Hundred and Sixty-six Thousand 
and Six Hundred and Sixty-four (Rs. 13,666,664) at an 
interest rate of Four Decimal Five Per centum (4.5%) per 
annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR -SPOT), which will be revised monthly on the first 
business day of every month and on a sum of Rupees Forty-
four Million Eight Hundred and Seventy-three Thousand 
and Six Hundred and Eighty-seven and Cents Thirty-two  
(Rs. 44,873,687.32) at an interest rate of Five Per Centum 
(5%) per annum above the Average Weighted Prime Lending 
Rate (AWPR-SPOT), which will be revised monthly on the 
first business day of every month and on a sum of Rupees One 
Million Six Hundred and Three Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Ninety -five and Cents Ninety (Rs. 1,603,795.90) at an 
interest rate of Twenty-four per centum (24%) per annum 
or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale 
together with the cost of advertising and selling the said land 
and premises and all monies expended and costs and other 
charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance 
with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond in terms 
of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED
BY MORTGAGE BOND No. 2720

All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 03 depicted in Survey Plan No. 7691/1 dated 17.03.2015 
made by W. S. S. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Egodawatta and Hedawakagahawatta” situated 
at Andiambalama within the Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 155, Andiambalama West and within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits and the Divisional Secretarial Limits of Katana 
in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale with the Registration 
Division of Negombo in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot 03 is bounded on the North by 
Lot 04, East by Lot 04, Land of K. H. A. Somasiri and Lot 
02, South by Lot 02 and Lot 01 (Reservation for Road 4.10m 
wide), West by Road, and containing in extent Two Roods 
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and Thirty-three Decimal Five Naught Perches (00A., 02R., 
33.50P.) alias 0.28707 Hectare together with everything 
standing thereon.

The above allotment of land is a Divided and Defined 
Portion from and out it the Land Described below.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 07 depicted in Plan No. 1602 dated 16.07.1974 made 
by Walter A. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called “Egodawatta and Hedawakagahawatta” situated at 
Andiambalama aforesaid which said Lot 07 is bounded on 
the North by Lot of D. D. L. W. Gunawardhana, East by 
Land of Karolis Appu and Others and Land if the heirs of  
S. A. Stanley Silva, South by Land of the heirs of  
S. A. Stanley Silva, West by Lot 06 and containing in 
extent Two Acres Two Roods and Twenty-five Perches  
(02A., 02R., 25P.) together with everything standing thereon 
and registered at the Land Registry Negombo.

Description of The Property Mortgaged 
By Mortgage Bond Nos. 12026, 12028, 2897, 2899, 

and 3209

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
C1 depicted in Plan No. 11577 dated 15.03.2016 made by 
J. P.  N. Jayasundara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Balabowa Estate (Part of)1’ situated at Balabowa Village 
within the Grama Niladari Division of No. 127, Balabowa and 
within the Divisional Secretarial Limits and the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Minuwangoda in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru 
Korale within the Registration Division and in the District 
of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot C1 is 
bounded on the North by Ela and Lot C2, East by Lot C2 and 
Lot A1 in Plan No. 11500, South by Drain, West by Another 
portion of same land claimed by K. R. Biyanka Dharmasiri 
and others and containing in extent Two Acres Zero Roods 
and Sixteen Decimal One Naught Perches (02A., 00R., 
16.10P.) or 0.8503 Hectare together with everything standing 
thereon and Registered at the Land Registry Gampaha.

The full and free right liberty and license of ingress 
egress and regress way and passage in perpetuity for the 
Mortgagor his visitors engineers contractors architects 
workmen servants tenants licensees and invitees at all 
times hereafter at their will and pleasure for all purposes 
whatsoever by day or by night to go return pass and repass 
on foot or otherwise howsoever and with or without horses, 
cattle or other animals, motor cars, motor lorries and other 
vehicles of every kind laden or unladen in or along or over the 
roadway hereunder particularly described together with all 
and singular the rights ways advantages and appurtenances 
or usually held used or enjoyed therewith and also the full 
and free right and liberty to lay electric cables and overhead 

wires and drainage gas and water pipes and 
appliances and other contrivances of whatsoever kind 
on in over and/or along.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
13 depicted in Plan No. 11800 dated 08.05.2016 made by 
J. P. N. Jayasundara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Balabowa Estate (Part of)” situated at Balabowa Village 
aforesaid and which said Lot 13 is bounded on the North by  
Lot 51, East by Lots 53, 52, 51, 50, 49, 48, 75, 47, 46, 45, 
44, 43, 42, 41, 73, 39, 38, 37, 36, 35, 34, 33, 72, 32, 31, 30, 
29, 28, 27, 26, 25, 24, 23, 22, 21, 20, 19, 18, 17, 16, 15,14, 
12, 11,10, 09, 08, 07, 06, 05, 04, 03, 02 and 01, South by  
Road (RDA), West by Balance portion of Lot 2B depicted in 
Plan No. 6246 and Lots 69, 68, 76, 67, 66, 65, 64, 63, 62, 61, 
60, 59, 58, 57, 56, 55, Balance portion of Lot 02 depicted in 
Plan No. 6246, Drain and Lot C depicted in Plan No. 11577 
made by J. P. N. Jayasundara, L/S and Lots 54, 55, 52 and 74 
and containing in extent One Acre Zero Roods and Twenty- 
five Decimal Six Five Perches (1A, 0R., 25.65P.) or 0.4695 
Hectare and Registered at the Land Registry Gampaha.

DESCRIPTION OF THE STOCKS MORTGAGED BY 
MORTGAGE BOND No. 12030

	
The entirety of the stock-in-trade merchandise effects 

and things raw materials work-in-progress finished goods 
and unfinished goods including:-

List of Inventory kept at Sound of Anthurium (Private) 
Limited Project situated at Balabowa, Dewalapola, 
Minuwangoda

Inventory

1 Tissue Culture / In-vitro Plant Materials

2 Mother Plants propagating young plants

3 Young Plants at Nurseries

4 Shade Nets

5 Agro Chemicals

6 Planting Media

7 Agriculture Equipment

and all other items and other movable property of every 
sort and description whatsoever now lying in and upon or 
stored at the Balabowa, Dewalapola, Minuwangoda in 
the District of Gampaha in the Western Province of the 
said Republic of Sri Lanka and in and upon any other go 
downs stores and premises at which the Co- Borrowers now 
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is or may at any time and from time to time hereafter be 
carrying on business or in or upon which the said stock-in-
trade merchandise effects and things raw materials work-in-
progress finished goods and unfinished goods and all other 
items and other movable property of whatsoever kind or 
nature which shall or may at any time and from time to time 
and at all times be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of 
the said stock-in-trade merchandise effects and things raw 
materials work-in-progress finished goods and unfinished 
goods and all other items and other movable property of 
whatsoever kind or nature which shall or may at any time 
and from time to time and at all times hereafter during the 
continuance of these presents be brought into stored kept or 
lie in and upon the aforesaid go downs stores and premises 
and all or any other place or places of business into which 
the Co- Borrowers may at any time and from time to time 
hereafter remove or carry on his business or trade or store 
the said stock-in-trade merchandise effects and things raw 
materials work-in-progress finished goods and unfinished 
goods and all other items and other movable property 
of whatsoever kind or nature including all the aforesaid 
property in transit to or from the aforementioned go downs 
stores and premises or places of business or awaiting 
shipment or clearance at the wharf or warehouses in the 
District of Gampaha in the said Republic. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE MACHINERY MORTGAGED 
BY MORTGAGE BOND No. 12031

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and 
equipment including:-

List of Movable Machinery kept at Sound of 
Anthurium (Private) Limited Project situated at 
Balabowa, Dewalapola, Minuwangoda.

Machinery
1 Tissue Culture Lab Equipment & Machinery
2 Shaded Plant Houses prepared with Galvanized Steel 

and Shade Nets
3 Elevator (to be installed and maintained by Ace 

Elevators)
4 Generator (120KVA)
5 Air Conditioners (14 units)
6 Transformer (100KVA)
7 IT + Multimedia + Lighting + Other 
8 Furniture & Fittings

together with spares accessories and tools now lying in 
and upon premises Balabowa, Dewalapola, Minuwangoda 
in the District of Gampaha Western Province and in and 
upon any other godowns stores and premises at which the 

First Named Borrower now is and may at any time and from 
time to time hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon 
which the said movable plant machinery and equipment 
may from time to time be stored kept or lie and also the 
entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment 
whatsoever which shall or may from time to time replace 
the said movable plant machinery and equipment spares 
accessories and tools which shall or may from time to time 
and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and 
upon the aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or 
any other place or places of business into which the First 
Named Borrower may at any time and from time to time 
hereafter remove or carry on its business or trade or store 
or keep the said movable plant machinery equipment spares 
accessories and tools. 

By order of the Board, 

	 Company Secretary,
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

03-444

the  DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Dfcc Bank 
Plc under Section 4 of  The Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 17th February, 2021 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.

Board Resolution

Whereas S F Ice (Private) Limited a Company duly 
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka under the Companies Act bearing Registration  
No. PV 11461 and having its registered office in Negombo 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) has made 
default in payments due on Mortgage Bond No. 8344 dated 
08.10.2013, Mortgage Bond No. 8618 dated 28.02.2014 
Mortgage Bond No. 9181 dated 16.10.2014, Mortgage 
Bond No. 9866 dated 13.07.2015, Mortgage Bond  
No. 11074 dated 25.08.2016, Mortgage Bond No. 11076 
Dated 25.08.2016, Mortgage Bond No. 11078 dated 
25.08.2016, Mortgage Bond No. 12336 dated 16.11.2017 all 
attested by Chandani Dayarathna, Notary Public in favour 
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of the DFCC BANK PLC. (Successor to DFCC Vardhana 
Bank PLC).

And Whereas there is as at 31st December, 2020 due 
and owing from the said S F ICE (Private) Limited to 
the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 8344, 8618, 9181, 9866, 11074, 11076, 11078 and 
12336 a sum of Rupees One Hundred Million Five Hundred 
Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Forty-three and Cents 
Three (Rs. 100,516,243.03) together with interest thereon 
from 01st January, 2021 to the date of Sale on a Sum of 
Rupees Fourteen Million Five Hundred and Twenty- 
seven Thousand and Five Hundred and Twenty-one  
(Rs. 14,527,521) at an interest rate of Six per centum (6%) 
per annum above the Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month (Subject to a floor rate of Thirteen Per Centum 
per annum (13% per annum)) and on a Sum of Rupees 
One Million Two Hundred and Thirty-eight Thousand 
and Nine Hundred and Thirty-two and Cents Thirteen  
(Rs. 1,238,932.13) at an interest rate of Two per centum 
(2%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees Eighteen Million 
and Thirteen Thousand and Three Hundred and Thirty  
(Rs. 18,013,330) at an interest rate of Six Decimal Five 
per centum (6.5%) per annum above the Weighted Average 
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will be revised 
every month on the first business day of each month and 
On a Sum of Rupees Two Million Ninety-four Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Eighty-one and Cents Forty-four  
(Rs. 2,094,881.44) at an interest rate of Six per centum 
(6%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees Six Million 
Seven Hundred Eighty-four Thousand and Three Hundred 
Eighty- seven and Cents Fifteen (Rs. 6,784,387.15) at an 
interest rate of Three per  centum (3%) per annum above the 
Weighted Average Yield Rate which will be revised every 
three months and on a sum of Rupees Fifty-seven Million 
Six Hundred Fifteen Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty and 
Cents Nineteen Only (Rs. 57,615,880.19) at an interest rate 
of  Twenty-four per centum (24%) per annum.

And Whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the Land, Building and Machinery 
described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 8344, 8618, 9181, 9866, 
11074,11076, 11078 and 12336 by Matarakirige Antony 
Sarath Fernando alias Matharakirige Antony Sarath 
Fernando and S F Ice (Private) Limited be sold by Public 
Auction by Thusith Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees One Hundred Million 
Five Hundred Sixteen Thousand Two Hundred Forty-three 
and Cents Three (Rs. 100,516,243.03) together with . 

interest thereon from 01st January, 2021 to the date of Sale 
On a Sum of Rupees Fourteen Million Five Hundred and 
Twenty- seven Thousand and Five Hundred and Twenty-one 
(Rs. 14,527,521) at an interest rate of Six per centum (6%) 
per annum above the Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month (Subject to a floor rate of Thirteen Per Centum 
per annum (13% per annum)) and on a Sum of Rupees 
One Million Two Hundred and Thirty-eight Thousand 
and Nine Hundred and Thirty-two and Cents Thirteen  
(Rs. 1,238,932.13) at an interest rate of Two per centum 
(2%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees Eighteen Million 
and Thirteen Thousand and Three Hundred and Thirty  
(Rs. 18,013,330) at an interest rate of Six Decimal Five 
per centum (6.5%) per annum above the Weighted Average 
Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will be revised 
every month on the first business day of each month and 
on a Sum of Rupees Two Million Ninety-four Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Eighty-one and Cents Forty-four  
(Rs. 2,094,881.44) at an interest rate of Six per centum 
(6%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees Six Million 
Seven Hundred Eighty-four Thousand and Three hundred 
Eighty-seven and Cents Fifteen (Rs. 6,784,387.15) at an 
interest rate of Three per centum (3%) per annum above the 
Weighted Average Yield Rate which will be revised every 
three months and on a sum of Rupees Fifty-seven Million 
Six Hundred Fifteen Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty and 
Cents Nineteen Only (Rs. 57,615,880.19) at an interest rate 
of Twenty-four per centum (24%) per annum or any portion 
thereof remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with 
the cost of advertising and selling the said land and premises 
and all monies expended and costs and other charges incurred 
by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990.

description of the PROPERTY MORTGAGED 
BY MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 8344, 8618, 9181 and 

11076

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 6404 F/2006 dated 22.07.2006 
made by K. A. F. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Madangaha, Kahatagaha, Siyambalagaha, 
Kithulgahawatta  and  Subbappulagewatta” situated at 2nd 
Division Kurana within the Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 157, 3rd Kurana and the Divisional Secretarial Limits 
the Mumcipal Council Limits and the Registration division 
of Negombo in the District of Gampaha Western Province 
and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Land 
formerly of Ivan Silva and Road 15ft wide, East by Road 
15ft wide and land of Bernard Rodrigo, South by Land 
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of Bernard Rodrigo, Resevation along Railway Line and 
Reservation for road 15ft wide, West by Land of Philip 
Fernando and containing in extent One Rood and Twenty-
two Decimal Three Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 22.38P.) alias 
0.15778 Hectare together with everything standing thereon.

The above allotment of land is a recent Re survey of the 
land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted In Plan No.489 dated 11.11.1989 made by 
K. R. S. Fonseka, Licensed Surveyor of the land called” 
Madangaha,  Kahatagaha, Siyambalagaha, Kithulgahawatta 
and Subbappulagewatta” situated at 2nd Division Kurana 
aforesaid and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North 
by Remaining portion of same land of Ivan Silva and 
Reservation for road 15ft wide, East by Reservation for Road. 
1.5ft wide and remaining portion of same Ivan Silva, South 
by Land of M. Ansal Fonseka and. Railway Reservation, 
West by Land of Philip Fernando and containing in extent 
One Rood and Twenty-two Decimal Three Eight Perches 
(0A., 1R., 22.38P.) alias 0.1578 Hectare together with 
everything standing thereon and Registered at the Land 
Registry Negombo.

Together with the Right of way over and along the 
reservation for road 15ft wide depicted in Plan No. 6404 

F/2006 dated 22.07.2006 made by K. A. F. Fernando, 
Licensed Surveyor.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY 
MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 9866,11074 and 12336

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2C depicted in Plan No. 2361 dated 23.05.2006 made 
by M. W. Thepulangoda, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Omigahawatta” situated at Weliwita within the 
Grama Niladari Division of No. 475, Weliwita and within 
the Divisional Secretarial Limits and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale 
within the Registration Division of Homagama in the District 
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 2C is 
bounded on the North by Lots 2D and 2B, East by Lot 2B 
and Lot 3 in Plan No. 653, South by Weliwita Road, West by 
Lot 2D and containing in extent Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 
15P.) alias 0.0379 Hectare together with everything standing 
thereon and registered at the Land Registry Homagama.

Together with the Right of way and other connected 
Rights in Over and along Lot 2D (Reservation for road 10 
feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 2361 dated 23.05.2006 made 
by M. W. Thepulangoda, Licensed Surveyor.

description of the machinery mortgaged by mortgage bond No. 11078

The entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment including:-

	
No. of
Units

Description Make and Model Serial 
No.

Amount
(Rs.)

37 MT Block Ice Plant
01 Compressor Unit Mycom (Japan) model N6WBHE 8,000,000.00

01 Evaporative Condenser (S/S) SFT model SFC - 125 5,700,000.00

01 All steel welded liquid ammonia receive SFT 1,800,000.00
01 Brine agitator SFT 500,000.00
01 Electric hoist c/w electric trolley Hitachi 1,000,000.00
01 Electrical switchboard (Control Panel) 2,100,000.00
01 Incoming main electrical switchboard 1,400,000.00

1 length cable 4 cores x 50mm, 240 mm2 650,000.00
02 Herringbone coil type evaporators SFT 3,300,000.00
01 All steel welded insulated surge drum SFT 1,800,000.00
30 Materials for ice can grids 1,400,000.00
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No. of
Units

Description Make and Model Serial 
No.

Amount
(Rs.)

600 pc Materials for ice cans 2,500,000.00

01 Lot Materials for brine tank construction 2,700,000.00

01 Lot Polyurethane for brine tank insulation 1,100,000.00

01 Lot Materials only for ice can filler 400,000.00

01 Lot Materials only for ice can filler 350,000.00

03 Refrigeration system for ice store R507 7,000,000.00

01 Electrical swichboard for ice store 1,000,000.00

03 Insulated panels and stabs for ice store 2 nos. 9,000,000.00

Cost of installation and fabrication 9,000,000.00

Total 60,700,000.00

Cold storage with refrigeration system

02 Refrigeration system for product cold store (Minus 
- 20 deg C)

R 507 13,000,000.00

04 Evaporators with high efficiency fans Bitzer (Germany) 5,000,000.00

02 Insulated doors for existing cold stores 500,000.00

02 Electrical switchboards for complete plant 700,000.00

01 Lot Installation materials 2,800,000.00

01 Lot Insulated panels and slabs (125mm GI coated) 7,000,000.00

01 Lot Installation accessories for complete room 2,000,000.00

Cost of Installation 500,000.00

Total 31,500,000.00

01 Generator Cummings 170 KVA 3,500,000.00

Together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon premises No. 50, Archbishop Nicholas Marcus 
Mawatha, Negombo and in and upon any other godowns stores and premises at which the Company now is and may at any 
time and from time to time hereafter be carrying on business or in or upon which the said movable plant machinery and 
equipment may from time to time be stored kept or lie and also the entirety of the movable plant machinery and equipment 
whatsoever which shall or may from time to time replace the said movable plant machinery and equipment spares acces-
sories and tools which shall or may from time to time and at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and upon the 
aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or any other place or places of business into which the company may at any 
time and from time to time hereafter remove or carry on its business or trade or store or keep the said movable plant machin-
ery equipment spares accessories and tools.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary, 
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

03-443 
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DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by The Dfcc Bank 
Plc Under Section 4 of  The Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 17th February, 2021 by the Board of Directors of DFCC 
Bank PLC.	

BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Blue Star Lanka (Private) Limited a Company duly 
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic, of Sri 
Lanka under the Companies Act bearing Registration No PV
126810 and having its registered office in Negombo 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) and Matarakirige 
Antony Sarath Fernando alias Matharakirige Antony Sarath 
Fernando of Negombo has made default in payments due 
on Mortgage Bond No. 12644 dated 13.03.2018, Mortgage 
Bond No. 12646 dated 13.03.2018, Mortgage Bond  
No. 13626 dated 30.04.2019, Mortgage Bond No. 13628 
dated 30.04.2019, Mortgage Bond No. 13338 dated 
17.12.2018 all attested by Chandani Dayarathna, Notary 
Public in favour of the DFCC Bank PLC. (Successor to 
DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC).

And Whereas there is as at 31st December, 2020 due and 
owing from the said Blue Star Lanka (Private) Limited and 
Matarakirige Antony Sarath Fernando alias Matharakirige 
Antony Sarath Fernando to the DFCC Bank PLC on the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 12644, 12646, 13626, 13628 
and 13338 a sum of Rupees Eighty Million Seventy-seven 
Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-one and Cents Eighty-two 
(Rs. 80,077,251.82) together with interest thereon from 
01st January, 2021 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees 
Seventy-one Million Six Hundred Ninety-seven Thousand 
and Six Hundred Seventy-three (Rs. 71,697,673) at an 
interest rate of Six per centum (6%) per annum above the 
Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded 
upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised 
every month on the first business day of each month and 
on a Sum of Rupees Two Million One Hundred Sixty- four 
Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty-seven and Cents Sixty-five  
(Rs. 2,164,927.65) at an interest rate of Two per centum 
(2%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees Five Million 
Seven Hundred Twenty-one Thousand Four Hundred Forty-
seven and Cents Three (Rs. 5,721,447.03) at an interest rate 
of Three per centum (3%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Yield Rate which will be revised every three 
months. 

And whereas the. Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the Land, Building and Machinery 
described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 12644, 12646, 13626, 
13628 and 13338 by Blue Star Lanka (Private) Limited and 
Matarakerige Antony Sarath Fernando alias Matharakirige 
Antony Sarath Fernando be sold by Public Auction by 
Thusith Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer for the recovery 
of the said sum of Rupees Eighty Million Seventy-seven 
Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-one and Cents Eighty-two 
(Rs. 80,077,251.82) together with interest thereon from 
01st January, 2021 to the date of Sale on a sum of Rupees 
Seventy-one Million Six Hundred Ninety-seven Thousand 
and Six Hundred Seventy-three (Rs. 71,697,673) at an 
interest rate of Six per centum (6.0%) per annum above the 
Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded 
(upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum, which will be 
revised every month on the first business day of each 
month and on a Sum of Rupees Two Million One Hundred 
Sixty- four Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty-seven and 
Cents Sixty-five (Rs. 2,164,927.65) at an interest rate of 
Two per centum (2%) per annum and on a Sum of Rupees 
Five Million Seven Hundred Twenty-one Thousand Four 
Hundred Forty-seven and Cents Three (Rs. 5,721,447.03) at 
an interest rate of Three per centum (3%) per annum above 
the Weighted Average Yield Rate which will be revised every 
three months or any portion thereof remaining unpaid at the 
time of Sale together with the cost of advertising and selling 
the said land and premises and all monies expended and 
costs and.other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank PLC 
in accordance with the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bonds in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY 
MORTGAGE BOND Nos. 12644 and 13338

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Plan No. 6404 F/2006 dated 22.07.2006 made 
by K. A. F. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Madangaha, Kahatagaha, Siyambalagaha, Kithulgahawatta 
and Subbappulagewatta” situated at 2nd Division Kurana 
within the Grama Niladari Division of No. 157, 3rd Kurana 
and the Divisional Secretarial Limits the Municipal Council 
Limits and the Registration division of Negombo in the 
District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 
01 is bounded on the North by Land formerly of Ivan Silva 
and Road 15ft wide, East by:Road 15ft wide and land of 
Bernard Rodrigo, South by Land of Bernard Rodrigo, 
Resevation along Railway Line and Reservation for road 
15ft wide, West by Land of Philip Fernando and containing 
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in extent One Rood and Twenty-two Decimal Three Eight 
Perches (0A., 1R., 22.38P.) alias 0.15778 Hectares together 
with everything standing thereon.

The above allotment of land is a recent Re survey of the 
land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 489 dated  11.11.1989 made 
by K. R. S. Fonseka, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Madangaha, Kahatagaha, Siyambalagaha, Kithulgahawatta 
and Subbappulagewatta” situated at 2nd Division Kurana 
aforesaid and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by 
remaining portion of same land of Ivan Silva and Reservation 
for road 15ft wide, East by Reservation for Road 15ft wide 
and remaining portion of same Ivan Silva, South by Land of 
M Ansal Fonseka and Railway Reservation, West by Land 
of Philip Fernando and containing in extent One Rood and 
Twenty-two Decimal Three Eight Perches (0A., 1R., 22.38P.) 
alias 0.1578 Hectares together with everything standing 
thereon and Registered at the Land Registry Negombo.

Together with the Right of way over and along the 
reservation for road 15ft wide depicted in Plan No. 6404 
F/2006 dated 22.07.2006 made by K. A. F. Fernando, 
Licensed Surveyor.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY 
MORTGAGE BOND No. 12646

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2C depicted in Plan No. 2361 dated 23.05.2006 made 
by M. W. Thepulangoda, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Omigahawatta” situated at Weliwita within the 
Grama Niladari Division of No. 475, Weliwita and within 
the Divisional Secretarial Limits and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale 
within the Registration division of Homagama in the District 
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 2C is 
bounded, on the North by Lot 2D and 2B, East by Lot 2B and 
Lot 3 in Plan No. 653, South by Weliwita Road, West by Lot 
2D and containing in extent Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P.) 
alias 0.0379 Hectares together with everything standing 
thereon and registered at the Land Registry Homagama.

Together with the Right of way and other connected 
Rights in Over and along Lot 2D (Reservation for road 

10 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 2361 dated 23.05.2006 
made by M. W. Thepulangoda, Licensed Surveyor.	

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY and 
MACHINERY MORTGAGED BY MORTGAGE BOND 

No. 13626 and 13628 

First Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Plan No. 9646/2015 surveyed and partitioned 
on 29.11.2015 and issued on 13.12.2015 made by K. A. 
Faustinus Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Madangahawatta, Kahatagahawatta, Siyambalagahawatta, 
Kithulgahawatta and Subeappulagewatta” situated at 2nd 
Division Kurana within the Grama Niladari Division of  
No. 160 A Thalduwa and within the Municipal Council 
Limits, the Divisional Secretarial Limits and the Registration 
Division of Negombo in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North 
by Land of Sarath Fernando and Lots 01 and 02 in Plan 
No. 1036, East by Land of K. S. Fonseka and land of  
S. Ajith Karunapala, South by Ditch Separating Reservation 
along Railway Line, West by Reservation for Road 15 feet 
wide and Land of Sarath Fernando And containing in extent 
Twenty-two Perches (0A., 0R., 22P.) alias 0.05565 Hectares 
together with everything standing thereon.

The above allotment of land is a recent re-survey of the 
land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted In Plan No. 1037 dated 04.05.2007 made 
by D. M. H. Dhammika Bandara, Licensed. Surveyor 
of the land called  “Madangahawatta, Kahatagahawatta, 
Siyambalagahawatta, Kithulgahawatta and Subeappulage 
Watta” situated at 2nd Division Kurana aforeseaid and 
which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Land of Sarath 
Fernando, Lots 01 and 02 in Plan No. 1036 made by the 
same, Licensed Surveyor and Land of K. S. Fonseka, East 
by Land of K. S. Fonseka and Land of S. Ajith Karunapala, 
South by Ditch separting Railway Line and Reservation, 
West by Land of Sarath Fernando and containing in extent 
Twenty-two Perches (0A., 0R., 22P.) alias 0.0556 Hectares 
together with everything standing thereon and Registered at 
the Land Registry, Negombo.

Together with the Right of way over and long the 
reservation for road 15ft wide depicted in Plan No. 6404 
F/2006 dated 22.07.2006 made by K. A. F. Fernando, LS.

Together with the Right of way and other connected 
Rights in Over and along the land described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 1036 dated 04.03.2007 made by  
D. M. H. Dhammika Bandara, Licensed Surveyor of the 
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land called “Madangahawatta, Kahatagahawatta, Siyambalagahawatta, Kithulgahawatta and Subeappulage watta situated 
at 2nd Division Kurana aforesaid and which said Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Lot 01 hereof, East by Lot 01 hereof, 
South by Lot 01 in Plan No. 2134 made by W. S. S. Mendis, Licensed Surveyor, West by Land of Sarath Fernando and Road 
15 feet wide and containing in extent Two decimal Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 2.9P.) together with everything standing thereon 
and Registered at the Land Registry, Negombo.

Second Schedule 

Type Make / Model Product / Serial No.

Two units of processing & canning 
machines

Super Seam

Two units of Hydraulic Contact Plate 
Freezers

DB (Y) - 500 -B2 Y180526C180512S004
Y180526C180512S005

Chill Room System AOWID /CDLM Y1800621Cl80411M0452

Receiving Room Doors - 4 nos. SLM Y1806201C180411M0454

Mini Distribution Board (MDB) RICHARDSON RP2018070

Tree units of Refrigerant Compressor Units AWOID /NJHFF - 13D
AWOID /NJHFF - 9Z
AWOID /NJHFF - 9Z

WG180512004
WG180512005
WG180512006

Cold Room Unit BITZER/4HE-18Y -40P 
BITZER/4TES - 12Y - 40P

1994606537
1994606447

Five units of Cold Room Doors AOWID /CDLM Y180621C180411M0448
Y180621Cl 80411M0449 
Y180621C180411M0450 
Y180621C180411M0451 
Y180621C180411M0452

Two units of Cold Room Evaporation Unit AOWID /D45+146E/17F+T
AO WID/D45+145E/412F+T 
AOWTD D45+178E/37F+T

Y180614C180512L274
Y180614C180512L275
Y180614C180512L276

Six Units of Cold Store Doors AOWID/170X2150X7

Overhead External Door

. Thermal Units:
Six units of 18000 BTU
One unit of 12000 BTU

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary,
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

03-442
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CARGILLS  BANK  LIMITED

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the Bank under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Name of the Customer : Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Cargills Bank 
Limited held on 25.02.2021, it was resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows.

Whereas Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Limited as the Obligor 
has made default in the repayment of the financial facility 
granted against the security of the Property morefully 
described in the schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated 
by Mortgage Bond No. 6369 dated 19.01.2018 attested by 
K. S. P. W. Jayaweera, Notary Public, in favour of Cargills 
Bank Limited (hereinafter sometimes called as “the Bank”) 
bearing Registration No. PB 4847 and having its registered 
office at No. 696, Galle Road, Colombo 3;

And Whereas there is now due and owing to the Bank 
a sum of United States Dollars Two Million Five Hundred 
and Twenty Thousand One Hundred and Fourteen and Cents 
Seventy (USD 2,520,114.70) on account of principal and 
interest upto 09.09.2020 together with interest at the rate 
of 7% per annum on USD 2,429,166.64 from 10.09.2020 
till the date of payment in full on the said Mortgage Bond  
No. 6369. 

It is hereby resolved:-

that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, Thusith 
Karunarathne, the Licensed Auctioneer at No. 182/3 (50/3), 
Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered 
to sell by public auction the properties mortgaged to the 
Bank by Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Limited as the Obligor 
by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 6369 morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto and for the recovery of the said sum 
United States Dollars Two Million Five Hundred and Twenty 
Thousand One Hundred and Fourteen and Cents Seventy 
(USD 2,520,114.70) together with interest as aforesaid from 
the aforesaid dates to date of sale and costs and monies 
recoverable under Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 less 
payments (if any) since received;

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot X1 depicted in Plan No. 6424A/9000 dated 29.02.2012 

and made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor (being 
a resurvey and amalgamation of Lots 1 and 2 depicted in 
Plan No. 3509 dated 25.05.1994 made by K. E. J. B. Perera, 
Licensed Surveyor, Lot A depicted in Plan No. 15125 dated 
10.09.1996 made by M. D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor, 
Lots 1 and 2 depicted in Plan No. 3508 dated 25.05.1994 
made by K. E. J. B. Perera, Licensed Surveyor, Lot 2 
depicted in Plan No. 6123 dated 08.08.1981 made by M. 
D. J. V. Perera, Licensed Surveyor and Lots X1, X2, X3 
and X4 depicted in Plan No. 4479/9000 dated 09.02.2007 
made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor) of the 
land called “Dombagahawatta and Dombagahawatte 
Kotasa Galbanatote Galbanatotawatta” bearing Assessment  
No. 304, Colombo Road situated at Parana Ambalama 
within the Grama Niladari Division of Uswetakeiyawa in 
the Divisional Secretariat Division of Wattala within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Wattala in the Ragam Pattu 
of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot X1 is bounded on the North 
by Lands claimed by L. E. N. Rita Nanayakkara and others, 
J. D. R. Jayamanna, Part of Lot 1 in Plan No. 3519, Odai 
and land of Ruban Nanayakkara, on the East by Odai and 
High Land, on the South by Land of formerly belonging to 
Central Finance and premises of Ranweli Gardens Hotel and 
on the West by Odai, Premises of Occan Spray premises of 
Ranweli Gardens Hotel and Colombo-Uswetakeiyawa Road 
and containing in extent Six Acres and Eighteen Perches 
(6A., 0R., 18P.) according to the said Plan No. 6424A/9000 
together with trees, buildings, plantations soil and everything 
else standing thereon. Registered under title volume/folio  
L 44/04 at Gampaha Land Registry.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

	C hamila Abeysooriya,
	H ead - Recoveries.

03-472/1

CARGILLS  BANK  LIMITED

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the Bank under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Name of the Customer	 : Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Cargills Bank 
Limited held on 25.02.2021, it was resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows.

Whereas Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Limited as the 
Mortgagor has made default in the repayment of the 
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financial facility granted against the security of the Property 
morefully described in the schedule hereto mortgaged and 
hypothecated by Mortgage Bond No. 6371 dated 19.01.2018 
attested by K. S. P. W. Jayaweera, Notary Public, in favour 
of Cargills Bank Limited (hereinafter sometimes called as 
“the Bank”) bearing Registration No. PB 4847 and having 
its registered office at No. 696, Galle Road, Colombo 3.

And Whereas there is now due and owing to the Bank 
on the said Mortgage Bond No. 6371 a sum of Rupees 
One Hundred Million Three Hundred and Forty-eight 
Thousand Three Hundred and Eight and Cents Fifty-six  
(Rs. 100,348,308.56) on account of principal and interest 
upto 31.08.2020 together with interest at the rate of 13.5% 
per annum upto a limit of Rs. 75,000,000.00 and at the rate of 
18% per annum on the amount exceeding Rs. 75,000,000.00 
from 01.09.2020 till the date of payment in full on the said 
Mortgage Bond No. 6371.

It is hereby resolved:-

that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, Thusith 
Karunarathne the Licensed Auctioneer at No. 182/3 (50/3), 
Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered 
to sell by public auction the properties mortgaged to the 
Bank by Reefs Edge Resorts (Pvt) Limited as the Mortgagor 
by Mortgage Bond bearing No. 6371 morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto and for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees One Hundred Million Three Hundred and Forty-
eight Thousand Three Hundred and Eight and Cents Fifty- 
six (Rs. 100,348,308.56) together with interest as aforesaid 
from the aforesaid dates to date of sale and costs and monies 
recoverable under Section 13 of the said Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 less 
payments (if any) since received;

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 6490/9000 dated 07.05.2012 and 
made by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor (being a 
resurvey and amalgamation of Lot A depicted in Plan No. 
4575/9000 dated 19.04.2007, Lot X depicted in Plan No. 
6430/9000 and Lot Y depicted in Plan No. 6430A/9000 
both dated 23.02.2012 all made by S. Wickramasinghe, 
Licensed Surveyor) of the land called “Dombagahawatte 
Kotasa” and “Dombagahawatta” “Galbanatotewatta” and 
“Moonamalgahawatupanguwa” and now known as “Reefs 
Edge Hotel” bearing Assessment Nos.300 and 304 Galle 
Road situated along Colombo Road (Uswetakeiyawa) at 

Parana Ambalama within the Grama Niladari Division of 
Uswetakeiyawa in the Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Wattala within the Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Wattala in the 
Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the 
North by premises called Wedding House Beach Hotel, on 
the East by Colombo Road (Uswetakeiyawa), on the South 
by Premises bearing Assessment No. 314, Colombo Road 
(The Beach Hut) and on the West by Reservation for Sea 
Shore and containing in extent Three Rood and Thirty-five 
decimal Three Two Perches (0A., 3R., 35.32P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 6490/9000 together with trees, buildings, 
plantations soil and everything else standing thereon.

Registered under title volume/folio L 44/03 at Gampaha 
Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	C hamila Abeysooriya,
	H ead-Recoveries.

03-472/2

People’s  Bank—ragama branch

Borrower	 :	Nissanka Denal Gleny Mendis 
		  Abeysinghe Mudiyanselage Kamini 

Wishwa Kumari Abeysinghe
Amount 
  Granted & Date	:	Rs. 2.0 Million - 20.10.2017
		  Rs 5.0 Million - 26.08.2016
Upset Price	 :	Rs. 19.0 Million.

Resolution under section 29D of the People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the act, 

No. 32 of 1986

It is hereby notified that the following resolution was 
unanimously passed by the Board of Directors of the 
People’s Bank under section 29D of the People’s Bank Act 
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at 
their meeting held 21.06.2019.

Whereas Nissanka Denal Gleny Mendis & Abesinghe 
Mudiyanselage Kamini Wishwa Kumari Abeysinghe as 
obligor have made default in payment due on the Bond  
No. 11645 dated 20.10.2017 attested by D. S. Lawernce, 
Notary Public of Gampaha & Bond No. 975 dated 
22.08.2016 attested by Damayanthi D. Ranathunga, Notary 
Public of Gampaha in favour of the People’s Bank and there 
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is now due and owing to the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees 
One Million Three Hundred & Forty-six Thousand Six 
Hundred Sixty-six and Cents Seventy (Rs. 1,346,666.70) & 
Rupees Four Million One Hundred Nineteen Thousand Four 
Hundred Two and Cents Nineteen (Rs. 4,119,402.19) on the 
said Bonds. The Board of directors of the People’s Bank 
under the powers vested in them by the People’s Bank Act, 
No.29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to 
the said bank by the said bonds No. 11645 & 975 be sold by 
Public Auction by Shockman & Samarawickrama, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees One Million Three Hundred Forty-six Thousand Six 
Hundred Sixty-six and Cents Seventy (Rs. 1,346,666.70 ) 
& Rupees Four Million One Hundred Nineteen Thousand 
Four Hundred Two Cents and Nineteen (Rs. 4,119,402.19) 
with further interest on Rupees One Million Three Hundred 
Forty-six Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-six and Cents 
Seventy (Rs. 1,346,666.70) at 19% per annum from 
01.01.2019 & on Rupees Four Million One Hundred & 
Nineteen Thousand Four Hundred Two and Cents nineteen 
(Rs. 4,119,402.19) at the rate of weekly AWPLR + 3.5% + 
2% per annum from 01.12.2018 to date of sale and costs of 
sale and money recoverable under section 29L of the said 
People’s Bank Act, less payments (if any) since received. 

Description of the property mortgaged

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot H depicted in Plan No. 2018 dated 11.06.2016 made 
by S. A. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Delgahawatta” situated at Peralanda village, 
Grama Niladari Division No. 181 D,  Peralanda within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha limits of Ja - ela in Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Ja - ela, in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale 
in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and bounded 
on North-east by Lot J in Plan No. 10337J and 20ft. wide 
Road (Lot H 1) in Plan No. 10337H of M. D. J. V. Perera 
LS, South-east by Lot 1 in Plan No. 13337L of M. D. J. V. 
Perera, LS South-west by Land of B. Rupasinghe and North-
west by Land of heirs of Godvin Perera and containing in 
extent Fourteen Perches (0A., 0R., 14.0P.) together with 
the buildings and everything else standing thereon and 
registered under J 353/51 at the Land Registry of Gampaha.

Together with right of way depicted in the said Plan.

By order of the Board of Direcctors,

	 Regional Manager,
	 Gampaha.

People’s bank,
Regional Head Office Gampaha,
131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

03-471

SAMPATH BANK PLC

(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)
Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

N U S P Manamperi.
A/C No. 1081 5467 4043. 

At a meeting held on 29.10.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously. 

Whereas Narangastenne Udahagedara Siril Pathirana 
Manamperi in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the repayment 
of the credit facility granted against the security of 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedules hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the 
Mortgage Bond No. 1158 dated 17th November, 2015 
attested by J. C. R. Rangama, Notary Public of Kandy 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond bearing 
No. 1158 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 08th 
September, 2020 a sum of Rupees Twenty-five Million 
Two Hundred and Sixty Thousand Four Hundred Nine 
and Cents Twenty Only (Rs. 25,260,409.20) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedules hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facility by the said Bond bearing  
No. 1158 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. 
Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the 
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twenty-five Million 
Two Hundred and Sixty Thousand Four Hundred Nine 
and Cents Twenty Only (Rs. 25,260,409.20) together 
with further interest on a sum of Rupees Twenty-three 
Million and Forty-three Thousand Two Hundred Six 
and Cents Sixty only (Rs. 23,043,206.60) at the rate of 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate Two per centum 
(2%) per annum (Floor rate 9.5%) from 09th September, 
2020 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bond bearing No. 1158 together with costs of 
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.
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THE SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Plan No.J 3562 dated 08th June, 2015 made 
by R. L. K. Jayasundara, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Konawatta”, together with the soil, trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 552, Sirimawo Bandaranayake Mawatha 
(earlier Peradeniya Road) situated at Mulgampola within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 243 -Mulgampala within 
the Divisional Secretariat and the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kandy in the District of Kandy, Central Province and 
which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North-east by Parapet 
wall & wall, Parapet wall on the South-east by Masonry Drain 
separating Road from Houses to Sirimawo Bandaranayake 
Mawatha, on the South-west by Road from Houses to 
Sirimawo Bandaranayake Mawatha and on the North-west 
by Parapet wall and Drain separating Assessment No. 550 
and containing in extent Twelve Decimal Five Perches  
(0A., 0R., 12.5P.) according to the said Plan No. J 3562.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of following land to Wit; 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
01 depicted in Plan No. 3094 dated 20th May, 1999 made by 
A. S. Azward, Licensed Surveyor (being resurvey of land 
depicted in Plan No. 598 dated 23rd October, 1973 made 
by T. B. Somadasa, Licensed Surveyor), of the land called 
“Konawatta”, together with the soil, trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 552, Sirimawo Bandaranayake Mawatha 
(earlier Peradeniya Road) situated at Mulgampola and in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 243, Mulgampala within 
the Divisional Secretariat and the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kandy in the District of Kandy, Central Province and 
which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North-east by Parapet 
wall and wire Fence separating Assessment No. 550, 
separating Road from Houses to Sirimawo Bandaranayake 
Mawatha on the South-east by Drain separating Sirimawo 
Bandaranayake Mawatha, on the South-west by Road from 
Houses to Sirimawo Bandaranayake Mawatha and on the 
North-west by Parapet wall and Drain separating Assessment 
No. 550 and containing in extent Twelve Decimal Five 
Perches (0A., 0R., 12.5P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 3094 and registered in Volume/Folio A 523/105 at the 
Land Registry Kandy.  

By order of the Board,	

	 Company Secretary.

03-536/1

SAMPATH  BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

N U S P Manamperi.
A/C No. 0007 5010 7907. 

At a meeting held on 29.10.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously. 

Whereas Narangastenne Udahagedara Siril Pathirana 
Manamperi alias Siril Pathirana Manamperi in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor 
has made default in the repayment of the credit facility 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedules hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond Nos. 3467 
dated 25th June, 2018 and 4536 dated 26th September, 
2019 both attested by A. W. S. Kalhari, Notary Public of 
Kandy in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond bearing  
Nos. 3467 and 4536 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as 
at 08th September, 2020 a sum of Rupees Twenty-two 
Million Three Hundred and Forty-five Thousand Five 
Hundred Seven and Cents Fifty Only (Rs. 22,345,507.50) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedules hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as security for the said credit facility by the said 
Bond bearing Nos. 3467 and 4536 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Twenty-two Million Three Hundred and Forty- five 
Thousand Five Hundred Seven and Cents Fifty Only  
(Rs. 22,345,507.50) together with further interest on 
a sum of Rupees Twenty Million Four Hundred and 
Eight Thousand only (Rs. 20,408,000.00) at the rate of 
Thirteen Decimal Five per centum (13.5%) per annum 
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from 09th September, 2020 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bond bearing Nos. 3467 and 
4536 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received. 

THE SCHEDULE  

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 1247 dated 09th July, 2015 
made by Divakara P. B. Dissanayake, Licensed Surveyor, of 
the land called “Anniewatta Estate”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 4/14-Galkanda Road 
situated at Dodanwala and in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Anniewatta(East) and within the Divisional Secretariat of 
Kandy Four Gravets and the Municipal Council Limits of 
Kandy in Gangawata Korale in the District of Kandy, Central 
Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North 
by Land claimed by Gamini Jayawickrama and premises 
bearing Assessment No. 84/4, Galkanda Road claimed 
by Gamini Jayawickrama, on the East by Lot 1C in Plan  
No. 1183A being the Access to Main Road and Premises 
beraing Assessment No. 4/13, Galkanda Road claimed by 
Anuradha De Silva (Lot IB in Plan No. 1183A), on the 
South by Premises bearing Assessment No. 22, Galkanda 
Road claimed by Dr. Somasiri (Lot 2A in Plan No. 3552) 
and Drain and Path (Lot 2B in Plan No.3552), and on the 
West by Land claimed by W. M. Wicramatunga and land 
claimed by Gamini Jayawickrama and containing in extent 
Twenty-five Perches (0A., 0R., 25P.) according to the said 
Plan No. 1247.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of following land to Wit;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1A depicted in Plan No. 1183A dated 05th of September, 
1956 made by R. C. O De La Motte, Licensed Surveyor, of 
the land called “Anniewatta Estate”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 4/14-Galkanda Road 
situated at Dodanwala and in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Anniewatta (East) and within the Divisional Secretariat 
of Kandy Four Gravets and the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kandy in Gangawata Korale in the District of Kandy, 
Central Province and which said Lot 1A is bounded on the 
North by Old Path and portion of Estate depicted in Plan  
No. 1021, on the East by Lots 1C & IB in the said Plan, on 
the South by Old Path and path of same Estate depicted in 
Plan No. 1021, and on the West by part of the same Estate 
depicted in Plan No. 1021 and containing in extent Twenty- 
eight Perches (0A., 0R., 28P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 1247 and registered in Volume/Folio A 608/128 at the 
Land Registry Kandy.

Together with right of way over and along Lot lC (20ft.
Road Reservation) in the said Plan No. 1183A and that 
stripe of land being Reservation for Pipe Line about Seven 
Hundred and Fifty Feet (750Ft.) in from the well upto Lot 
01 aforesaid and three feet wide and shown in the said Plan 
No. 1183A and Lot 2B in Plan No. 3552. 

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

03-536/2

SAMPATH  BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

N. U. S. P. Manamperi & T. Gopinath.
A/C No. 0093 5000 6777. 

At a meeting held on 29.10.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously. 

Whereas Narangastenne Udahagedara Siril Pathirana 
Manamperi and Thinamani Gopinath in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors have 
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedules hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 1070 dated 
11th September, 2015 attested by J. C. R. Rangama, 
Notary Public of Kandy in favour of Sampath Bank 
PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James 
Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now due and 
owing on the said Bond bearing No. 1070 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 08th September, 2020 a sum 
of Rupees Twenty-six Million Six Hundred and Fifty-
one Thousand Three Hundred Forty-five and Cents 
Thirty-three Only (Rs. 26,651,345.33) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the Recovery 
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of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facility by the said Bond bearing No. 1070 to be 
sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Twenty-six Million Six Hundred and Fifty-one 
Thousand Three Hundred Forty-five and Cents Thirty-
three Only (Rs. 26,651,345.33) together with further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Twenty- two Million One 
Hundred and Twenty-one Thousand Five Hundred Five 
and Cents Forty Only (Rs. 22,121,505.40) at the rate of 
Sixteen Decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum and 
further interest on further sum of Rupees One Million 
Four Hundred and Eighty Thousand (Rs. 1,480,000.00) at 
the rate of Fifteen Decimal Five per centum (15.5%) per 
annum from 09th September, 2020 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing  
No. 1070 together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No.823 dated 01st December, 
1996 made by K. Weerapana, Licensed Surveyor, of the 
land called “Balagollawatta (Part)” together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No.669/1, situated at Kengalle 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Division of Balagolla 
in the Divisional Secretariat of Division of Kundasale in 
Udagampaha Korale, Patha Dumbara and the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Kundasale in the District of Kandy, Central 
Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North 
by Road (Highways) from Kandy to Digana, on the East 
by Live Fence separating Lot 2 in PP Plan No. 2937, on 
the South by Lot 2 in the said Plan No. 823 and on the 
West by Road from Pallekele Industrial Estate to Main 
Road (Highways) and containing in extent Twelve Perches  
(0A., 0R., 12P.) according to the said Plan No. 823 and 
registered in Volume/Folio D 55/21 at the Land Registry 
Kandy.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

03-536/3

SAMPATH  BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

H. R. I. S. Dharmapala.
A/C No. 0074 5000 4833. 

At a meeting held on 27.01.2021 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously: 

Whereas Hadunneththi Rannuluge Iresh Suranga 
Dharmapala in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the repayment 
of the credit facilities granted against the security of 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 1713 dated 01st August, 2016, 
1877 dated 14th and 16th December, 2016, 2863 dated 
30th August, 2019 all attested by K.  A. Kahandawa, 
Notary Public of Badulla and 1994 dated 06th September, 
2017 attested by C. Rangama, Notary Public of Kandy 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing on the said Bond bearing 
Nos. 1713, 1877, 2863 and 1994 to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as at 06th January, 2021 a sum of Rupees Forty-
nine Million One Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Four 
Hundred Eighty-six Only (Rs. 49,156,486.00) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that die property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing  
Nos. 171 3, 1877, 2863 and 1994 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Forty-nine Million One Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand 
Four Hundred Eighty-six Only (Rs. 49,156,486.00) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees 
Forty-four Million One Hundred and Ninety-nine 
Thousand Four Hundred Forty and Cents Ninety only  
(Rs. 44,199,440.90) at the rate of Fifteen Decimal Five 
per centum (15.5%) per annum from 07th January, 2021 
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to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said 
Bond bearing Nos. 1713, 1877, 2863 and 1994 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE 

1. All the divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot No. 3 depicted in Plan No. 3914 dated 05th January, 2012 
made by T. B. Attanayake, Licensed Surveyor from and out 
of the Land called “Kalaghalanda” together with soil, trees, 
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Muppane Village within the Grama Niladari 
Division of 129B- Monaragala within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits and Divisional secretariat of Monaragala in 
Buttala Wedirata Korale in the District of Monaragala, Uva 
Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by 
Road Reservation along Road from Pothuvil to Monaragala 
and Lot 2, on the East by Reservation for Road, Lot 116 in 
FVP 172 and Lot 4, on the South by Lot 4 and Stream and 
on West by Lot 2 and Stream and containing in extent Eight 
Perches (0A., 0R., 08P.) or Hec. 0.02024 according to the 
said Plan No. 3914 and registered in Volume/folio A 29/ 146 
at the Monaragala Land registry.

2. All the divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot No. 1 depicted in Plan No.5804 dated 08th February, 2013 
made by B. G. C. Pushpakumara, Licensed Surveyor from 
and out of the Land called “Habaragodahenyaya” together 
with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon situated at Magandana Village (VP 642) 
in the Grama Niladari Division of Magandana within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Madulla in the Divisional 
secretariat of Madulla in Dambagalla Korale in the District 
of Monaragala, Uva Province and which said Lot 1 is 
bounded on the North by Lot 188 in Plan No. S/Mo/1905, 
on the East by Lot 184 in Plan No.S/Mo/1905 (Road 
Reservation, on the South by Lot 185 in Plan No. S/Mo/1905 
and on the West by Lot 188 in Plan No. S/Mo/1905 and 
containing in extent One Acre Two Roods and Five Perches  
(1A., 2R., 5P.) or Hec. 0.6196 according to the said Plan 
No. 5804.

Above is a resurvey of following allotment of land to wit:

All the divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 187 depicted in Plan No. S/Mo/1905 (VP 642) made 
by Surveyor General from and out of the Land called 
“Habaragodahenyaya” together with soil, trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Magandana Village (VP 642) in the Grama Niladari 
Division of Magandana within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Madulla in the Divisional secretariat of Madulla 
in Dambagalla Korale in the District of Monaragala, Uva 

Province and which said Lot 187 is bounded on the North 
by Lot 188, on the East by Lot 184 (Road Reservation), on 
the South by Lot 185, on the West by Lot 188 and containing 
in extent One Acre Two Roods and Five Perches (1A., 2R., 
5P.) or Hec. 0.6196 according to the said Plan No. 5804 and 
registered in Volume/folio R 28/135& H 01/17 Monaragala 
Land Registry.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

03-536/4

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Y. B. T. K. Peiris.
A/C No. 1105 5430 7391. 

At a meeting held on 26.11.2020 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously :

Whereas Yatawara Batuge Thushara Kelum Peiris in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond  
No. 4395 dated 25th June, 2019 attested by A. W. S. 
Kalhari, Notary Public of Kandy in favour of Sampath 
Bank PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 
and having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James 
Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now due and 
owing on the said Bond bearing No. 4395 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 09th November, 2020 a 
sum of Rupees Seven Million and Eleven Thousand 
Four Hundred Eighty-nine and Cents Fifty-nine Only  
(Rs. 7,011,489.59) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being 
the total amount outstanding on the said Bond and the 
Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
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described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit facility 
by the said Bond bearing No. 4395 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Seven 
Million and Eleven Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-nine 
and Cents Fifty-nine Only (Rs. 7,011,489.59) together 
with further interest on a sum of Rupees Five Million 
Nine Hundred and Ninety-seven Thousand Five Hundred 
Five and Cents Fifty-nine only (Rs. 5,997,505.59) at 
the rate of Fourteen per centum (14%) per annum from 
10th November, 2020 to date of satisfaction of the total 
debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 4395 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received. 

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot 01 
depicted in Plan No. 1144 dated 12th of December, 2016 
made by U. K. K. Ekanayake, Licensed surveyor of the land 
called “Liniyagolleyaya alias Liniyagollayaya” together 
with soil, trees, plantations and buildings and everything 
standing thereon situated at Karavilahene Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Karawilahene within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Naula and in Wagapanaha of 
Udesiya Pattuwa in the Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Naula in the District of Matale, Central Province and which 
said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Road to Houses, 
on the East by Lot 386 in F V P 257 claimed by S. K. 
Gunawardana, on the South by Lot B in extract of Lot 385 
in FVP 257 claimed by R Perera and on the West by Road 
Highways from Naula to Pallegama and containing in extent 
Two Roods and Eighteen Perches (0A., 2R., 18P.) or 0.2478 
Hectares according to said Plan No. 1144.

Which said Lot A in Plan No. 1177 is a resurvey of land 
fully described below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 1177 dated 18th of August, 2006 
made by W. C. Dias, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Liniyagolleyaya alias Liniyagollayaya” together with soil, 
trees, plantations and buildings and everything standing 
thereon situated at Karavilahene Village in the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Karawilahene within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Naula and in Wagapanaha of Udesiya 
Pattuwa in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Naula in 
the District of Matale Central Province and which said Lot 
A is bounded on the North by Reservation for Road, on the 
East by Lot 386 in F V P 257 claimed by S. K. Gunawardana, 
on the South-west by Lot B in extract of Lot 385 in F V P 
257 claimed by R. Perera, and on the North-west by Road 
Highways from Naula to Pallegama and containing in extent 

Two Roods and Eighteen Perches (0A., 2R., 18P.) according 
to said Plan No. 1177 and registered in Volume/Folio  
Q 25/111 at the Land Registry, Matale.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

03-536/5

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC
wennappuwa  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 

Recovery of Loans Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 04 of 1990

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Warnakulasuriya Sakila Priyadarshani 
Dabarera Warnakulasuriya Lesley Nelson Croos as the 
Obligors have made default in payment due on Bond  
No. 5435 dated 16.06.2016 attested by G. M. M. 
Fernando, Notary Public of Negombo in favour of Hatton 
National Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to 
the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 15th December, 
2020 a sum of Rs. 10,416,799.89 (Rupees Ten Million 
Four Hundred and Sixteen Thousand Seven Hundred 
and Ninety-nine and Cents Eighty-nine Only) due on 
the Permanent Overdraft facility extended to you on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC under the power vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Bank (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described the Schedule hereto and mortgaged 
to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond  
No. 5435 be sold by Public Auction by P. Muthukumarana, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said 
sum of Rs. 10,416,799.89 due as at 15th December, 2020 
together with further interest from 16th December, 2020 
to date of sale together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 10299 dated 05.08.2006 made 
by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2021'03'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.03.2021
558

land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of 
Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puitalam North 
Western Province (within the Registration Divisioin of 
Marawila) and bounded on the North by Road (P.S) from 
Weerahena to Mawila, on the East by Land of B Becksy 
Flora Bernadette, on the South by Lot 3 and on the West by 
Lot 2 and containing in extent Fifteen perches (0A., 0R., 
15P.).

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 17 depicted in Plan No. 10299 dated 05.08.2006 made 
by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 - Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of 
Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam North Western 
province (within the Registration Division of Marawila) and 
bounded on the North by Road (P.S.) from Weerahena to 
Mawila on the East by Ela, on the South by & Lot 18 and on 
the west by Lot 18 & Road (P.S.) from Weerahena to Mawila 
and containing in extent Fifteen perches (0A., 0R., 15P.).

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 19 depicted in Plan No. 10299 dated 05.08.2006 made 
M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of Weerahena East in 
the Divisions Secretariat Nattandiya within the Nattandiya 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of Pitigal Korale 
South in the District of Puttalam North Western province 
(within the Registration Division of Marawila) and bounded 
on the North by Road (P.S.) from Weerahena to Mawila & 
Lot 18 on the East by Lot 18 & Ela, on the South by Ela 
& Lot 20 and on the West by Lot 20 & Road (P.S.) from 
Weerahena to Mawila & containing in extent Fifteen perches 
(0A., 0R., 15P.).	

4. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 20 depicted in Plan No. 10299 dated 05.08.2006 made 
by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha 
of Pitigal Korale south in the District of Puttalam North 
Western Province (within the Registration Division of 

Marawila) and bounded on the North bv Road (P.S.) from 
Weerahena to Mawila & Lot 19 on the East by Lot 19 & Ela, 
on the South by Ela & Lot 21 and on the West by Lot 21 & 
Road (P.S.) from Weerahena to Mawila and containing in 
extent Seventeen perches (0A., 0R., 17P.).

5. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 21 depicted in Plan No. 10299 dated 05.08.2006 made 
by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 - Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of 
Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam North 
Western province (within the Registration Division of 
Marawila) and bounded on the North by Road (P.S.) from 
Weerahena to Mawila Sc Lot 20 on the East by Lot 20, on 
the South by Ela & Paddy Field called Wewa Kumbura 
claimed by P. P. Sunil Peiris and on the West by Paddy Field 
called Wewa Kumbura claimed by P. P. Sunil Peiris & Road 
(P.S.) from Weerahena to Mawila and containing in extent 
Eighteen perches (0A., 0R., 18P.).

Which said Lots 1, 17, 19, 20 & 21 are an amalgamation 
and sub-division of the following allotment of lands to wit:

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot I depicted in Plan No. 8199 dated 05.08.2006 made  
M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings 
and everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena 
Village within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 - 
Weerahena East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya 
within the Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda 
Palatha of Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam 
North Western Province (within the Registration Division 
of Marawila) and bounded on the North & North West by 
Pradeshiya Sabha Road leading to Mawila from Weerahena, 
on the South-East by Ela and on the South - West by Paddy 
Field called Wewakumbura claimed by P. P. Sunil Peiris 
and containing in extent One Rood Thirty-three perches  
(0A., 1R., 33P.).

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 8199 dated 05.08.2006 made by  
M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of 
Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam North Western 
Province (within the Registration Division of Marawila) and 
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bounded on the North-East by Pradeshiya Sabha Road on 
the East by Land claimed by B Becksy Flora Bernadette and 
on the South & North-west by Ela and containing in extent 
One Rood Three perches (0A., 1R., 3P.).

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 8199 dated 05.08.2006 made 
by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called Mawila Estate together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Weerahena Village 
within the Grama Niladhari’s Division of 509 - Weerahena 
East in the Divisional Secretariat Nattandiya within the 
Nattandiya Pradeshiya Sabha Limits in Meda Palatha of 
Pitigal Korale South in the District of Puttalam North 
Western Province (within the Registration Division of 
Marawila) and bounded on the North by Ela, on the East by 
Land claimed by B Becksy Flora Bernadette on the South 
by Land of P. P. Sarath Chandrawimala Peiris and Lot 4 on 
the South - West by Lot 5 and on the North - West by Ela 
and containing in extent One Acre One Rood Four perches 
(1A., 1R., 4P.).

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

03-531/1

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC
wennappuwa  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 

Recovery of Loans Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 04 of 1990

Warnakulasuriya Lesley Nelson Croos 
Warnakulasuriya Shakila Priyadarshanie Dabarera.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Warnakulasuriya Lesley Nelson Croos and 
Warnakulasuriya Shakila Priyadarshanie Dabarera as the 
Obligors have mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 2018/
WEN/02 dated 27.03.2018 executed by Hatton National 
Bank PLC, Colombo, the motor vehicle morefully 
described in the Second Schedule hereto, which shall 
ordinarily be kept at the place and within the District set 
forth in the First Schedule hereto and all parts, tools and 
accessories relating thereto and also part or parts as may 
be added thereto in additions or replacements to the said 
motor vehicle in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC 
as security for the payment of the Personal Loan facility 
granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to Warnakulasuriya 
Lesley Nelson Croos And Warnakulasuriya Shakila 
Priyadarshanie Dabarera and have made default the 
payment in a sum of (Rupees Eight Million Six Hundred 
and Sixty-eight Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-eight 
and Cents Ninety-four Only) Rs. 8,668,628.94.

And there is now due and owing to the Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 15th December, 2020 a sum of 
Rs. 8,668,628.94 on the aforesaid Bond and the Board of 
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the powers 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the 
motor vehicle more fully described in the Second Schedule 
hereto, which shall ordinarily be kept at the place and within 
the District set forth in the First Schedule hereto and all 
parts, tools and accessories relating thereto and also part or 
parts as may be added thereto in additions and replacements 
to the said motor vehicle and mortgaged to Hatton National 
Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 2018/WEN/02 be sold by 
Public Auction by P Muthukumarana Licensed Auctioneer 
of All Island for recovery of the said sum as at 15.12.2020 
together with further interest from 16.12.2020 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

The Motor Vehicle/s described in the Second 
Schedule hereto will ordinarily be kept at Church View 
Dummaladeniya South Wennappuwa situated in the District 
Puttalam in the Province of North Western in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.
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THE SECOND SCHEDULE

	 Registration	 Description Make/Model	 Year of	 Chassis No.	E ngine No.
	 No.		  Manufacture

	 WPCAO 7639	 MITSUBISHI	 V98	 2015	 JMYLYV98WGJ00084	 4M41-UAP9290
			   WLYXZSR
			   MONTERO

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

03-531/2

HATTON NATIONAL BANK PLC
wennappuwa  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Warnakulasuriya Lesley Nelson Croos.
Warnakulasuriya Shakila Priyadarshanie Dabarera.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Warnakulasuriya Lesley Nelson Croos and 
Warnakulasuriya Shakila Priyadarshanie Dabarera as the 
Obligors have mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 2018/
WEN/02 dated 07.02.2018 executed by Hatton National 
Bank PLC, Colombo, the motor vehicle morefully 
described in the Second Schedule hereto, which shall 
ordinarily be kept at the place and within the District set 
forth in the First Schedule hereto and all parts, tools and 
accessories relating thereto and also part or parts as may 
be added thereto in additions or replacements to the said 
motor vehicle in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC 
as security for the payment of the Personal Loan facility 
granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to Warnakulasuriya 
Lesley Nelson Croos and Warnakulasuriya Shakila 
Priyadarshanie Dabarera and have made default the 
payment in a sum of (Rupees Twelve Million Four Hundred 

and Ten Thousand One Hundred and Sixty-seven only)  
Rs. 12,410,167.00.

And there is now due and owing to the Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 15th December, 2020 a sum  
of Rs. 12,410,167.00 on the aforesaid Bond and the Board 
of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the 
powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the 
motor vehicle more fully described in the Second Schedule 
hereto, which shall ordinarily be kept at the place and within 
the District set forth in the First Schedule hereto and all 
parts, tools and accessories relating thereto and also part or 
parts as may be added thereto in additions and replacements 
to the said motor vehicle and mortgaged to Hatton National 
Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 2018/WEN/02 be sold by 
Public Auction by P. Muthukumarana, Licensed Auctioneer 
of All Island for recovery of the said sum as at 15.12.2020 
together with further interest from 16.12.2020 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred 
less payments (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

The Motor Vehicle/s described in the Second Schedule 
hereto will ordinarily be kept at Church view Dummaladeniya 
East Wennappuwa situated in the District Puttalam in the 
Province of North Western in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka.
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THE SECOND SCHEDULE

	 Registration	 Description Make/Model	 Year of	 Chassis No.	E ngine No.
	 No.		  Manufacture

NWCBA 8555	T OYOTA	 KDJ150R	 2017	 JTEBH3FJ50K195757	 1KD 2773285
	 LAND	 GKAEY
	 CRUISER
	 PRADO	

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

03-531/3

HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK PLC—badulla  
branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Sinnaththommalage Chinthaka Prasad Perera.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Sinnaththommalage Chinthaka Prasad Perera 
as the Obligor has made default in payment due on Bond  
Nos. 2623 dated 19.11.2015, 2780 dated 14.07.2016, 
2987 dated 13.07.2017, 3205 dated 02.08.2018 and 
3443 dated 12.06.2020 all attested by H. Rajapakse, 
Notary Public of Badulla, in favour of Hatton National 
Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to the Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 19th November, 2020 a sum of 
Rs. 8,783,037.73 (Rupees Eight Million Seven Hundred 
and Eighty-three Thousand and Thirty-seven and Cents 
Seventy-three Only) due on the Term Loan facility 
extended to you on the said Bonds and the Board of 
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises morefully described in the 
First and the Second Schedules, hereto and mortgaged to 
Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 2623, 
2780, 2987, 3205 and 3443 be sold by Public Auction by 
J. W. E. Jayawardena, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 

for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 8,783,037.73 together 
with further interest from 20th November, 2020 to date of 
sale together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 4627 dated 16.07.2012 made 
by S. P. Ratnayake, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called “Ulugala Tea Estate (Part Of)” together with 
the everything standing thereon situated at Ulugala Village 
in Ulugala Grama Niladhari Division in Dehiwinipalatha 
Korale within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Uva 
paranagama in the District of Badulla, Uva Province and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Part of the 
same land, on the East by Road (P.S), on the South by Land 
claimed by W. D. Wijerathana and on the West by Land 
claimed by Villages and containing in extent Thirty Seven 
Decimal Naught perches (0A., 0R., 37.01P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 4627 dated 16.07.2012 made by S. P. 
Ratnayake, Licensed Surveyor.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 4627 dated 16.07.2012 made 
by S. P. Ratnayake, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called “Ulugala Tea Estate (Part of)” together with 
the everything standing thereon situated at Ulugala Village 
in Ulugala Grama Niladhari Division in Dehiwinipalatha 
Korale within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Uva 
Paranagama in the District of Badulla, Uva Province and 
which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North by Part of the 
same land, on the East by Part of the same land, on the South 
by part of the same land and on the West by Road (P.S.) 
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and containing in extent One Acre, One Rood and Naught 
Three Decimal Naught Perches (1A., 1R., 03.0P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 4627 dated 16.07.2012 made by S. P. 
Ratnayake, Licensed Surveyor.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1 depicted in Plan No. 793 dated 21.11.1984 made by M. K. 
C. Premachandra, Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called “Humbaha Kumbura” together with the building 
and everything standing thereon bearing Assessment  
No. 11/38, Deiyannewela situated at Mailagastenna Village 
in Deiyannewela Grama Niladhari Division in the Town 
Council Limits of Badulla within the Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Badulla in the District of Badulla, Uva Province 
and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Live fence, 
on the East by Path, on the South by M C Road, on the West 
by Remaining portion of the same land and containing in 
extent Seventeen Decimal Six Two Perches (0A., 0R., 
17.62P.) according to the said Plan No. 793 dated 21.11.1984 
made by M. K. C. Premachandra, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

03-531/4

HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK PLC
batapola  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Koththigoda Kankanamge Ravindra Saman Kumara.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously:

Whereas Koththigoda Kankanamge Ravindra Saman 
Kumara as the Obligor has made default in payment due 
on Bond No. 1853 dated 02.03.2017, attested by N. P. 
Wickramarathne, Notary Public in favour of Hatton 
National Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to 
the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 30.09.2020 a sum 
of Rupees Nine Million One Hundred and Seventy-three 

Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty and Cents Zero 
only (Rs. 9,173,920) on the said Bond and the Board of 
Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises morefully described the 
Schedule, hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank 
PLC by the said Bond No. 1853 be sold Public Auction 
by J. W. E. Jayawardena, Licensed Auctioneer of all 
Island for recovery of the said sum Rupees Nine Million 
One Hundred and cents Seventy-three Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Twenty and cents Zero only (Rs. 9,173,920) 
together with further interest from 01.10.2020 to date of 
sale together with costs of advertising and Other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

the SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
‘Lot A’ being amalgamated Lot Nos. 1, 2 and 3 of contiguous 
Lot Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Lot A of Pansalalangawatta’ 
depicted in Plan No. 485 dated 20.12.2016 made by P. W. 
Dunstan Ananda, Licensed Surveyor (Being a re survey 
and amalgamation of Lot Nos. 1, 2 and 3 of contiguous Lot 
Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Lot A of ‘Pansalalangawatta’ depicted 
in Plan No. 851A dated 28.04.2002 made by Maduwage 
Thejasiri, Licensed Surveyor), situated at Batapola in the 
Grama Niladari Division No. 75, Batapola West within 
the Divisional Secretariat Division of Ambalangoda and 
Pradesiya Sabha Limits of Ambalangoda in the Wellaboda 
Pattu in the District of Galle Southern Province and which 
said Lot A is bounded on the

North by Peduruhewa Ishan Padinchiwaun Watta, Lot 
No. 4 in Plan No. 851A aforesaid and Portion of Lot A of 
the same land,

East by Portion of Lot A of the same land High Road 
from Kahawa to Batapola and Lot AC of the same land,

South by Portion of Lot A of the same land, High Road 
from Kahawa to Batapola Lot AA of the same land, Lot AC 
of the same land belonging to Ensa and West by Lot AA of 
the same land, Lot AC of the same land and Peduruhewa 
Ishan Padinchiwaun  Watta and

Containing in extent One Rood Nineteen Decimal Nine 
Perches (0A., 01R., 19.9P.) or Zero Decimal One Five One 
Five Hectares (0.1515Ha) together with the soil plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

03-531/5
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HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK PLC
cinnamon gardens branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Kuda Banda Herath.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 29th January, 2021 it was resolved 
Specially and unanimously.

Whereas Kuda Banda Herath as the Obligor has 
mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 2490 dated 20.01.2015 
attested by S. R. Faaiz, Notary Public of Colombo, the 
property morefully described in the Schedule hereto, in 
favour of Hatton National Bank PLC as security for the 
payment of the Housing Loan I facility granted by Hatton 
National Bank plc to kuda banda herath and has made 
default the payment in a sum of Rupees Twelve Million 
Five Hundred and Sixty- three Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Ninety-four and Cents Fifty-two Only (Rs. 12,563,894.52) 
as at 16.10.2020.

Whereas Kuda Banda Herath as the Obligor has 
mortgaged by Mortgage Bond No. 2766 dated 29.12.2015, 
attested by S. R. Faaiz, Notary Public of Colombo, the 
property morefully described in the Schedule hereto, in 
favour of Hatton National Bank PLC as security for the 
payment of the Housing Loan II facility granted by Hatton 
National Bank PLC to Kuda Banda Herath and has made 
default the payment in a sum of Rupees Seven Million One 
Hundred and Seventy-nine Thousand Nine Hundred and 
Thirty- nine and Cents Eighty-six Only (Rs. 7,179,939.86) 
as at 16.10.2020.

And there is now due and owing to the Hatton National 
Bank PLC as at 16.10.2020 a sum of Rs. 12,563,894.52 & 
Rs. 7,179,939.86 totalling to Rs. 19,743,834.38 (Rupees 
Nineteen Million Seven Hundred and Forty-three Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Thirty-four and Cents Thirty-eight Only) 
on the aforesaid Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton 
National Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, 
do hereby resolve that the Property more fully described 
in the schedule hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National 
Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 2490 & 2766, be sold by 
Public Auction by D. Kelaart, Licensed Auctioneer of All 
Island for recovery of the said sum of Rs. 19,743,834.38 as 
at 16.10.2020 together with further interest from 17.10.2020 
to date of sale together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
3 depicted in Plan No. 2229A dated 03rd June, 1985 made by  
A. E. Wijesuriya, Licensed Surveyor together with 
the buildings and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 31/4C, Sulaiman Terrace situated Off 
Sulaiman Terrace in Thimbirigasyaya within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Thimbirigasyaya and Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Thimbirigasyaya within the 
Municipal Council Limits and District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by 
Lot 2 in the said Plan No. 2229A, on the East by premises 
bearing Assessment No. 27A, Sulaiman Terrace, on the 
South by Lot 4 in the said Plan No. 2229A and on the West 
by Lot 8 (Reservation for Road 15 ft. wide) in the said Plan 
No. 2229A and containing in extent Ten Decimal Four 
Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 10.49P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 2229A and registered under title E 89/62 at the District 
Land Registry of Colombo.

The aforesaid property according to a recent survey is 
described as follows:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 413/2008 dated 19th August, 
2008 made by S. Rasappah, Licensed Surveyor together 
with the buildings and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 31/4C, Sulaiman Terrace situated Off 
Sulaiman Terrace in Thimbirigasyaya within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Thimbirigasyaya and Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Thimbirigasyaya within the 
Municipal Council Limits and District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by 
Lot 2 in the said Plan No. 2229A, on the East by premises 
bearing Assessment No. 27A, Sulaiman Terrace, on the 
South by Lot 4 in the said Plan No. 2229A and on the West 
by Road 15 ft. wide and containing in extent Ten Decimal 
Four Nine Perches (0A., 0R., 10.49P.) according to the said 
Plan No. 413/2008.

Together with the right of way over and along the 
reservation for roads morefully described in the Second 
Schedule in the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 2490 & 
2766.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K. A. L. T. Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.
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